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REGULATORY BARRIERS TO MESTORITY
ENTREPRENEURS

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 7, 1995

House of Representtatives,
Subcommittee on Regulation and Paperwork,

Committee on Small Business,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 11:10 a.m., in room
2359-A, Raybum House Office Building, Hon. James M. Talent,
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Chairman Talent. Grood morning to everybody. I want to begin
this morning by thanking each of our witnesses who have agreed
to appear before the subcommittee today, especially those who have
traveled great distances in order to be with us.

It is also a great pleasure to have Congressman Flake, a member
of the committee, here to testify; and former HUD Secretary Jack
Kemp, a former member of the committee, is also with us today.

In tact, Mr. Secretary, I understand we have surviving photo-
graphs of the committee at a time when you served on it, and you
look just as young as you do today.
Mr. Kemp. Careful there, I just had my ninth grandchild.
Chairman Talent. You must have gotten started early.

Mr. Kemp. It is going to be tough to look at those old pictures

without a tear in my eye.

Chairman Talent. This morning the Subcommittee on Regula-
tion and Paperwork will hold the first in a series of hearings on
the regulatory burdens of particular concern to minority entre-

preneurs. I hope this hearing will provide members of the sub-
committee with an overview of the Federal, State, and local regu-
latory issues of particular concern to minority small businesses.
The toll Government regulations exact from the American econ-

omy every year is well-known. Excessive regulations kill jobs and
cost the economy an estimated $500 billion every year-more than
$5,000 for each average American family. These regulatory costs

are borne by every business and every family in this country, but
especially those on the bottom rungs of the economic ladder. There
is a great deal of evidence that excessive regulation and arbitrary
barriers to business creation on top of other impediments that al-

ready face many minority communities have a disproportionate im-
pact on minority entrepreneurship.

Clearly, some Government policies have been designed to help
minorities achieve access to opportunity. For example, it took the
power of the Federal Government to end segregation in the United
States and to end State-sanctioned discrimination. The importance
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of these achievements simply cannot be underestimated. But an in-
creasing number of minority entrepreneurs believe that excessive
regulations prevent them from establishing businesses, hiring em-
ployees, and producing goods and services needed by our society.
The purpose of this hearing is to discover what Government reg-

ulations interfere with creative entrepreneurship. We will explore
the concept of "economic liberty," the inherently American ideal
that every American, from every neighborhood, and from every
background has the right to pursue a trade, job, or profession of his
or her choice free from arbitrary Government intrusion. In doing
so, we will try to determine whether specific regulatory policies
place the heaviest burdens on our Nation's minority entrepreneurs,
many of whom struggle to join the economic mainstream by start-
ing out at the bottom of the economic ladder.
By raising these questions, I hope that our witnesses today can

help the subcommittee understand the extent of the problem and
where the bulk of it Hes: At the Federal, State, or local level, or
some combination of all three. After we conclude, I hope we will
leave this discussion with a sense of what can be done to ensure
that every American's right to pursue his or her dream is not in-
fringed upon by arbitrary Government policies.

Again, I would like to thank the witnesses who are with us
today. I will introduce them in a moment. At this point I would like
to recognize the ranking member of the subcommittee, Ms.
Velazquez., for an opening statement.
[Chairman Talent's statement may be found in the appendix ]

Ms. Velazquez. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me say at the
onset that I have always been a very strong supporter of minority
small businesses. I believe in granting the minority entrepreneurs
of our era both the opportunities that they deserve and the help
that they need. Because of this I have been and will continue to
be an outspoken advocate of the 8A and other minority set-aside
programs.

But, Mr. Chairman, I take exception to the approach that we
seem to be taking today. Witnesses have been called before a Fed-
eral panel to discuss purely local issues. I do not believe that we
have any jurisdiction over the local ordinances and regulations of
Denver, Colorado, or Washington, DC. We cannot offer any relief
unless, of course, the majority party intends to reverse its position
on Federal mandates. If a citizen of one of those cities has a prob-
lem with a local law, he or she should bring them to the city coun-
cil or a State legislature.

I understand that much of the testimony today focuses on the re-
peal of the Davis-Bacon Act. While I respect the views of the panel-
ists, I take strong exception to any attempt to undo that statute
and subvert the purposes that it serves. Repeal of Davis-Bacon,
like the abandonment of the minimum wage, suggests competition
based upon the lowest wages and the most minimal living stand-
ards.

It is a wage race to the bottom, with contracts going to the bid-
der with the most desperate labor force. The elimination of Davis-
Bacon merely opens opportunity for workers to join the ranks of
the working poor. It certainly won't help minority individuals and



families to ever own their own home or send their children to col-

lege.

Before concluding my opening remarks, I would like to welcome
Jack Kemp, a distinguished former colleague and fellow New York-

er. I look forward to his testimony and those of our other witnesses

on this very important issue.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Talent. I thank the gentlelady. I am going to follow

the committee's rules regarding opening statements and limit them
to the chairman and the ranking minority member. But if anybody
else has a statement they would like put in the record, that will

happen without objection.

I will go ahead with the witnesses now, and when Mr. Flake ar-

rives we will go ahead and put him on after whoever is testifying

at that point.

Our witnesses on Panel one are the Honorable Flovd Flake, Con-

gressman from the Sixth District of New York. I will go ahead and
just mention who is on the panel and then introduce Secretary

Kemp. The Honorable Jack Kemp, who is the co-director of Em-
power America here in Washington, DC, and has a long pedigree

of which everybody here is, I'm sure, familiar. Mr. Clint Bolick,

vice-president and director of Litigation for the Institute for Justice

here in Washington, DC, and Peter Kirsanow, the labor counsel for

Leaseway Transportation in Cleveland, Ohio.

Secretary Kemp, in Mr. Flake's absence, why don't you go ahead

and begin your testimony.

TESTIMONY OF HON. JACK KEMP, CO-DIRECTOR, EMPOWER
AMERICA, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. Kemp. Well, Mr. Chairman, first of all thank you, and Ms.
Velazquez. I listened to your opening comments with a great deal

of interest, and I appreciated the welcome that both of you and all

of the committee are giving to the issue, notwithstanding some of

the objections that you might have. I would like to take, Mr. Chair-

man, the issue to a higher level and a broader level, which is I

think what the gentlelady from New York was attempting to ad-

dress in her opening comments.
First of all, I approach this issue with a great deal, believe it or

not, of humility. That may be oxymoronic for some to hear Jack

Kemp talking about humility. There are many different angles to

this issue. I think it is extremely important that we listen to not

only the witnesses from Floyd Flake and Clint Bolick, but to Mr.

Jones, whose story I read in the Denver newspapers when I was
going through Denver. I found out that he is a young entrepreneur

attempting to start a taxicab company in Denver that had been de-

nied application by the Denver City Council, which since has been

rescinded.
I told him upon meeting him that my daddy was a truck driver

in Los Angeles. There was no ICC; there was no Commerce Depart-

ment; there was no set-aside. Banks in those days used to make
loans. He had access to about everything he wanted, except capital.

I am going to approach this issue from the standpoint that the

number one impediment in our country to the establishment of a

small business, particularly for minority men and women-albeit



regulations are impediments-the number one impediment is the
heavy burden of taxation on the formation of the capital and the
"seed corn" necessary to start that business and launch that ver-
sion of the American dream.

I am delighted to be with my co-participants. I only wish Floyd
were here to start this off, because I am a fan of Floyd Flake's and
appreciate the perspective that he will give.

My humility is wrapped up in a statement by a Chinese philoso-
pher who said one time, "There is a great deal of wisdom in the
world, but unfortunately it was all divided up among people."
Everybody on this Earth has a little slice of that pie of wisdom,

and I am only here today to share with you my tiny, little slice of
the pie of 18 years in the Congress, 4 years as HUD Secretary, and
someone who has spent most of his public life traveling in inner-
city environments-albeit not being a minority myself, profoundly
concerned that the American dream was being extinguished in

front of our eyes.

If Dr. King were here today-I cannot speak for him and do not
attempt to-but if he were here today, he would be talking about the
next chapter of civil rights, as Chairman Talent mentioned, being
economic opportunity, access to ownership, housing, jobs, job train-

ing, education, and a chance to not be a truck driver but to own
the truck, not just to be driving a taxi, but to start the Freedom
Taxicab Co.
That is the dream of my parents, and I am sure all of our par-

ents. I spoke a number of years ago, and gave the same remarks
that I would give today. In fact, I have been talking about it so

long I do not know who is more tired of my testimony, myself or
the people who have to listen to it. Because, frankly, we have not
done enterprise zones.

I did not get the enterprise zone concept from Margaret Thatch-
er; albeit, the press always says "Kemp got enterprise zone concept
from Margaret Thatcher." She was only one of many. I got it from
the former Governor of Puerto Rico, Luis Munoz Marin, who was
the author of the industrialization policy which was predicated
upon reducing regulations and reducing the tax burden on the Is-

land of Puerto Rico in the 1930's and 1940's, just to put that at

rest.

It is bipartisan. This cannot be Republican versus Democrat;
black versus white or brown; male, female; and it certainly cannot
be rich, poor. The rich are already rich. By definition if you are

"rich" in America, yoii do not need the same access to the capital

necessary to start what Leroy Jones or other men and women who
testify are going to talk about.
Bobby Kennedy said these words, "To fight poverty without the

power of free enterprise is to wage war with a platoon while your
great army is left on the sidelines." I think. Chairman Talent, Mr.
Chairman, if I might say so, that is what you were talking about.

It is propitious that we are talking about this today, because
small businessmen and women create about 91 percent of all the
new jobs in America. David Birch of MIT, Professor Birch said, "91

percent of all new jobs in the last 20 years have been created by
small businesses with less than 125 or maybe 150 employees."



Big business does not create jobs; they are net losers of jobs.

They have been downsizing for two decades. In fact, in the 1980's,

just as a parenthetical point here, when we lowered the tax rate
on income and lowered the capital gains rate-people forget, you
were all too young to remember this-but the capital gains rate used
to be 49 percent. Kennedy lowered it by 30 percent. The Steiger
Amendment lowered it from 35 to 28, then the Kemp-Roth Bill low-
ered it again from 35 down to 20, and it went back up in 1986.

Putting that aside for a moment, it has become a major burden
on access to capital formation. As capital gets locked up in the
hands of wealthy people, they can go out and leverage their assets
to borrow, which is tax deductible. But if you sell the asset, you get
taxed on an unindexed capital gains rate of close to, get ready now,
60 to 70 percent, if you have held an asset for longer than 4 or 5
years. If you happen to live in New York or California, you could
very well today be in the 50 percent capital gains tax rate.

I do not bring that up as the only issue, but I bring it up as a
fundamental barrier to minority enterprises. As Earl Graves said
in "Black Enterprise Magazine,' they did a study of minority entre-

preneurship and Earl Graves, the publisher of "Black Enterprise
Magazine," and I know he speaks for women and men and minori-
ties and all people when he said that, "The number one problem
in starting a small business in America today is access to capital."

Hey, Congressman Flake, I was just talking about you, man.
Nice to see you. We were up together in your wonderful district a
few years ago when I was HUD Secretary. I am kind of saying
some of the same things I said in the hearing, that access to capital

for minority men and women is the secret to launching a new chap-
ter of civil, human, and legal rights and the American dream. Ex-
cuse me for repeating myself.
Mr. Flake. Well, you always repeat my sermons anyway.
Mr. Kemp. Well, this is a sermon.
Mr. Flake. You are doing great,

Mr. Kemp. I was making the point that the number one impedi-
ment to starting a minority business is lack of access to capital and
credit. Earl Graves went on to say, "If African-Americans," now he
is writing obviously about his own people, but he could be talking
about your people and all people, all men and women who have
been left behind in this great experiment in human freedom and
human democracy. It cannot work until everybody has equality of
opportunity, and that was the chair's opening predicate.

Earl Graves said, "If African-Americans are ever to secure a full

measure of freedom and independence in America, they must not
only be the employee, they must be the employer. They must not
only collect the paycheck, they must issue the paycheck. They must
not only have the dollars to stay in a hotel, they must have access
to the capital to own the hotel." Now, all he is talking about is that
which we celebrate in this age of the collapse of Communism and
Fascism and Apartheidism. Every country in the world is looking
to us.

Nelson Mandella the other day announced he is going to pri-

vatize housing and cut tariffs and tax rates to encourage invest-
ment for job opportunities for the "colored population." I guess that



means the Indian or the South Asian population and African-Amer-
ican, Black African population.
Deng Xiaoping, a card carrying Maoist, said in the "China Daily

Mail" 10 years ago, "It is now glorious to get rich" in China. If you
live in the provinces from Shanghai down to Guandong Province,
along the coast of Hong Kong, it is unbelievable. Now, listen to

this. No tax on income for 4 years, zero tax on capital formation,
zero tax on capital gains. Deng Xiaoping. Problems abound, human
rights abuses abound.
They know, and I think I know, that if they liberalize the econ-

omy ultimately there will be a greater liberalization of human,
civil, legal voting rights. I believe that, I believe that. I do not
think there is a substitute for that battle for civil human rights,

but I think it is essential.

I bring passion to this subject, because I do not see how we can
solve the problem of poverty. I do not see how we can solve the
problem of unemployment in this Nation's Capitol and other inner
urban areas of America without a radical attempt to open up op-
portunities for people through regulatory reform.

I do not necessarily agree with eveiything. I must admit when
I was at HUD we used set-asides for advertising FHA housing that
had been abandoned or had come into the portfolio of the Federal
Housing Administration. We advertised in minority newspapers.
We believed that that was an important part of opening up access
to advertising opportunities not only for the publisher of a minority
Hispanic, Latino, or African-American newspaper, but we thought
giving people in the minority community access to the information
about those FHA homes.

Ultimately, I want to say that I do not think set-asides, I do not
think the SBA, frankly, makes about V2 of 1 percent of the total

loans to small business in America. Now, let me just make a radi-

cal proposal, and then I will stop and turn it over to Floyd.

I think we ought to seriously consider repealing-well, that is

about as diplomatic as I can say it-I think immediately we should
repeal the top surtax that was placed upon the economy in the
1993 tax budget or tax bill. To be bipartisan about it, I think we
should repeal the Bush tax rate increase too. Do not forget the
Bush administration raised taxes.

May I say to the gentlelady from New York because of her
eloquency in opening up these hearings from the minority stand-
point and talked about 8A set-asides, what good is a set-aside if as
you get the set-aside and you get the chance to own or participate

in a Government contract if the Government confiscates the income
with which you need to launch the next expansion of that business?
Everybody says to me, "Well, Kemp, that is trickle-down econom-

ics." That is not trickle-down economics. It might be a Niagara
Falls, but it would not be a trickle. Trickle-down economics, in my
view, is giving tax credits to existing businesses to hire people on
the theory that you are only going to give it to businesses that have
already started it.

The secret of a highly dynamic economy is to give the startup
business a better shot. They are the ones that create the jobs. I

want to make one last point, and then turn it over to Floyd.



In the 1980's, much abused from both the far left and some of

my budget-balancing friends on the far right, the 1980's launched
the greatest decade of minority entrepreneurship in the United
States of America. I am not giving the credit to Ronald Reagan or

Kemp or Roth or anything else as much as I am giving the credit

to the people who are waiting to get a chance to do something.
There was a 45 percent increase in minority-owned businesses.

Black-owned businesses doubled. Hispanic-owned businesses grew
by about 50 percent. More women went into business in the 1980's

than any decade in the history of American, bar none. Women-
owned businesses in the 1980's nired more people than the Fortune
500 have hired in the past 20 years.

The secret to a dynamic economy is small business. The Repub-
lican Party has spent too much of our time in the past on what is

good for General Motors is good for America. That is wrong. What
is good for America and for all people will be good for mom and
pop; and if it is good for GM, that is fine.

Now, our friends on the left, may I say to this panel, to be bipar-

tisan about this, they worry about somebody getting rich. Countries
who worry about people getting rich are countries who do not hurt
the rich, they end up hurting the poor. The rich get rich under any
kind of a system. It is the poor, as the Chairman pointed out, who
are left behind.
Leroy Jones, who will testify more eloquently than Kemp or any-

one on this panel, maybe other than Floyd, was denied his civil

human rights to start a business. My daddy was a truck driver,

bought the truck. He got a bank loan when banks, as I said, used
to make loans.

Remember those days, Floyd?
Mr. Flake. Yes.
Mr. Kemp. Your daddy used to tell you about them.
Mr. Flake. Oh, yes.

Mr. Kemp. Today, the source of capital has dried up because we
are overtaxing the formation of investment capital and we overtax
human capital. As soon as that welfare mother or unemployed fa-

ther tries to get off of welfare and out of poverty and off of unem-
ployment, the Government confiscates about 15 percent of the first

dollar of income that they make. It takes away their health bene-
fits, it takes away food stamps, and it takes away welfare. The
combination of the loss of welfare, coupled with the tax on his or

her income is a barrier to getting off of poverty.

I think everybody is overtaxed. I think everybody is overregu-
lated. I am not calling for laissez faire, 18th century, dog-eat-dog,

Darwinian, biological competition where only the fittest can sur-

vive. We need a safety net under which people should not be al-

lowed to fall, but we need a ladder of opportunity.

I want to make a case today, Mr. Chairman, that the ladder is

pretty high in this country. You can go pretty darned far. Bill

Gates of Microsoft, Sam Walton. John Johnson of Ebony, he started

on welfare. He started The Negro Digest in 1945, and now he owns
Ebony and Jet.

The ladder does not go deep enough, and it will not go deep
enough into the inner-cities of America until we reduce this regu-
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latory and tax burden on the entrepreneur who is the source, as
I said, of about 90 percent of all the new jobs.

I make a passionate plea to change the subject of the whole
panel. I have got my formal testimony, but I want to recall John
and Bobbv Kennedy, and Luis Munoz Marin and, yes, Jack Kemp
and Ronald Reagan. I mean, this is not partisan.

Look, reducing the capital gain rate will do more to help the poor
than to help the rich. I said earlier the rich are rich. They have
already got their capital. Their capital gains are behind them.
Leroy Jones' capital gains are ahead of him. If he makes it in Den-
ver with an enterprise that hires people and becomes successful
and the Government turns around and confiscates that which he
has been able to build up, that would be a tragedy of unbelievable
proportions.

That is what is happening in America. That is why we have got
to have these hearings. It is propitious today, Mr. Chairman, be-
cause the unemployment rate went up, what, 2 weeks ago. The
Index of Leading Economic Indicators has fallen for 3 straight
months. The economy is slipping. No, we are not going in a reces-
sion, but the Federal Reserve Board is running around talking
about a "soft landing." When they talk about a "soft landing," I can
guarantee you minority men and women and the poor will have a
very hard landing, Mr. Chairman.
To think that the Federal Reserve Board today is trying to slow

down the economy to fight inflation, we ought to have hearings on
that. How dare they slow this economy down when folks are unem-
ployed? How dare they weaken the tax base of the cities?

Thanks for letting me preach to the choir.

Chairman Talent. Thank you, Mr. Secretary.
Our next witness is our colleague, a Member of this committee,

and of this Congress.
Mr. Kemp. That makes you upset, doesn't it, Floyd?
Mr. Flake. Always.
Chairman Talent. The distinguished Member from New York,

Mr. Flake.
[Mr. Kemp's statement may be found in the appendix.]

TESTIMONY OF HON. FLOYD FLAKE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE SIXTH DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK
Mr. Flake. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and thank you

for the invitation. I g^ess the only benefit of following former (Jon-

gressman. Secretary Jack Kemp, is to know that he was a former
quarterback, and so I am either the halfback who is receiving the
ball or the end who is getting the pass.

I think he and I worked extremely well while he was here as Sec-
retary, and I certainlv think all of us know that the enterprise zone
legislation he and Cnarlie Rangel worked diligently to make sure
that it would happen. Though it happened after he had left Gov-
ernment service, the reality is that I think its long-term benefits
bespeaks well for what his intentions have been, ft is not just a
matter of his words; it is a matter of his deeds and his works that
we have always commended him and will continue to do so.



I think that one of the things I learned in both the Banking Com-
mittee and here while he was Housing Secretary is just the simple
fact that we could work beyond partisanism. That has been my his-

tory. He has been out to the district where I serve, largely because
my direction has been one of trying to build in communities where
most folk do not believe there is an opportunity.

I call them "fertile fields of opportunities" that have been long ig-

nored in America. Long ignored because there are certain percep-

tions of these communities that, one, they could not support jobs;

two, they do not have the talent and resources to be able to gen-

erate new jobs.

The reality is I just finished my dissertation for my doctorate,

and one of tne things I did was an analysis of what happened be-

fore the turn of the century and immediately thereafter. Histori-

cally, in African-American communities and urban communities
throughout America there was an ability to be able to build institu-

tions, in spite of legislative barriers and other barriers that pre-

cluded an ^ mitigated against that possibility.

The reality was, though, that in spite of the Government activity,

there was at least a strong sense of community before the 1960's,

before integration as we know it. Those persons living in those
communities understood that if they were to provide jobs for their

people, if they were to provide houses and basic benefits, they had
to produce those things themselves.

Integration for many of us now who were major proponents of in-

tegration, I sometimes wonder if it has not been disintegration, to

the degree that the dispersal of those communities and the persons
in those communities who made the investments to help build

those communities are no longer available. They are not there.

Their resources have been taken out by virtue of the fact that they
have no access, and those investments do not come back into the
communities.

In 1962, when I left Houston, Texas, to go to Wilberforce Univer-
sity, in Ohio, the University of Houston had not a black student.

Its first student was a former professional football player, Warren
McVey. They accepted him because he was an athlete. He was an
all-American athlete in high school and went on to be one in college

and on to the pros.

During that time persons who were athletes, persons who were
in business, persons who were doctors, lawyers, whatever they
were, they were constrained to have to live in that community.
Therefore, they invested in those communities. In many instances,

because of their stature in the communities, banks were not as re-

luctant as they later became in investing in those communities. It

was possible to pool their resources and to rebuild those commu-
nities.

Twenty years ago, I left a job as dean of students at Boston Uni-
versity to go to New York at the request of a bishop to pastor a
churcn. My concern was, how do you take a community tnat was
described in the press at that time as a "declining community of

potentially middle-class people," but a community that would ulti-

mately become just another ghetto if there was no attention given
to the fact that this community represented an opportunity through
investment?
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One of the tragedies of that happened in the sixties, and I was
on a model cities board in Davton, Ohio, and my years in seminary
one of the things I discovered was that the program probably was
never designed to succeed. It did not deal with a basic question,
and that was the question of: How do you build a community
through investment as opposed to trying to build community just
through social prog^^ams?
My argument has not been one that is juxtaposed to social pro-

grams but one that says that the formula was always wrong. The
formula did not appreciate the fact that in almost any community
if you are going to build there is a need to access capital. The
accessing of capital meant that those institutions responsible for

capital formation in any other community also had a responsibility

and an obligation to make sure that capital was available to these
communities.
No community in America, whether it is suburban America or

whether it is rural America, where they have moved from the
downtown segments to the outer portions of town where the
Walmarts are, and so forth. In small towns that I have visited in

the South, the reality is it could only happen because there was
capital available to make it happen.

In the minority communities, capital dried up. After the 1960's,

the only thing that is left in many of those communities-and the
Secretary and I had many discussions about this-how do you re-

build the places where the cavities exist, where the buildings were
torn down aft^er the riots? Nobody came in to say, "Let's rebuild the
communities by rebuilding the businesses."

Sadly, even as we built myriad numbers of homes, we did not
have correspondingly any programs that allowed for the rebuilding
of those commercial strips. You had Fsinnie Mae, and you had
Freddie Mac. You had means of having a secondary market source

that was able to provide the guarantees, and the SBA in many in-

stances to provide the guarantees, to assure that you could build

housing. But you did not have a source to guarantee that you
would be able to build those commercial strips.

Banks ignored it, redlined it, and in many instances was respon-
sible for the creation of the Community Reinvestment Program as

we know it. Without Community Reinvestment many of those com-
munities, as bad as they are perceptually from the outside, would
be worse than they are even today.
My idea was that you begin the process by proving that these

communities had the wherewithal to be able to demonstrate
through investment that they could, indeed, turn the community
around and participate in the fastest growing sector in American
society; and that is, the small business sector.

I have created, from myself and a secretary in 1976 until this

moment, 770 jobs. Many of these persons are former welfare recipi-

ents. We talk in this Congress about eliminating welfare as we
know it. The reality is, what do you do when you eliminate welfare

with persons who live in communities where there are no jobs, who
do not have access to transportation to get to the suburbs where
there may be jobs? How do you deal with the reality of those per-

sons who are now going to be left behind?
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As a clergyman you could rationalize it by just saying that the
Bible says, 'The poor you will have with you always. That is not
a sufificient explanation. The reality, then, must be that this Con-

fress and bodies who are involved with Corporate America and
anks and insurance companies also must participate in a way to

say, "OK, if we are going to eliminate welfare, on the one hand, let

us at least talk about how you make investments, the same kind
of investments that you would make anywhere else."

My years in New England when the Reuten Naval Base was in

serious trouble, the Government stepped in and provided some sup-

port. When Chrysler was in trouble, the Government stepped in.

When New York City was in trouble, the Government stepped in.

It would seem to me that Americans all over this Nation would re-

alize that it is not in their best interest to have the urban commu-
nities continue in the condition that they are in.

We can never jail enough people to solve the problems of the
inner-city. One hundred thousand dollars a unit in a place like

New York to build a jail cell, $30,000 to $40,000 to keep a person
in a jail cell.

We need to make investments in communities like mine, in com-
munity school districts where you have whites on one end, blacks
on the other; the poor on one side, the rich on the other side; the
rich controlling a community school board, investing $6,000 in the

white part of their school board, and investing $2,000 to $3,000 in

the black part; computers that prepare the kids for the super high-

way information age on the one side, no books or books that are

20 to 30 years old on the other side.

Then you ask the question, why is crime so high? Crime is high
because if you do not prepare people to be able to work, you do not
prepare them to be able once they finish school to know that they
nave a possibility even of getting a job. The reality is we have
failed them.
We do not participate in investments. Investment starts in edu-

cation, investment starts in preschool, it starts in programs that

allow students to understand that at some point they will not only

be employees somewhere, but they have an opportunity to partici-

pate in this society as entrepreneurs.
The reality is that what I did was converted my church from just

a spiritual entity to a business center. Out of that business center

we developed our own jobs. We bought up every vacant store, every
boarded up property near any place drug dealing was going on
within a three- or four-block radius of where my church is. We
built a 300-unit senior citizens apartment thanks to help from
HUD. That started the process of a community reinvestment proce-

dure that is still operative even at this very moment.
By buying up stores, we put tenants in them. Those tenants op-

erating in those stores came in and made some investments. Those
who have long ignored and abandoned those communities came
back. Allstate Insurance came back. My church is building a Burg-
er King right this moment; we are building a clinic right now; we
are building a new $15 million church because we have to generate
income.
We raised $4.2 million in tithes and offerings. We invested that,

and that is our leverage. That leverage allows us to go to the banks
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and say, "We are not here for a handout. We want you to give us
$80,000. We have a $100,000 property to buy. We are going to put
our 20 percent in. That is our downpayment. We want you to re-

spond to us. All we want you to do is nelp us to leverage it."

The problem comes when the banks say, "We cannot participate
in that community."
When I built a school, our own school-we decided we had to have

a school-the congregation said, 'The Government is going to do it?"

I said, "No, we are going to do it ourselves." I have 8,000 mem-
bers-8,300 members now. 1 did not have that then. I said to them,
'Tou represent what is the essence of the stock market. It is not
General Motors, it is not Xerox, or IBM that is great. It is the fact
that a lot of people take their little bits and put them together to
make a whole lot in order that that company can survive."

I said to the congregation, *Tou will invest in yourselves by put-
ting your money into the tithes and offerings. We will take your
money, and we will invest it in the community. We will build our
own businesses. We will buildup a community.
What happened? The Justice Department looks at me and says,

"How could you do this?" They could not even understand it. Gov-
ernment has been there for every step we have made. The Govern-
ment has been there to say, "You shouldn't have done it this way."

In these communities we are desperate. We are trying to do it

the way it ought to be done. But myself and a secretary, we are
not accountants, we are not lawyers, we are not CPA's. What we
did was what we thought was the best way to get businesses going.

I operated a charter dus company. We bought four MCI's. That
company made $500,000. That is 10 jobs that would not exist. We
have stores in that community, 39 jobs; 52 jobs in the school; 400
iobs in home care; over 30 jobs in our senior citizens' building. We
built 61 homes.
We took people off the streets, not with the help of the Unions

unfortunately-people off the streets-and put those people into the
building of 61 units of housing. We are building 48 units of housing
right now. Those will be homeowners. Homeowners stabilize a com-
munity.
Each homeowner will have rental unit. The rental units mean

that we will provide not only for the persons who will provide sta-

bility because they work, but they are also individuals who will

have a rental unit. By virtue of the rental unit, they qualify for a
mortgage. Yet, the banks generally have come along very slowly,

except lor Community Reinvestment.
Jim Johnson, chairman at Fannie Mae said, "We will provide a

guarantee for the homes."
We are building 500 units of housing. The banks came in. We

then need to look in this Small Business Committee at how we
might be able to develop a securitization process that allows for

small businesses in all communities. Not just this one, but all com-
munities like it, to be able to know that there is a secondary mar-
ket, another GSE, if necessary, that takes care of the responsibility

of assuring that in those kinds of communities we have the possi-

bilitv of being able to create jobs.

I heard the Chairman's discussion on capital gains. He will tell

you that long before the switchover here in Congress, I have been
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one who has argued that capital gains working in conjunction with
assurances that you provide a minimum wage, with assurances
that you can provide adequate job training for people coming off of
welfare would make sense. There are some of us who could support
it if, in fact, there was an understanding that we were targeting
it to meet the needs of those communities.
America would be a stronger Nation if we could all see that in

those communities this fertile field of opportunity could, indeed, be
turned around to make something very viable. Rather, we treat it

like fallow land, fallow land that we can never grow anvthing on.
My argument is I have demonstrated through Uie number of stu-

dents who have graduated from high school, every last one of them
but one over the last 12 years has gone to college. Every last one
of them tested out of a foreign language when they got there. Every
last one of them got computer skills, starting at the preschool level.

We can do it in the communities, but we need the benefit and sup-
port of the Grovemment to help it happen,

I am talking about Government, not in a traditional social sense.
I am talking about Government understanding its responsibility to

serve as the leveraging process that assures that people who make
an investment in those communities will not be penalized, that
they will not be persons who will pay undue and unnecessary
taxes, undue and unnecessary wages because that is a demand.

In certain communities that is appropriate. In other commu-
nities, where unemployment is high, if it is 6 percent in the Nation,
it is 18 to 24 percent in an urban community; and it is over 50 per-
cent for those young people who are teenagers. The reality is a Na-
tion cannot survive. The Nation cannot continue to incarcerate its

youth and expect to be a strong Nation.
I would go so far, and perhaps this is not the committee to talk

about it in, to say that one of the great things that was lost-and
my liberal fi^iends would certainly never agree with me on this-one
of the great things that America lost was the draft.

When they lost the draft, they lost the ability to take 17, 18, or
19-year-old kids off" the street and put them into a disciplined envi-
ronment. Three years later, when they came back, they had an
educational benefit. They also had the ability to be able to buy VA
homes. When they bought that first home, that represented an
asset.

Most of these kids cannot build assets; they are still living with
their parents. They cannot find jobs in the community, so they
stand on the street comers and sell drugs. If we could only create
jobs in those communities. The only reason I am building a Burger
King is because it means that I have an opportunity to teach work
discipline and work ethics to young people 15, 16, or 17 years of
age, to let them know that they may have to bum hamburgers
today, but tomorrow they can become the owner of a franchise.
What we need to do is find ways to franchise a population that

feels that it is disenfranchised and has been written off in this gen-
eration as "generation X," We have already put a mark in front of
them. We have said they cannot produce. We have said that they
have no ability to perform; I would argue contrary to that, that
they do have, if given the opportunity.
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I look for Government to create opportunities. If you, Mr. Chair-
man, would work with me and others in helping to create those op-

portunities, we can not only develop a model community in Ja-

maica, New York, we can turn model communities in this Nation,

We can generate for the Government tax revenues as opposed to

putting the Government in a position where it has to spend its tax
revenues to house these young men and these women in prisons.

I thank you for the opportunity to come. I hate that I went over-

time, but Jack got me started here.

Chairman Talent. I don't hate that you went overtime, because
the vision you outlined at the end is, I think, what I hope we are

developing a consensus that we want. I think it is going to take ele-

ments from a vigorous Grovemment that works unleashing people
in a manner that works. I mean, I think this committee obviously

only has-this subcommittee and even the committee only has-a lit-

tle piece of it, but that is what we are trying to explore. I want to

leave plenty of time for questions. Let me go on to Mr. Bolick.

TESTIMONY OF CLINT BOLICK, VICE PRESIDENT AND DIREC-
TOR OF LITIGATION, THE INSTITUTE FOR JUSTICE, WASH-
INGTON, DC
Mr. Bolick. Thank you. It is a pleasure to be here, but a

daunting task to follow two preachers, one ordained and the other

honorary.
Mr. Flake, I want to mention that we have recently commis-

sioned a study on barriers to entrepreneurship in the one city on
Earth that seems to have a lock on the market. New York City. We
are doing it, in part, to help the Government deregulate entre-

preneurial opportunities, but also to identify litigation opportuni-

ties, because what we do for a living is to sue bureaucrats. There
is no more fun that a lawyer could have in that area.

I am privileged to be here with this distinguished panel and also

to be here with three men who the Institute for Justice has had
the honor to represent in the past few years: Taalib-Din Uqdah,
Leroy Jones, and Art Pearson. These men are heroes in the fight

for economic liberty, and there is no greater reward that an attor-

ney could have than to be associated with individuals like these.

Chairman TALENT. If I can just interrupt you for just a second.

Mr. Bolick. Sure.
Chairman Talent. I understand you have to go, Mr. Secretary.

We thank you.
Mr. Kemp. Yes. I apologize. I want to thank Floyd, though. That

was eloquent. His church is a free enterprise zone. That is exactly

what we are talking about. Just do it large, and we will solve the

problem.
Mr. Talent. We thank you for being here.

Mr. BOUCK. The task we commence today is the culmination, the

realization of the civil rights revolution. Our Nation's moral claim

is staked in its commitment to opportunity. Today, we hear a great

deal about affirmative action set-asides, diversity, entitlements.

These are the sorts of quick fixes we look to as a consequence of

failing to make good on the promise of opportunity, but ultimately

they are an unsatisfying alternative to the real thing.



15

Ironically, today we are resuming a conversation about civil

rights that started more than a century ago. When slavery was
abolished, millions of black Americans were emancipated to pursue
a brighter future as self-sustaining people. That promise was
stamped out as Southern Governments manipulated by former
slaveholders systematically denied the most essential and inalien-

able liberties: Freedom of contract, private property ownership, and
freedom of labor and entrepreneurship.

Congress responded by enacting the 14th Amendment which pro-

tected these precious economic liberties as the privileges or immu-
nities of citizenship. But in an 1872 decision all too aptly denomi-
nated the "Slaughter-House Cases," the U.S. Supreme Court evis-

cerated this promise, ruling 5 to 4 that the privileges or immunities
clause did not add any substantive protections to the Constitution.
Since 1872, that clause has never been used, never once ever to
strike down an economic regulation, no matter how arbitrary or op-
pressive.

The perverse byproduct of this judicial abdication is that today
the rignt to receive a welfare check receives greater judicial protec-
tion than the right to earn an honest living. That is a travesty in

a free society. The results of this are devastating, particularly for

those struggling to gain a toehold on the economic ladder.

For restraints on entry into businesses and professions are today
more pervasive than they were at the height of the Jim Crow era.

All across the Nation as Taalib-Din Uqdah will tell you, all across
the Nation entir into professions from cosmetology to my own prac-
tice of law is shackled bv occupational licensing laws enforced by
members of the regulated profession with the coercive apparatus of

Government at their disposal. These laws go far beyond public
health and safety to instead restrict entry and limit competition.

Leroy Jones will tell you, city and State Governments create mo-
nopolies in such low-capital businesses as taxicabs, garbage collec-

tion and recycling, choking off opportunities for new entrepreneurs.
As Art Pearson will tell you, at the Federal level the Davis-Bacon

Act by embracing prevailing wages and union job classifications de-
stroys entry level job opportunities for unskilled workers and entre-
preneurial opportunities for small firms. The net result is that the
rules of the game are rigged hopelessly against people outside the
economic mainstream.

Is there any wonder that young entrepreneurs in the inner city

today are pursuing illegitimate enterprises like drugs, when tradi-

tional routes for upward mobility are circumscribed by arbitrary
and misguided regulatory barriers?
At the Institute for Justice, we are working tenaciously to restore

economic liberty as a fundamental civil right, rebuilding judicial
protections step by step. Already the cosmetology licensing laws
that nearly destroyed Taalib-Din Uqdah and Pamela Ferrell's

Cornrows and Company right here in Washington, DC, were re-

pealed after a 10-year struggle. In Denver, Leroy Jones' Freedom
Cab this year will be the first new taxicab company to be licensed
in Denver to operate in 50 years. It g^ves the notion of "freedom
rides" a whole new meaning. But more is necessary.
This Congress and this committee can act by unshackling com-

petition in the inner-city through enterprise zones which should en-
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compass preemption of arbitrary local economic regulations. It can
repeal the Davis-Bacon Act, and thereby open the door to tens of
thousands of entry level jobs.

Pursuant to its enforcement power under the 14th Amendment,
and this is where I would quarrel with the opening statement of

Ms. Velazquez, this Congress does, in fact, have the jurisdiction

and the power, and I would submit, the obligation under the 14th
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution to enact an economic liberty

act.

That economic liberty act would allow challenges to regulations
on entry into businesses and professions that are not carefully tai-

lored to legitimate health and safety objectives.

Mr. Chairman, the economic liberty is the cornerstone of

empowerment, and empowerment is at the core of civil rights.

Taalib-Din Uqdah, Leroy Jones, Art Pearson, and millions of other
enterprising individuals deserve a chance to succeed or fail to the
limits of their abilities and their ambitions. They deserve this

chance not because of their skin color or their economic status, they
deserve this chance because they are Americans.
Mr. Chairman, and members of the committee I hope that you

will act to protect those basic liberties that are every American's
birth right, every American's civil right.

Thank you very much.
Chairman Talent. Thank you, Mr. Bolick.

Mr. Kirsanow?
Mr. Flake. Mr. Chairman, if you will, before he begins, I am

going to the floor to make a 1-minute statement; and if you would
excuse, I will be more than willing to receive whatever questions

there may be in writing.

Chairman Talent. Sure. In fact, I was going to invite you, it is

your choice if you want to come and sit with the committee and ask
questions. The Members would probably be interested in asking
you some, but I will leave that up to you.
Mr. Flake. I will do that at another time. Perhaps, we can have

a session. I think that would be good, and I will be happy to do
that with you.
Chairman Talent. That will be fine. Thank you.

Mr. Flake. Thank you.
[Mr. Bolick's statement may be found in the appendix.]

TESTIMONY OF PETER KIRSANOW, LABOR COUNSEL,
LEASEWAY TRANSPORTATION, CLEVELAND, OHIO

Mr. Kirsanow. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,

thank you for inviting me to participate on this panel. In trying to

determine what type of remarks I ought to prepare for this panel,

I was somewhat daimted by the task because there are so many
regulations that inhibit the formation of capital, inhibit businesses

of any nature: Small, big, owned by women, men, minorities, by
majority populations. I have decided I will zero in on just a few
regulations that are near and dear to me.
The eflFect of the proliferation of regulations on small businesses

and the attendant mizzard of statutes, regulations. Executive Or-

ders, rules is perhaps best summed up by de Tocqueville's familiar

observation that "The species of oppression by which democratic
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nations is menaced is unlike anjdhing else which ever before ex-

isted in the world. It does not tyrannize but it compresses, ener-
vates, extinguishes and stupefies a people until each nation be-
comes nothing more than a flock of timid sheep of which the Grov-

emment is the shepherd."
I would respectfully disagree that this is only a local issue. Fed-

eral regulations promulgated under a number of Federal statutes
such as the Family Medical Leave Act, Americans With Disabilities

Act, EPA, OSHA, the Older Workers' Benefit Protection Act, you
name it. They all may be well-intended and have varying degrees
of utility, but each of them suffocates small business by raising the
cost of doing business and by making it more difficult to do busi-
ness.
The cumulative effect, as you have already heard, is to raise

gretty formidable barriers to entry. Many of those barriers are ar-

itrary, capricious, and artificial. The regulations affect all busi-

nesses, but they have a particularly pernicious effect on small busi-
nesses, on businesses that are marginally capitalized, are labor-in-

tensive or are perceived as being credit risks.

A disproportionate share of those businesses are owned by mi-
norities and by black Americans especially. In decades past, the
poll tax limited or chilled black voting rights. In the mountains of
regulations that the Government is spewing forth on the Federal,
local, or State level really constrains small black businesses in al-

most the same fashion. They limit entry into the marketplace or
hasten departure therefrom.
By their very nature, regulations are applied to business in an

inflexible and cookie-cutter fashion. It seems that the agencies pre-

sume that all businesses are the same: They have the same capital

requirements, they have the same personnel, the same type of
labor requirements, the same type of geographic location or mar-
ket.

There are five primary barriers to entry that are established by
regulations. I will briefly mention four of them, the fifth I am more
familiar with because they deal with labor costs. This is not to di-

minish the effect of the first four that I will mention. The first bar-
rier to entry is paperwork. It has already been mentioned.
The paperwork requirements that I deal with in my profession

are nothing less than daunting. Just to hire someone requires a
minimum of eight forms. The iJavis-Bacon Act's Orwellian report-
ing requirements make some businesses reluctant to pursue public
works' contracts. The manhours spent on regulatory paperwork is

a substantial drag on productivity, and therefore profit.

Legal costs are the next barrier. Anyone with the typical statu-
tory threshold of 15 employees needs a lawyer to sort through the
maze of often conflicting regulations that may applv to a particular
business. While public policy should not be based on anecdote, I

would like to present one to you that reflects what I call the "infor-

mation overload cost"; that is, even the most savvy businessmen
must be necessarily ignorant of a large percentage of the thousands
of regulations that might be applicable to his particular industry.

I recently made a presentation at an FMLA, Family Medical
Leave Act, seminar. Afterwards, one of the attendees approached
me and said that he was unaware that imder the act he could re-
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quire that an employee first exhaust sick leave before utilizing

family medical leave. That may seem minor to some people here,
but to a small businessman that can be devastating.

At another seminar another businessman told me that he
thought that the ADA, the Americans With the Disabilities Act
prohibition against discriminating against rehabilitating or reha-
bilitated drug users required that he reasonably accommodate cur-

rent drug users. The implications of that misapprehension are pret-

ty frightening.

Speaking of the mountains of regulations, just a few days ago the
EEOC issued a 56-page memo just defining what "disability"

means under the ADA. Now, lawyers may have time to do that, but
a businessman is out there to rim his business, not to see what bu-
reaucrats at the EEOC think about disability or what it means. It

is in "Webster's," look it up.
Mr. KmsANOW. The third barrier is actual compliance costs. Fees

and licensing for certain occupations are a deterrent to entry there-

in. ADA mandates require frequent utilization of physicians or use
of NIDA-approved labs. OSHA requirements require that you fre-

quently enlist the use of ergonomics' experts and engineers.
Another anecdote, a client that I have recently underwent an

OSHA inspection. It had to do with his dock plates at a trucking
facility. Now, for 25 years this particular person had no problems
whatsoever-no complaints, no injuries. Yet, an admittedly disgnm-
tled employee in a spiteful mood sicced OSHA on this particular

employer.
Suffice it to say, no violations were found, but he had to expend

$2,000 in legal fees, $1,500 in ergonomic experts reports, and 40 or

50 lost manhours. Now, admittedly, that seems relatively minor.
GM can afford to absorb costs like that every day, but one or two
OSHA inspections will put mom and pop out of business.

The next barrier is the cost of risk or the cost of managing risk.

That includes the reserves that are necessary for most business-

men for fees and forfeitures, for the inspections and investigations,

and for the threat of litigation.

Finally, black businesses are, in particular, very labor-intensive.

You raise the cost of employing someone, and you raise the cost of

doing business. Regulations often make employees more expensive
than the value of their labor. Direct employment costs associated

with the regulations, the Federal regulations, under workers' com-
pensation, unemployment compensation, minimum wage, the

FMLA, Naturalization and Immigration, according to the Bureau of

Labor Statistics, have over the last few years raised the cost of

labor by 30 percent. That does not include the indirect costs of the
ADA and the Fair Labor Standards Act and the FMLA.
The cost to employers of administering, just administering, the

Davis-Bacon Act has been estimated at $2 billion. That does not in-

clude the paperwork costs of $200 million. That is $2,200,000,000
for a racist, discriminatory, and inflationary policy. Total adminis-
tration costs for the FMLA and the ADA are off the charts.

I have not seen any credible estimates for those. But anvtime a
small business must make accommodations, again in a cooker-cut-

ter approach, it is going to be in the thousands of dollars; and for
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larger businesses, in the millions of dollars. That is bad for black
employers, as well as employees.

Forty years ago, it was mentioned, during Jim Crow, during le-

gally sanctioned racial discrimination in employment, the unem-
ployment rates for black youth and white youth were virtually
identical. Today, after Title VII, after various rulings by the Su-
preme Court, after affirmative action and set-asides, and the erec-
tion of a mammoth apparatus for the enforcement of civil rights
laws black youth unemployment dwarfs that of white youths, and
approaches 67 percent in some areas.
When faced with federally mandated increases in the cost of

labor, an employer only has four options really, and one is to auto-
mate. Machines do not ask for overtime, and they do not file work-
ers' compensation claims. The other is to relocate to areas with less

burdensome regulatory requirements; the third is to hire tem-
porary workers; and the fourth is to lay off employees. For reasons
I will not go into in detail, the only effective option for most minor-
ity and small businesses is the fourth option; that is, to lay off em-
ployees.

The net effect of all of the regulatory burdens is to steer some
small black businesses into set-aside or affirmative action ghettos;
that is, that small businesses cannot readily absorb the federally
mandated increases in the cost of doing business and still compete
with dozens or mavbe hundreds of businesses in that particular in-

dustry. Instead, they seek refuge in set-asides, where they only
have to compete against one or two or maybe no other businesses.

It is similar to a kid who is on training wheels. He is afraid to
take the training wheels off", and he leaves them on for a long time.
Once he takes them off", he is a 12-year-old kid who is falling down
all the time.

I would like to make five modest recommendations to this com-
mittee as just a starting point.

Chairman TALE^^^. Mr. Kirsanow, if you could just do it briefly,

because we have a lot of questions.
Mr. KmSANOW. Sure. First, is to presume that every regulation

constitutes a taking. It is a rebuttable presumption, but one that
the agency promulgating the regulation should bear. Second, con-
tinue a moratorium on all regulations but the essential safety regu-
lations. Now, to suggest that is not heresy. We may have as many
regulations as we need right now.

Third, raise the threshold for the application of the regulations
to certain businesses, whether it be by dollar volume of their in-

come or by the number of employees that they employ. Fourth, re-

peal the Davis-Bacon Act. Five, where there are frivolous inspec-
tions or investigations by agencies, make the agency pay the em-
ployer's costs or the company's costs for trying to defend against
that frivolous investigation or inspection.
Thank you.
[Mr. KirsanoVs statement may be found in the appendix.]
Chairman Talent. I thank you. We have certainly had a range

of opinions offered, which is what I wanted. We are going to go to
questioning now. I am going to, except for Ms. Velazquez, enforce
the 5-minute rule. She will be going first, and then by order of ap-
pearance here we have got Ms. Kelly, Mr. Wamp, and then Mr. Lu-
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ther. I am going to hold my questions until you all have finished

yours. We do have another panel that is coming up.

Ms. Velazquez?
Ms. Velazquez. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am sorry that Mr.

Kemp had to leave. I just wanted to remind him that Dr. King was
killed on a picket line during a strike of sanitary workers fighting

for higher wages. I wanted to salute him and commend him for

bringing his name here. Also, he mentioned that Luis Munoz
Marin, former governor of Puerto Rico, he was the person in charge
of creating an economic model for Puerto Rico for industrialization

known as "Operation Bootstrap."

It happened to be that Puerto Rico has the highest unemploy-
ment rate in the Nation, close to 30 percent. Yet, American cor-

porations are doing business in Puerto Rico. They get tax incen-

tives; and for jobs creation, they get $70,000 for job creation. It

seems like former Governor Luis Munoz' economic model did not
work in Puerto Rico. It has not worked, and it will never work.
They are making the money and running away with the profits.

They are not reinvesting in Puerto Rico. That is at the center of

Mr. Kemp's and Mr. Flake's testimony today. What they said is

that the main problems for minority entrepreneurs is lack of access

to capital. I just would like to ask Mr. Kirsanow?
Mr. Kirsanow. Correct.

Ms. Velazquez. I can appreciate the barriers that you list that

pose problems for small businesses. I just would like to ask you,

how do you respond to the agreement by Mr. Kemp and Mr. Flake
that the lack of initial capital is the major obstacle to creating busi-

nesses for minorities?
Mr. KmsANOW. I think that is one of the obstacles. I am not sure

that it is the major obstacle or the only obstacle. I think that there

are a number. There are cultural obstacles, for example; there are

historical obstacles. There is still discrimination out there, and
anyone who blinds himself to that is being a fool.

But right now, as I indicated in my statement, someone needs to

examine why it is that we have such a high unemployment rate,

and I am speaking only in terms of the black community right now,
in the black community when all of these "salves" have been
passed. All of the things that 30 years ago people were saying were
the only things necessary to remedy the problems in the black com-
munity.

All of those things have been done. There is nothing else that can
be done on a legislative plain. Yet, we have a higher unemplojrment
rate, pathologies that we witness in the black community are more
pronounced than they were 30 or 40 years ago.

Ms. Velazquez. Are you telling me that redlining and red tape

and lack of financial services does not exist in the minority commu-
nities?

Mr. KmSANOW. I never said anything like that, no. I am not here

to say that those things do not exist. I will acknowledge that there

is discrimination. I personally do not have any professional knowl-

edge of those things, so I cannot speak as to redlining. I do know
that there is discrimination out there. I think almost everyone who
is of color has experienced it at some point.
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But, as I tell my own children, that is 1 of the 40 or 50 hurdles

you are going to have to face in your lifetime. Today, in 1995,

thanks to the hard work done by their parents, grandparents, and
all other Americans that may be the 30th or 35th in the list of pri-

orities as to the obstacles they are going to face in their lifetime.

Ms. Velazquez. How do you balance the protection for workers
with the needs of small businesses?
Mr. KmsANOW. I think that the best protection a worker has is

a job. When you raise the minimum wage to a level where someone
is not going to be employed, what good is a minimum wage? In my
own experience, I have had small businesses, my father had a
small business, I have clients who have small businesses. They get

to a point where the minimum wage is raised higher than the level

of worth of the person that they are employing, then the person
does not have a job anymore.
The minimum wage is great if you have a job, but it is not if you

do not have a job. In the black commimity after minimum wage in-

creases had risen very steeply after 1954, so did the unemployment
rate. As I indicated in my opening statement, what we had in 1954
was identical unemployment rates for black youths. Those are gen-

erally the individuals, young people, who are going to be receiving

the minimum wage-identical. Now the minimum wage goes into ef-

fect, three times as many black youths in some communities are

unemployed as opposed to white youths.
Ms. Velazquez. Would you suggest to abolish all protections for

workers?
Mr. KmsANOW. No, not at all. I just think that it is essential that

we get rid of many of the suffocating, paternalistic regulations and
statutes out there that are doing nothing but harming people.

There are several of them. I think that it is extremelv important
to have protections in place. We have seen through nistory that

was necessary, but I think we have gone overboard.

Ms. Velazquez. Mr. Bolick, you spoke about entry level jobs. Do
you think that that is the way to empower communities?
Mr. Bolick. Absolutely. I think that traditionally almost every

person who has succeeded in our American society, going way back
hundreds of years, has been through climbing the economic ladder.

Very few people come to this country or have ever come to this

country with a large amount of capital.

Ms. Velazquez. Where is the scientific, objective data to support
your comment, entry-level jobs will empower communities?
Mr. Bolick. I think that the evidence on that is abundant, so

much so that I think that it has become common sense. If one has
no skills or job experience, there is no way to leapfrog that person
into an economic status.

Ms. Velazquez. Well, that is not what Congressman Flake was
stating here. What he was talking about is not about lowering the
wages of the person but to enable that person with the tools that
will enable them to become self-sufficient.

Mr. Bolick. I couldn't agree more. Let me give you a concrete

example of the devastating impact of economic regulations by the
Federal Government in the context of the Davis-Bacon Act. The In-

stitute for Justice is currently pursuing a constitutional challenge
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to the Davis-Bacon Act, which Mr. Kirsanow accurately described
as a law with racist origins.

Under legislation that was sponsored by Jack Kemp and others,
tenants of public housing are given a priority in employment oppor-
tunities in public housing. In other words, if you were to have a
construction contract at, say, Kennilworth Parkside here in Wash-
ington, DC, employers who have the contracts are obligated to pre-
fer residents. The reason is because there is a high unemployment
rate and a low skill and work experience rate in those commu-
nities, not surprisingly.

As a result of Davis-Bacon wage requirements and job classifica-

tion requirements, which make helpers, the use of helpers, on
Davis-Bacon contracts illegal. We represent public housing tenant
management organizations that have not had a single resident
hired as a result of Davis-Bacon on construction projects within
public housing complexes. This is where the "engine of regulation"
drives out the ability of low income people to gain access to job op-
portunities.

Ms. Velazquez. Yes. Mr, Bolick, I think that you are familiar
with the National Apprenticeship Act?
Mr. Bolick. Yes, slightly.

Ms. Velazquez. I assume, then, that you know that it grew out
of the Davis-Bacon Act, and that it provides 20 percent of the mi-
nority workers in this Nation with a chance to learn a skill and ob-

tain nigher paying jobs. Are you familiar?
Mr. Bolick. I am familiar with the legislation. I am also familiar

with the fact that under the Davis-Bacon Act opportunities for ap-
prentices are limited by law to the number of apprentices that
Unions hire in a particular area. I am also aware that when the
Bush Administration issued a regulation that would allow for the
first time the use of unskilled helpers on construction projects that
that regulation was attacked in court and repealed in the current
administration.

I know, finally, in parallel to what Mr. Kirsanow said, that at the
time the Davis-Bacon Act was enacted the unemployment rate in

the construction industry between blacks and whites was virtually

identical. Now the black unemployment rate in the construction in-

dustry is over twice as high as the white unemployment rate in the
construction industry, notwithstanding or perhaps as a result of
the Davis-Bacon Act.

Ms. Velazquez. Are you familiar with the University of Utah
study on the effects of repealing Davis-Bacon Act?
Mr. Bolick. I am not.

Ms. Velazquez. Well, let me quote something for you from the
study. It says that "Experience fi-om the State repeals indicates

that formal apprenticeship training in construction will fall by
about 40 percent if the Davis-Bacon Act were repealed. This," again
I quote, "will hurt minorities the most."
Mr. Bolick. I think any study that would reach that conclusion

is absolutely ludicrous. The Davis-Bacon Act by its effect limits

entry level, unskilled job opportunities. Anytime you have a society,

as we do right now, where members of minority groups are dis-

proportionately represented among unskilled or low-skilled work-
ers, it is going to have a devastating impact to cutoff those kinds
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of job opportunities. I have not looked at that study. There have
been a number of studies over the years commissioned and sup-
ported by labor unions that seem contrary to reality. I do not know
whether this is yet another one of those or not.

Labor economists on both sides of the aisle, I would submit to

you, for example, the National Association of Minority Contractors,
which is hardly a conservative organization is on record as talking
about the devastating impact on minority entrepreneurs and work-
ers of the Davis-Bacon Act.

Ms. Velazquez. On the contrary, the Congressional Black
Caucasus is strongly supporting the Davis-Bacon Act.

Mr. BoLiCK. I know and that is very, very troublesome.
Ms. Velazquez. The NAACP also, a national organization is also

supporting Davis-Bacon.
Mr. BOLICK. Perhaps, that is one of the reasons why the NAACP

has lost so many members in recent years.

Ms. Velazquez. What was that?
Mr. BOLICK. I'm sorry. Perhaps, that is why the NAACP has lost

so many members in recent years.

Ms. Velazquez. I do not think that is because of that. I think
it is because of internal problems.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Talent. I thank the lady for her very insightful ques-

tions.

Ms. Kelly, I believe, is next.

Ms. Kelly. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Kirsanow, I have faced some of the problems you have raised

as a small businesswoman. I have had to make choices about
whether or not to hire and fire people based on the minimum wage.
It is not an easy choice for small businesses to make, because these
are real people who we deal with.

I am very interested in a comment you made about the effect, the
joint effect, of Federal laws has been to produce "black business
ghettos." This is not a good thing for us to have the Federal laws
doing. It does not serve our business community as a whole well

to have that happen. I wonder if you would be willing to address
that further? You were kind of rushed when you made that re-

mark.
Mr. Kirsanow. I think former Congressman Kemp has spoken

eloquently on that issue, in terms of enterprise zones. I am not nec-
essarily a fan of enterprise zones, per se. I would like to see the
entire United States be an enterprise zone.
My own experience growing up in Cleveland, Ohio, and still liv-

ing in Cleveland, Ohio, is that when I was growing up there were
a number of black businesses, mom and pop, small businesses, all

over the place. To get a haircut, to get your car washed, you went
down the street. There was a laundry and there were grocery
stores; they had everything. Now I understand that throughout
American small businesses have been harmed by the Walmarts,
and so on and so forth, but there are still lots of small businesses
out there.

Now, there are a lot of reasons beyond simply Federal regula-
tions and statutes for the expansion of the vast urban wasteland
we have in many inner cities. I would submit that one of the prin-



24

cipal reasons is that it is extremely difficult now to be a business-
man anywhere.

If you are a black businessman with all of the additional obsta-

cles that you have to face-and one of the major obstacles obviously
is capitalization-those Federal regulations are the trip wire. They
are the straw that breaks the camel's back, so that you cannot sus-

tain a business for long or it simply stifles you or inhibits you from
even going into business.

In Cleveland, a lot of the politicians and pundits would say that
one of the reasons why you have so many wastelands, as I indi-

cated, was because in the 1960's there had been riots. After the
riots no one wanted to have businesses there. Well, most of the
businesses were black. They were not going anjrwhere.

I understand that crime and the crime tax is one of the reasons
why businesses have fled or decided to shut down or not open up
in the beginning. But Federal regulation also expanded contem-
poraneously with the disappearance of business.

I think it would be interesting to study, and a number of studies

have been done, whether or not those two factors are corelated. I

believe that they are. There are a number of statistics and studies

that show that they are.

As you have indicated, my own personal experience is that when
the minimum wage goes up, and I am only talking in an anecdotal
framework right now, but I believe it was the Bureau of Labor Sta-

tistics, approximately 6 or seven years ago came out with studies-

not studies but statistics that would show that for every 10 cent
increase in the minimum wage, approximately 50,000 jobs were de-

stroyed. Who knows how many more were inhibited from even
being created?

Anecdotally, when my father's own small business was still in ex-

istence and the minimum wage would go up, there would be a per-

son who would disappear. A family member would be hired to re-

place that person.

That is not good. It is good for someone who, thank God, kept
his job. It is good for the people in the job classifications imme-
diately above that person, because the wage level would get
bumped up so you can maintain the strata that is developed
through seniority and for other reasons. Eventually, everyone is

going to be harmed by that.

Ms. Kelly. Thank you very much.
Chairman Talent. Mr. Wamp?
Mr. Wamp. Mr. Chairman, thank you.

As a member of the Speaker's Task Force on Minority Issues and
as a freshman Republican Member who has a higher percentage of

African-Americans on my staff than I have voters or people in my
district, practicing what I preach, and as a Member who came with
a strong civil rights background, active leadership with the United
Neg^o College Fund, the Urban League in Chattanooga, the M.L.
King Redevelopment Corporation, and a track record to this proc-

ess, I welcome everyone here to this debate today.

I say that if I could, humbly and respectfully, request as we
begin this debate in Washington over the coming months and even
years that people try to check your attitudes at the door, so that
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we can have a good, honest, decent, forthright discussion as Ameri-
cans, as human beings about this issue.

I particularly would like to offer my appreciation for some coura-

geous people, in my estimation, who are minorities within a minor-
ity, being anyone who believes in conservative policies within the
African-American population are really in a box. They are a minor-
ity within a minority. They still have all the disadvantages in our
society of being black, and then they have the disadvantages within
their own friends of being conservative. It takes a special kind of

courage.
Peter, I want to commend you and others for doing that. What

we are trying to do is separate the mythology and the emotion from
good, sound public policy. As we do that, I think we need to be
careful to look at some of the cause and effect. I want to ask a
question that may not even apply directly to regulation and paper-
work, what we are here to address.
Chairman TALENT. I will say to the gentleman that after Sec-

retary Kemp's testimony we have gotten so far away from regula-
tion and paperwork, that I do not think it matters.
Mr. Wamp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That is right, I will follow

down that line. Madam Minority Ranking Member, let me say to

you that many of these are local issues, but that does no mean that
we cannot on a Federal level address the real problems and collec-

tively develop consensus on what needs to be done all the way to

the bottom of the spectrum.
Ms. Velazquez. May I?

Mr. Wamp. I yield.

Ms. Velazquez. I thought that that was contrary to the spirit of

the unfunded mandate that we just passed in the House.
Mr. Wamp. Your point is well taken. I understand the difference,

reclaiming my time. But simply to say that we closed our only vo-

cational educational institution in our city school system. I am
strongly encouraging the development of vocational education as an
option, so that entry level kids have some hope in our local school

systems.
They can say when they are in the 7th and 8th grades, "I am

not going to have to go all the way through college or graduate
school to have a job," and many of them do. They lose that hope
right then and there, instead of thinking, "If I could just get

through high school, I would have a decent job. If I could just claim
that one technical expertise."

We have got companies, manufacturers particularly in East Ten-
nessee, that are asking those school systems to develop high school

level vo-tech programs so that in 4 months they can teach them the
trade on-site, in the school for exactly what they will be doing a
month after they graduate at a decent entry level position. These
are the kinds of solutions to developing some hope in our inner-

cities.

I also want to say this, and just kind of open it for discussion,
if either of you want to comment on this, because it is not a direct

question. I had a big summit last week in East Tennessee, and we
had a guy come in that has just done marvelous things in Chat-
tanooga. We are turning a brownfield site, an old glass plant, in
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the heart of an African-American community called Alton Park, in
Chattanooga, turning it around, redeveloping that brownfield site.

In that area we have got environmental problems now. We have
African-Americans that have concentrated to that low-income level.

They cannot climb out of that area. They are living in that area,
and the major manufacturer left. The place is iust, like, running
down by the hour. We are going to rehabilitate that brownfield site

and try to put it back into practical use, shooting and infusing life

back into this area.

The guy said what I think President Clinton said on the cam-
paign trail, "It is the economy, stupid."

He said, "In this day and age, it is the economy, stupid."
It is the cities, as Secretary Kemp and others have articulated,

where we have this kind of erosion and this kind of collapse is in
the cities. We are not a city with the kind of problems of-I will not
name others, but other cities that are well-known that are much
larger that have problems.

In this small way, Chattanooga has taken a quantum leap in the
right direction on turning brownfield sites around, addressing the
environmental problems of the industrial legacy from the past, and
then trying to educate children is what I am encouraging on that
level. Comments on developing good, sound policies in these areas?
Mr. KmSANOW. I am all in favor of policies such as that, but if

I could simply-I may be revealing my ignorance with respect to his-

tory. But I think someone asked, I beReve it was Frederick Doug-
lass, "What shall be done with the Negro?"
He said, "Do nothing with the Negro. Your doing with him has

gotten us into the position that we are in." That was during slav-

ery.

I think the individuals from the Institute of Justice are simply
saying, "Do not be paternalistic. Unshackle us." We C£in do every-
thing that anyone else can do, provided it is an even playing field.

We do not want any special advantages. We are not little babies.

We are just as capable as anyone else. To the extent you treat us
that way, that is how people are generally going to act, the way
thev are treated. With respect to vocational programs, I have no
problems with those.

Let me just give you just another anecdote. Years ago, I was
chief labor counsel for the city of Cleveland. There was a Federal,
and there still is, policy in effect, the Job Training Partnership Act,
a laudable program. Everyone liked it. I think it was an improve-
ment, a quantum leap improvement, over CETA, where we spent
billions of dollars and employment rates actually went down.
A study was done with respect to the Job Training Partnership

Act, which was partially sponsored by Republicans. Lo and behold,
an individual, similarly situated individuals-same background, edu-
cational level, income level, training, so on and so forth-to the ex-

tent you could find someone like that, or two people like that, one
of those individuals would go into Job Training Partnership Act
and another individual simply went his own way.

It was revealed that the individual who went into the Job Train-
ing Partnership Act was, and I forget the percentage points, less

likely to be employed 2 years later than the employee who did not
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go into the Job Training Partnership Act. Individuals who are self-

empowered will do what is necessary to survive.

That does not mean there is not a role for Government. As
Congressperson Velazquez says, there is a great role for Govern-
ment. However, individuals by themselves will always exceed, more
often than not, what Government will try to do to them by leaps
and bounds.
Mr. Wamp. I would echo that. Some of the most exciting things

that are happening at the local level by both Democratic and E^-
publican administrations involve precisely that, transferring power
from Government and the bureaucracy to individuals.

Two examples of that are tenant management of public housing,
which is happening right here in Washington, DC, and elsewhere.
Another to cite is Puerto Rico. We had talked about sgprevious gov-
ernor, but the current governor. Governor RossellG, has cham-
pioned an educational reform program that has turned public
schools over to the communities, and vouchers to parents. The edu-
cational opportunities are accelerating and expanding as a result.

Mr. Wamp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Talent. I thank the gentleman.
I am going to take a couple of minutes and just ask some of the

more urgent questions that I had. I do not know what your sched-
ules are, perhaps you could be available later. I do not want to

postpone this second panel any longer than I have to, but I may
have some more questions for you later, if you are available, other-

wise I can do them privately.

Since I have a lot of questions, I will cut to what I think are the
most important ones. Mr. Bolick, it has to do really with your pro-

posed Economic Civil Rights Act. I think we have to be sensitive

to the concern Ms. Velazquez raised about local and State discre-

tion. I mean, I think it unlikely that Congress is going to preempt
licensure laws on a broad basis, and probably it is inappropriate to

do that certainly as a first step.

Let me ask you a couple of questions about what you have pro-

posed. There are a lot of barriers to entry that the States may raise

that are the result of assumptions about economic policy, for exam-
ple, with which I may disagree, but which a lot of people do not
disagree with.

For example, they may say-just pulling one out of midair-a physi-
cian cannot get into the business of running physical therapy clin-

ics because he refers people to physical therapy. The whole idea of

tying, as a theory of monopoly, in order to prevent monopolistic
practices, the States may raise barriers to entry. There are other
preferences the States may raise which have the effect of being a
barrier for veterans' preferences, for example.
Now, one question I want to ask you is, would your Economic

Civil Rights Act make that impossible for the States and localities

to do? If so, is there some way of making it more limited to allow
that?
The other thing is, is there some way we can identify occupa-

tions, trades which are the most frequent in an unregulated envi-
ronment that would be the most frequently used by minorities and,
indeed, disadvantaged Americans from all ethnic and racial back-
grounds as a means of upward mobility and perhaps clear the way
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on those, where the barrier to entry is less Hkely to be serving

some neutral philosophy? Would you comment on that please?

Mr. BOLICK. Well, I would start with an anecdote from Mr.
Uqdah, who will be testifying on the next panel, when he con-

fronted the array of regulations and limitations on access into the

hair braiding profession, he observed that they were not after all

doing brain surgery. There is a big difference between hair braid-

ing and brain surgery, but you would not know that necessarily,

given the regulatory apparatus that had been developed around
that profession.

What we have in mind with the Economic Civil Rights Act is

simply this, if an individual tries to break into a profession and is

prevented from doing that because that individual is black or fe-

male, that person will have access to the Federal courts to say,

"Listen, you cannot do that. It is a violation of my civil rights."

If that same person goes in and says, "I cannot start a taxicab

business, because the existing companies own this Government and
this regulatory board and they refuse to allow any newcomer to

come in," and that person goes to Federal court today, that person
will be shown the door very promptly.
That, too, it seems to me, is a violation of that person's civil

rights, as imderstood by the framers of the 14th Amendment. They
understood that that was exactly what these Governments were
doing was preventing people from using their skills and gaining
entry into the marketplace, and that is a denial of civil rights.

I would never propose the Federal preemption of licensing laws.

The kinds of laws that go to public health and safety are explicitly

delegated to State and local Governments and there should be no
disturbance of that. This is a very modest objective, and that is

simply, that if the Government denies entry, completely denies

entry, into a chosen profession or a business, the Government
merely has to justify that regulation as being in some manner re-

lated to public healtn or safety objectives.

If it can do that, the fact that it drew the line in one place rather

than another would not be suspect. But if it drew that line to pro-

tect the monopoly that currently has it, that is illegitimate, it

seems to me. The law should give recourse to people like Uqdah
and Jones in that kind of context.

I cannot remember the last part. Oh, are there some professions?

Yes. We have been focusing at the Institute for Justice on the bot-

tom rungs of the economic ladder. Jobs and professions and busi-

nesses like taixicabs, like garbage collection, like construction in-

dustry jobs that traditionally have provided upward mobility for

people with either little capital or few skills. A catalog of those and
the regulations that prohibit entry or restrict entry is exactly what
we are about.
Chairman Talent. I would be very interested in that. I appre-

ciate Mr. Wamp's statement about "Checking our attitudes at the

door." I do not think it is possible, or maybe appropriate, to do en-

tirely. I mean, we are all here because we have attitudes. This

problems is so great that we all have to be at least open. I mean,
those who come from a strong conservative background, as I do,

have to be open to the issue.
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Look, can Government by influencing private investment make a

difference here? If we are reasonably certain it will work, I think

we have to be open to it. Similarly, maybe people of the other per-

suasion have to be open to the fact that maybe Government back-

ing off in a particular area, if it makes a difference, will really help.

If we can formulate that kind of a list, these are jobs, the key

you said to me was, they are areas that require limited capital.

Until we can solve the problem of capital, if we can clear the areas,

clear entry to jobs that do not require as much, like taxicabs, we
can maybe make a real difference.

I do not want to take up time that really ought to go to the sec-

ond panel. If you two could stick around maybe, because there are

a couple of other questions I would just like to ask for the record.

If that is a problem, let me know, and we will do it another time.

Ms. Velazquez. Mr. Chairman?
Chairman Talent. Yes?

Ms. Velazquez. I just would like to ask unanimous consent to

insert for the record a study that I made reference to before, and

also another study that was conducted by the Cornell Institute for

Women and Work and the Institute for Women's Policy Research

to be included in the record.

Chairman Talent. Sure, without objection.

[The material may be found in the appendix.]

Chairman Talent. All right I thank you two gentlemen very

much and again want to reiterate the committee's gratitude to you

and to Mr. Flake and Mr. Kemp for being here. We will call the

second panel up if they can come.

Chairman Talent. All right. Well, there is only Ms. Velazquez

and myself left, but I can assure the three of you have our undi-

vided attention. Other Members will be coming in. That unfortu-

nately committee hearings are often scheduled on a conflicting

basis and Members have to come back and forth, but I certainly

hope and believe some will be dropping by.

The second panel, I want to thank all of you for being here. I

know that you are all engaged in occupations and important lead-

ership roles in the community, and I do appreciate your taking the

time to come here today. I will just introduce all three of you first,

and then we will go to Mr. Jones first.

Our first witness will be Mr. Leroy Jones, the president and

founder of Freedom Cabs, Inc., from Denver, Colorado; Mr. Taalib-

Din Uqd^, the co owner of Cornrows and Co., in Washington, DC;

and Mr. Art Pearson, the sole proprietor of Art Pearson Electric

and General Contracting Co., from Tacoma, Washington. I thank

all three of you.

In addition, Ms. Aleta Robinson-Wilson, who is the chairperson

of the National Association of Minority businesses was scheduled

to testify today. She had a last minute conflict and could not make
it. I do have her written statement, and without objection I will

submit it for the record.

Mr. Jones, if you can and feel comfortable doing so, please sum-

marize your written testimony. Go ahead.

91-562 0-96-2
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TESTIMONY OF LEROY JONES, PRESmENT AND FOUNDER,
FREEDOM CABS, INC., DENVER, COLORADO

Mr. Jones. My name is Leroy Jones, and I am from Denver, Col-
orado. I am really quite embarrassed tx) talk about my situation,
because even though it means a lot to me personally and it affects

a lot of Americans like me, the real issue is conceptually larger.

Whenever I get a chance to speak to people, I am glad to have the
opportunity to tell them of my plight.

Listening to the people who spoke here today, I really feel that
I agree with what has been said, but I think it needs to be concep-
tualized. Economics as far as me as a small businessman, as a taxi-

cab owner, regulations of Government, as far as what problems it

has caused me in getting my cab company, really does not reach
the level of which we should be talking on this subject. It is more
of, what is good for America? How do we keep society and the con-
cepts of what it means to be an American alive.

As I see it, as I have felt it, as I have experienced it, it is all

based on economics. I will say that by giving the example that dur-
ing slavery times the thing that kept slaves, slaves was not the
color of their skin, but the laws that were passed that said they
could not own property and they could not own money.
Nowadays, I am very upset because I believe in America. I be-

lieve in the system. I believe in the dream that has been promised
to me and my children, but I do not see the reality of it. It is hard
for me to teach my children to believe in that dream, to convince
them that it is worthy because I do not see the practice.

We all say the pledge of allegiance. We all say, "I pledge alle-

giance to the United States of America," and we finish it up with
liberty and justice for all." I am afraid that all I see in "justice"

is j-u-s-t u-s, just us with money. All I see in "liberty" is j-u-s-t u-
s, just us with liberty with money.

I look at all the other Americans that bought into this dream
that are saying there has to be an outcome for me to believe in it.

No system can exist without you believing in it. It cannot function
and it cannot work.

I look at our Government and I see this duality of practice and
speech. I see them say, "We want to solve your problems. We want
to do this. We want to help you." Then I look at the practice, and
it is always the opposite of what they say.

There is a saying that says, "Who is the enemy? The enemy is

us." We have a Grovemment that is formed by the people, for the
people." Yet, it hurts the people. We have a system that we say is

free enterprise, and yet we deny free enterprise every turn of the
page. We protect everybody else at the expense of other Americans.
We get justice for everyboay else at the expense of the other Ameri-
cans.

I look at Africa, it is one of the most richest continents that ex-

ists. The reason why there is nothing that is ever going to come
of that continent is because of the tribalism that is practiced
throughout that country. It cannot be overcome.
We in this countir say, "One Nation-indivisible," and yet we do

not practice that. We continue to divide this country up and make
divisive programs that will disallow us from ever becoming the true
ideal of what we speak. We have all become tribal. It is, "Am I a
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conservative? Am I liberal? Am I a Democrat? Am I a Republican?

Am I black? Am I white?" Am I all these things. We say this pledge

every single day, and it says, "indivisible." We are Americans. We
are here with a Grovemment that is not supposed to work for its

own fulfillment, but for the fulfillment of the people.

Now, I have heard everybody speak on economics, and I agree

with them. Economics is the very fabric which this whole coimtry

is tied together. Our framers of the Constitution made this an ex-

periment in history by guaranteeing us the right to own property

and to do business, not to work for somebody.
A free man did not have to work for somebody; and, when he did

work for somebody, they called that indentured slavery. Somehow
the concept of our lives has gotten to the right to have a job is the

be-all and end-all of everything, and it is not: It is the right to do
business.

Starting a cab company in Denver, I had to get a law changed-
with no money. It took me almost 4 years. After that I went to the

banks to get money to capitalize my business. I was told I had to

be in business for 18 months. I then had to go to a hearing for 6

months at the Public Utilities Commission that cost me over

$85,000, just to get permission to have a company.
Now, after I've gotten permission and I am trying to open up my

doors, I go to the insurance company and they say, "We will not

insure you, unless you put a $50,000 bond down to guarantee that

you will pay the first $5,000 on any accident claim," when the Pub-
lic Utilities Commission's law says that the insurance company
that you get should have to pay the first dollar.

There are only 11 companies in the country that will insure taxi-

cab companies, and only three that are licensed in Denver. As a
person with no collateral, no money, and no history I have gotten

to this point. I am very frustrated, but I am still going to open my
business and I am still going to succeed in spite of all of those

things.

People look at me and say, "Well, wow, you have done a great

thing. How could you stick with it?" If I had known what it was,

I would not have stuck with it. It was just piece, by piece, by piece.

But every time I have won, it is only a battle; it is not part of the

war. The finistration is, why are these obstacles in front of me?
If I am able to go through this, what do the other Americans

have to go through that cannot speak as well as I can, that cannot
understand or perceive things as well as me? I am just saying this

Grovemment needs to get onto the page of really working for the

people. It needs to stop making new rules, new regulations, and
start looking at some of the things that were made to protect peo-

ple at the expense of other Americans and abolish those things,

then start enforcing some of the ones that exist that are good, so

that there are not loopholes.

That way when I tell my son, "Hey, it is important for you to fol-

low, to believe, to work, to do all those things," he has a reason to

say, "Yes, dad, I know." Right now, if he really could understand
and could look at it, he would say, "Get out of here. You're a liar.

You're crazy. You're stupid. Why would you believe in something
like that?"



32

That is what I am here to speak about. This country is falHng
apart, and it is falHng apart because we continue to allow other
people to divide us. We continue to let other people live off the
sweat of other people's backs. The only thing I have to offer to my
children is the sweat ofiF my back. Hopefully, they can take that
and raise it to a higher level. If people are allowed to continue to
live off the sweat of my back, then I am doomed to be a laborer,
my child is doomed to be a laborer, and we never get out of the
mire, the quagn^ire.

If I am given an opportunity, something that I am supposed to

be guaranteed as an American citizen, the opportunity to do busi-
ness, and the Government regulations are only there to protect and
are safeties for other Americans and nothing else, do you know
what happens if I fail? I will just get right back up and try again.
If there is no opportunity, I have to give up. There is no hope; there
is no being. That is what I want to say.

I have listened to everybody. My story, like I said, I could really

be personal and say, "On, it was me, it affected me," but that is

not the point. The point is, What do I leave to my grandchildren?
What am I fighting for? Why did I go through this whole time-
never being arrested, never breaking the law, never doing any-
thing-always trying to go through the system? What did I go
through this for, if the reward is not there at the end?

I just want to say to this panel that, yes. Government regulations
inhibit many Americans from getting their foot in. In the cab mar-
ket, if you go into any city most of the people who drive the cabs
cannot speak English. If you cannot speak English, how can you go
into the job market and get a job? How can you go somewhere and
raise up?
You can drive, and that is the thing. You need to remain free

long enough so that you can better your English, so that you can
get a better education, so that you can bridge careers. That is what
you find in the cab market. Yet, you find regulations there restrict-

ing people from being owners in that business. There is no jus-

tification for it.

Why does it have to cost me so much money to buy a car, insure
it, and put it on the street? These are the types of regulations that
exist. These are the things that frustrate me. These are the things
that I see and I say, "The answer is simple. Just open opportunity
for everybody."

Let no American have the advantage of holding somebody down
so that they can ^o ahead. Let everybody exist and compete. The
ones who fall, it is not the end of the world. They are not dead.
They can always get back up and compete again, because the op-

portunity is there.

When you close off their opportunity, those people do not have
a chance. Then it becomes the Government's responsibility to cre-

ate a welfare state, to create a place to take care of people who do
not have opportunities to take care of themselves.

I am going to close in a minute, but I want to say one thing. The
first welfare system that I have seen in existence was not the wel-
fare system that we have right now. It was the welfare system that
was created for the American Indian. First, his right to live was
taken away from him by the killing of the buffalo, his main source
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of food. Then he was put on a reservation and he was told, "If you
stay here, we will give vou money." He disabled his whole heritage,

his whole tribe, and all the generations that came after him, be-

cause he no longer could fend for himself.

In our current situation, I am looking at this. I am seeing what
is going on. I look and I see the farmers are no longer farmers; they
are corporations. Again, the food source has been taken away. I can
never be free. I can never own my own property. I can never sit

down and live and be a free American, because I cannot grow mv
own food. I have a property tax I have to pay. I have to now sell

myself to somebody else to work for them in order to survive.

Is that the Government that we created? Is that what it was for?

Please tell me because I need to know what to tell my children.

Thank you.
Chairman Talent. Well, thank you, Mr. Jones. When you sum-

marize, you summarize your testimony. That was wonderful.
Mr. Uqdah, and please take your time. Do not feel like you are

under any constraints.

[Mr. Jones' statement may be found in the appendix.]

TESTIMONY OF TAALIB-DIN ABDUL UQDAH, CO-OWNER,
CORNROWS AND COMPANY, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. Uqdah. Mr. Chairman, it seems as though the last person
that sat in this chair also gave a passionate speech, and I kind of

feel like Clint now. I have to try to follow someone who has spoken
from their heart, and has certainly moved me.

I, too, would like to take exception to the notion that my issue

is local. The small business that I own I could not today go any-
where in the United States and open up another location. I am pro-

hibited by every State law in this country from moving from my
present location at 14th and Jefferson Street to anywhere else in

the United States. That, in mv mind, makes this a Federal issue,

because I do not have the freedom to go anywhere else in this coun-
try but to Northwest Washington, DC.

I am the co-owner of a small business in Washington, 43 years
old, a 1970 graduate of Eastern High School here, in the District.

I have been self-employed for over 20 years. I am not an economist,

have never been to college, and have no background in law, ac-

counting, medicine, or politics.

I tell you these things about myself in order for you to get a clear

picture as to my perspective on life as it relates to small business
and my testimony before this committee today. It is not based on
any theories of law, science, or economics.

I am affiliated with no wing of any particular political party, nor
do I hold any memberships in any private clubs or secret organiza-
tions. I am a practicing Moslem. Islam is my religion. As such, I

have a great deal of respect for commerce and trade.

My purpose here it two-fold: First, to discuss the problem of bur-
densome Federal and local regulation and how it affects the small
business entrepreneur; and, second, what I perceive may be some
of the solutions to those problems created in our recent present.

Just at the point that I felt we had our legislative battle won in

the District of Columbia, the "regulatory monster" has now reared
its ugly head, and once again I find myself fighting the very same
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people who opposed us over 13 years ago-as before, losing both time
and money to a Government entity that couldn't care less as to

what burden it is placing on its businesses.
The last 48 hours have been difficult ones for me and my associ-

ate. For it is within this timeframe that I have learned that the
process of promulgating regulation has nothing whatsoever to do
with the passage of the actual law. When you live and do business
in DC, this seems to be the rule and not the exception.

"DC" does not stand for the "District of Columbia," but "doors
closed:" Doors closed to business, doors closed to free enterprise,
doors closed to economic liberty. You only have the right to pursue
a legitimate enterprise if the Government has legitimized the en-
terprise, and whether the law or regulation has any relevancy to

the profession is irrelevant.

Our small business entrepreneurial problem here in America is

that we have developed a false sense of capitalistic freedom. On the
one hand, we claim to be capital of the free world, the harbingers
of the free enterprise system, where the free flow of ideas and the
ways and means to implement those notions are at a premium;
when, in reality, we are a country of stringent rules and regula-
tions and the crusher of dreams and aspirations.

There is nothing free about our capitalism, our economics, or our
enterprise. It was the free flow of ideas and the opportunity to take
risks to work on those ideas that put this country ahead, but today
there is not a business or an invention that exists that would have
been allowed to advance, grow, and flourish if present-day regu-
latory schemes were put in place back then.
There are many successiul American businesses whose humble

beginnings would today be recognized as illegal activity. Could you
imagine ^eat inventors and entrepreneurs being fined or arrested
for practicing or operating a business without a license? You cer-

t£iinly cannot imagine it then. The question is, why are we doing
it now? Why are we more determined now than ever to make it

more and more difficult to identify, recognize, and support our
American enterprise system?
Today, there is no n-ee enterprise system, only enterprise. There

is no freedom, and there is certainly no system-only chaos, confu-

sion, frustration, bewilderment, and the infamous red tape. We
cannot, on the one hand, claim to be economically free while, on the
other, refuse to give our citizenry the opportunity and the right to

exercise on that freedom.
Along with this freedom comes a sense of responsibility and

trust. Every day what we say to our American citizenry is that we
do not trust you. Granted, , laws show our civility, they show our
sense of order, and our respect for Government and leadership.
Regulations governing those laws only say to our citizeniy that
"We cannot trust you to follow the law as we have written it.

Licensing schemes, our local and Federal Government's "cash
cow," in many cases knowingly participates in a "closed shop" men-
tality of unionized and nonunion-type activity by shutting out unli-

censed individuals, preventing the emergence of anything that re-

sembles what the present licenseholders will claim to be "unfair
competition," and only demonstrates the licenseholders' ability to

be able pass a nondescript "standardized" test.



35

There is nothing within the hcense or regulatory scheme of any
Federal or local jurisdiction which can claim licenses are more pro-

ficient at their craft than nonlicensees. The food at a licensed res-

taurant does not taste any better because it is licensed, and is cer-

tainly not any cleaner based on a licensing criteria.

Burdensome regulations are simply a means to justify the hiring
of Government workers, bloating the bureaucracy, running up the
deficit, setting up little Governments within the Government,
cloaked as a board or a commission, which are made up of practi-

tioners within the Government industry to keep out the
undesirables-the imlicensed practitioners-perpetuating the estab-
lishment of training schools, which the Government licenses and
regulates; then charges perpetual and escalating fees to an
unsuspecting public who thinks their Government has their best
interest at heart because their motto is, "We're doing it all for you-
public health and safety."

Yes, my proposal would put people out of a iob, but not out of
work. Since when has there been a constitutional amendment guar-
anteeing any individual a job in Government, but will not give me
the same guarantees to operate my own business without Govern-
ment interference? Licensing and regulatorv schemes have become
a legitimized Government racket, disguisea as small business en-
trepreneurship.
Mr. Chair, the District's lack of sophistication in the process of

Government and its effects on the small businessmen is mind-bog-
gling. It does not take a high school graduate to figure out that the
quickest and easiest solution to these myriad of problems is de-
regulation now and forever.

The first thing I would recommend to this committee is to de-
regulate all trade and service industries, make our free enterprise
system free again. For those who want licenses, they would still be
available, but both the practitioner and the public would have
choices.

The decision to get or not to get a license or to patronize or not
patronize a licensed or unlicensed establishment would be left up
to the individual, not the Government. Local and Federal officials

need to have more respect for the intelligence of the American pub-
lic, that they can decide whether they want a licensed or unli-

censed mechanic.
Adoption of Clint Bolick's proposed Economic Civil Rights Act

would be the first step in accomplishing this goal toward deregula-
tion, mandating both Federal and local jurisdictions to release their
stranglehold on small business enterprise in America,

It would further open up a free market economy, where compa-
nies like mine could take our businesses across the country assist-

ing in welfare reform by providing training, jobs, products, fac-

tories, and much needed tax revenues to the local and Federal
economy.

Further, I would set in place a mechanism for redefining what
a small business is. Presently, most local and Federal jurisdictions

consider a small business any business which grosses between $3
and $8 million a year. What local and Federal officials have done
is to declassify the rest of us as "minuscule," nonconsequential, ex-

pendable, simply an afterthought. This is unacceptable.
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Expansion and support of public and private entrepreneurial ini-

tiatives is a must. The incorporation of business practices and prin-
ciples into the present school curriculum along with basic skills is

imperative, with an emphasis on innovative projects which encour-
age creativity and thought, establishing public/private partnerships
with emerging industries, and tracking students for those positions
at an early age, grant tax incentives for any business that adopt
an entire school district, a school or simply a classroom or a stu-
dent.

Finally, I would urge this committee to include us, the small
business entrepreneur in the process of Grovernment. We have no
lobbyists. There is no one in Government looking out for our- inter-

ests. How can you possibly begin to understand my plight, when
you have never talked to me or someone like me?
What I am saying to this Honorable Chair and this committee

is simply this. Inviting us here to offer testimony that we have
given today does not make me feel any better, nor am I disillu-

sioned to think that this presentation makes me a part of some
great legislative process, until I see some tangible results.

I seriously wonder at times do legislators truly understand our
plight if you do not hear from us constantly and consistently as
other lobbying or interest groups until it is too late? If I do not ask
to represent myself, who will represent me?
We are turning to you looking for some help or, at the very least,

some relief. I am drowning in a cesspool of Government regulation
and mean spiritedness which even now I am still learning has
nothing to do with me operating my establishment but only de-
signed to place me and others like me in check. We need your help.

I have never begged or pleaded for anything in my life, but I am
doing it now. I am asking that you please get the District Govern-
ment off my back. I cannot move forward businessly and continue
to fight them at the same time. It is a losing battle for us and for

them. America's small business community will never prosper
again. So long as our Government is holding us down with needless
regulation or threats of intimidation, both of us will lose. We can-
not win. We need your help.

I thank you for your time and your consideration. I will respect-
fully address any questions or comments that this committee may
have. Thank you.
Chairman Talent. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Pearson?
[Mr. Uqdah's statement may be found in the appendix.]

TESTIMONY OF ART PEARSON, SOLE-PROPRIETOR, ART PEAR-
SON ELECTRICAL AND GENERAL CONTRACTING COMPANY,
TACOMA, WASHINGTON
Mr. Pearson. I am going to read my testimony also, but before

I start the reading portion, there was a person who asked of the
first panel about the minority involvement in the apprenticeship
training program. That is part of mv problem with the Davis-Bacon
Act. The Davis-Bacon Act is a real broad thing, so I am going to

try to answer that question.
Specifically in my area, I have been in this business and have

been licensed, since this past June third, for 25 years. I think I
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know my business. In other words, I know my business and I study
my business in every aspect. I also was involved with the electrical

apprenticeship training progfram.
Over the years, I was confused by a lot of things as they took

place. I did not understand, until I was able to look back and put
some of these things together. The apprenticeship training in my
area, when the contract requirement called for minority trainees,

the union goes out and recruits these trainees and puts them into,

women and minorities into, apprenticeship training programs.
My real problem is there is no success ratio. Now, I am talking

about as far back as 1970. As the contract requirement is filled by
the apprentices from contract to contract and from year to year, it

seems that it is replaced by other apprentices, and no success ratio.

As I read my testimony, I am going to give you some counts in my
area of black workers versus total construction workers in my area.

I guess I should have started with this sentence first. But any-
way, my name is Art Pearson. I am an electrical and general con-

tractor out of Tacoma, Washington. My business involves mostly
heavy highway street lighting and traffic signal. All of this comes
under the Davis-Bacon Act.

Art Pearson Electrical and General Contracting Company is a
union shop that employs more than a dozen employees. Because we
are a union shop, and unions in Washington State are mainly
white, nearly all of my employees are white. Of Washington State's

109,000 construction workers, only 2,000 are black.

I am concerned about the rising tide of joblessness and violence

in the black community. As an African-American, I believe I am ob-

ligated to improve the quality of life in my community. The Davis-
Bacon Act is standing in mv way.

I would also like to add to that particular paragraph that be-

cause of my past background and the longevity of learning my
trade, I think I am sort of an authority to speak out on this. You
know, I have heard over the years a number of people who rule-

makers and lawmakers call on to make these little speeches. How-
ever, these people are not from the construction industry.

I feel like with almost 30 years behind me in this particular busi-

ness-actually, I started in construction when I was 11 years old-I

feel that that makes me somewhat of maybe not an expert, but sort

of an authoriW on what I am about to tell you.
As many of you know, the Davis-Bacon was passed in 1931 at

the urging of unions. With the Davis-Bacon, Congress neutralized

black labor competition by requiring that prevailing wage rates be
paid on all Federal projects valued at more than $2,000-in essence,

all Federal-financed construction projects.

In practice, "prevailing wage" rates mean union wages, effec-

tively counting out any laborers who could not command union-
scale wages. Well-capitalized companies could afford union wages,
but their unions usually kept blacks out. Nonunionized businesses-
which were often less well-capitalized-could not afford to pay these
prohibitive rates on labor.

Today, construction unions still try to keep the black labor pool

out, and many black-owned firms are still small and nonunion. To
seek Davis-Bacon contracts, minority firms must not only pay in-

flated wages and adopt inefficient work practices, but must expose
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themselves to huge compliance costs and threats of litigation and
union harassment.
Few minority-owned firms win Davis-Bacon contracts, and many

others give up trying. The widening net of Federal Government
means that, in practice, few contracts available to my business, for

example, are outside the power of this act.

Davis-Bacon remains a principal reason why blacks are imem-
ployed at twice the rate as whites in the construction trade. With
less than 13 percent of the American people involved in organized
labor, it is reasonable to ask why the Federal Government is

spending Vsth of every project dollar limiting the access of the
other 87 percent of the work force. Union activity is protected in

an array of policies and agencies. There is no reason why the Fed-
eral Government should also be the union steward.

If the Davis-Bacon Act were removed today, I, and other contrac-
tors like me, would be able to hire more people for the same or
fewer tax dollars, complete more projects for the same tax dollars,

and complete them more quickly.
Davis-Bacon is a waste of taxpayers' funds. The act accounts for

20 percent of the $232 billion construction business nationally. Re-
pealing the act would save the Federal Government approximately
$1 billion on construction costs and $100 million in administrative
costs each year. Costs of compliance with the act for the construc-
tion industry totals nearly $190 million a year. The act's repeal
would also result in the creation of an estimated 31,000 new con-
struction jobs, most of which would go to members of minority
groups.

Stated as simply as possible, Davis-Bacon means Federal Gov-
ernment contractors should hire fewer workers but pav them exor-
bitant wages, work on fewer construction projects, and to complete
them more slowly.

The amount of paperwork that a contractor is required to fill out
as a result of the regulations governing Davis-Bacon also prevents
small minority-owned firms from seeking Davis-Bacon projects.

Many small firms do not have available personnel with the nec-

essary expertise to complete myriad forms and reports the regula-
tions require. This provides a great advantage to the large and
usually highly unionized firm who has more resources to devote to

complying with the act's requirements.
At Pearson Electric we spend hour after useless hour filling out

certified payroll reports, monthly utilization reports, labor and in-

dustries affidavit of wages paid, equal employment opportunity re-

ports, reports on subcontractors, reports on approval of material
sources, certificate of material origin reports, and so on. I mean, it

just sort of goes on and on.

The paperwork requirements are so extensive, in fact, that I

thought at one time of getting out of the construction industry and
processing this paperwork for other small companies.
Chairman Talent. Mr. Pearson, I tell you, maybe what you

could do, because this part where you are talking about your own
experience is especially useful to the subcommittee. Maybe you
could complete that part on page four and the top of page five of

your statement and then summarize so that Ms. Velazquez can ask
you questions relating to that.
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Mr. Pearson. Yes, I would welcome that.

Chairman Talent. That would be gp'eat, yes.

Mr. Pearson. Most of the work I do as an electrical contractor

involves traffic signals and street lighting, as I stated before. Now,
one of the problems, first of all, 75 to 80 percent of the traffic sig-

naling and the street lighting that I do on highway and residential

streets, 75 to 80 percent of that work is labor work. This involves

removing grass, digging trenches, removing asphalt, pouring con-

crete, making wooden forms, installing conduit, and replacing all of

the same.
There is a lot of labor work involved in what I do, to the tune

of, again, 80 percent. However, because of the union iob classifica-

tion and also the Washington State Department of Labor's industry

classification, if the iob even remotely involves electrical work, it

must be performed by an electrician who is paid $27 an hour.
Again, that is his base and fi'inges, but my cost on that particular

electrician is actually $42 an hour.
This is the equivalent of requiring everyone in a hospital room

from the scrub nurse and orderly to the doctor that is performing
the surgery to be paid at the same rate as a trained physician.

These requirements are a waste of taxpayers' money, and they
are just another way of keeping poor people from these higher pay-
ing jobs. There is no valid justification for paying a skilled elec-

trician $27 an hour for digging a ditch, when you can hire three
people who are willing to dig the same ditch for an equal total

wage.
I understand we are kind of pushed for time, but I want to say

this.

Chairman Talent. Please make any points you think relevant,

yes.

Mr. Pearson. Yes. Just for a minute, let us imagine we applied
this foolish requirement to the offices here on Capitol Hill. I am
sure each of you has a hardworking staff member who answers the
phone, attended legislative meetings on your behalf, assist you in

speech writing, and may occasionally even drive you to an event.

Now apply what Davis-Bacon does to my business to your business.
Imagine the headaches you would get trying to classify, under

penalty of law for mistakes, that one hardworking staff member's
time spent between the clerical wages earned for the hours answer-
ing telephones versus the staff wages earned while attending legis-

lative meetings versus the speech writing wages earned to create

your next major address versus the drivers wages earned while
driving you to some event. It is enough to drive you crazy or out
of business or even both.
The real point I am making with that-not only is it my business,

the electrical business, but plumbers, carpenters, cement finishers,

they all have this certain classification. It is an all and overlapping
type of thing. As I stated earlier, 75 to 80 percent of the t3T)e of

work that I do is labor work.
Because of Davis-Bacon even right now at this hour, 10:30 Pa-

cific time, I am probably being monitored already as to what my
people are doing out on the job sites by the State inspectors, the
local inspectors, monitoring. I surmise they are doing the monitor-
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ing because they, too, belong to some sort of unions, and they all

sort of hang together.

Again, I am making this point, because over the years my obser-
vation has been that Davis-Bacon has created a lot of problems. In
my particular area, if you are black, to do highway work, we are
picked right out. We tend to be in that area resented.

I had a group of black employees on the street and a white elec-

trician who were pulling about a mile of cable. An inspector that
was on the way home observed this, because it is unusual to see
that many black people along side of the road. Anyway, the bottom
line, I got a ticket: No apprenticeship cards and whatever else the
ticket consisted of.

The point I am making again with it is that Davis-Bacon is a
racist law; not only is it supporting unions but State, local, and
Federal officials. It is sort of out of bounds, but joins in with the
unions to create additional problems for companies such as mine.
Anyway, I am going to cut it short without reading it all, because
I know you have it.

At one point, back during the late 70's or early 80's, I was trying
to do something about the unemployment in the black community.
I hired about a dozen black kids, two of them happened to be my
nephews, to gut out a building at the VA Hospital, removing sheet-
rock, wallboard, and that type of thing. Well, before it was done
with, I was faced with a big lawsuit from the union that said I had
an agreement with them.
Going into this, they told me that I could not do it. I said, "Well,

I am going to do it anyway. If you want to put them in the union,
I will be sure that they will pay their dues." Here is another exam-
ple of the harassment that I have been getting over the years as
a result of the Davis-Bacon Act.

Now, I am almost 100 percent sure that I would not have gotten
that type of reaction from the union if we had been doing some
house remodeling, but it was a prevailing wage paid job; it is a
higher paid job. Just to add to that, when I got into a prevailing
wage job was back during the early seventies doing HUD work-I
believe it was about 1972 or 1973-and I have been doing it ever
since.

Ever since, I have been fought every way I turn by the people
within the construction division. Some of the high officials in the
city of Tacoma, they call me up and they say, "We've got this re-

modeling job for you to do. We've got this porch for you to do. We've
got this painting for you to do."

I was out there domg street lighting, and then I also had several
people to say, "Why are you out there doing this asphalt? Don't you
know that belongs to XYZ Asphalt Paving Company in this town?
Why are you doing concrete pavement? Don't you know it belongs
to So-and-So?"

I was young and had a lot of energy and, perhaps, maybe naive,
and I sort of took that as a joke, what they were telling me. I really

didn't know how serious the situation was in that particular area
at the time, again, until I sort of lived through this and sort of
looked back and reconstructed everything. Those people were high-
ly serious when they told me that I wasn't supposed to be doing
asphalt or concrete pavement in that town.
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The equipment that I had bought for paving streets, the chief of

the Construction Division of the city of Tacoma told me sort of cas-

ual like, "Well, you know that most of the asphalt paving that you
do will just be considered as temporary."
That is where part of my name came from-Art Pearson Electrical

and General Contracting. I was doing just as much general con-

tracting work as I was doing specialized electrical work. As of late,

my field mainlv has been in the electrical classification.

But again, the real point that I want to make out of this entire

speech is if it wasn't for the Davis-Bacon, I could have provided
better opportunity for some of my unemployed family members, the
kids in my neighborhood, in the inner-city-in our case it is all in

Seattle, the Central area, or the Hilltops of Tacoma.
I have had a number of kids over the years to come to me looking

for jobs, and I had to turn them away and tell them to go to the
union. I reached out to help them by sponsoring basketball, Softball

teams, just to try to pull them together.

Chairman Talent. Let me just ask you to maybe make another
point and then close, because I want to be certain we have time
for questions.
Mr. Pearson. Most of my young Boys' Club basketball team was

around the age of 10 to 12 years old. I do not know for sure how
many of them are still living, most of them are dead. They played
on my basketball team, and I got them uniforms through the Boys'
Club, but I could not give them jobs. I was locked into the system
of the union.

I could have given them a job if I could have afforded to pay
them prevailing wage rates, on today's scale for laborers, of about
$22 in my area. There was just no way. I have done that to a point.

Several of the people who I have brought through my company and
trained and paid were taken from me by other bigger companies,
but I cannot continue to do this. That is the problem.

I can help in my small company in a little, tiny way if the Davis-
Bacon Act does not prevent me from bringing in not only inner-city

kids, but people who want to work, paying them on an intern level

until they work their way up to the scale.

Thank you for listening to me.
[Mr. Pearson's statement may be found in the appendix.]
Chairman Talent. I appreciate very much your testimony.
Ms. Velazquez?
Ms. Velazquez. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I welcome your testi-

mony. It really shed some light onto the matter under discussion
here. I am very sympathetic to the obstacles that you seem to have
been facing in your own experience. It is the same kind of problem
that many of my constituents are facing in the district that I rep-

resent, one of the poorest districts in the Nation.
I work very closely with the small business community in my dis-

trict, and they are facing a lot of obstacles. One of the main issues
that they face is redlining, is access to capital. I am also concerned,
however, that rather than looking to the specific situations or regu-
lations and the impact that it has on small business, that your tes-

timony might be interpreted as an argument against all kinds of
protections in terms of our community. That is my concern.
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Mr. Jones, you related to us your experience when you went to
the bank to apply for a loan, and you were required to have 18
months as a track record.
Mr. Jones. Correct.

Ms. Velazquez. Was that a bank policy, or was that related to
the Davis-Bacon Act?
Mr. Jones. It has nothing to do with Davis-Bacon, it is a bank

policy, unless their paperwork is somehow entwined in that.

Ms. Velazquez. What about your experience with the insurance
company, when you went to applv for tne insurance and it was re-

quired that you have a $50,000 Dond, was that, again, a policy of
the insurance company or related to a Federal regulation?
Mr. Jones. Well, the truth of the matter is the PubHc Utilities

Commission regulates the taxicab industry, and they tell me that
I should be able to obtain insurance at a first dollar payout, but
the practice is that I cannot obtain insurance at the first dollar
payout. If I want to go into business-no matter what I say to the
Public Utilities Commission, they just seem to turn their head to
the reality of the fact that I have to put money down to justify a
deductible.

Ms. Velazquez. I understand that.

Mr. Jones. What I'm trying to say is there are two kinds of
crimes that happens, there is one that is omitted and there is one
that is by omission. Meaning that, you can turn your head knowing
it is wrong because you are going to gain from it. Somehow in the
system that we live in, those crimes are being allowed. If the Gov-
ernment is allowing it at the expense of the citizen, then it is

wrong.
If in my State I am required to have auto insurance, and the

Government sets up regulations for the insurance company to in-

sure me, then the insurance company then finds a way not to in-

sure me unless I do something specific, then it is the Government's
responsibility to either take me out from underneath the control of
that insurance company, or force that insurance company to comply
with the rules.

Ms. Velazquez. So, you see a role for the Government to inter-

fere?

Mr. Jones. Yes.
Ms. Velazquez. OK.
Mr. Uqdah. Yes. It is an antitrade matter.
Ms. Velazquez. Yes. We all agree on that.

Mr. Jones. That is what I am saying, is there are some things
that are good and beneficial for the safety and welfare of people.

We need to define what those things are and enforce them. Then,
we need to look at all the other things that are not keeping Amer-
ica free, and get those out of there.

Ms. Velazquez. Thank you.
Mr. Pearson, how do you feel about apprenticeship programs?
Mr. Pearson. Well, the apprenticeship program is used as a tool

to keep black people out, another form of, "You're not qualified."

Ms. Velazquez. How do say that it serves to keep minorities
out?
Mr. Pearson. Well, first of all, there is a long waiting list. Again,

I was on the Apprenticeship Training Committee. On paper it is a
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good thing. Now, I also happen to know that it is not only a tool

to keep minorities out by the length of time it takes to get them
in there, but by the time you apply-which is, I believe, once a year
around March or April-if you miss that date, you have to wait until

next year. Then also you have a long waiting list, then the exam,
and the interview comes up. In most cases they get discouraged-

not only minorities, but I also know some nonminorities.

Ms. Velazquez. Let me ask you. What is your recommendation
to this committee in terms of how can we effectively provide the

necessary skills for blacks and Latinos in this country that will

allow them to obtain well-paying jobs?
Mr, Pearson. By getting them exposed, first of all, as somebody

mentioned earlier, in high school. I think they call them "Career
Conference Day" or something. Kids have to be exposed before they
get out of high school. I really did not know what I wanted to be
when I grew up when I graduated from high school. I mean, all I

knew was that I wanted to get a job making the most money that

you could make.
My recommendation, to answer you more directly, would be, first,

the word is "exposure," and not only in construction. I may possibly

have been interested in being a doctor or a lawyer or a scientist,

but I had no idea what that was all about.

As I talk to kids, you cannot imagine how fascinated they are

when I say to them, "Are you interested in being a doctor? Well,

why don't you go up to the University of Washington and just sit

in the classroom?" Again, this is that side of it.

Now, in construction, the apprenticeship training-we have gone
there for 20 years, the experts getting apprenticeship training

when it comes to Mexican-Americans or African-Americans and
others, women. The program administrator or the advisers were al-

ways the union. The requirement came from the Federal, State,

and local government. In other words, the affirmative action por-

tion.

As I have seen over the last 20 years, this has been manipulated
by the union to keep everything in house. Now, the U.S. Depart-

ment of Transportation, the Washington State Department of

Transportation provides for a number of hours of training in their

particular bid items. I have seen as many as 60,000 hours on one
project.

Well, my complaint has been the contractor that has got the col-

lective bargaining agreement that bids these jobs, first, I notice

they only bid $1. They are always telling me black kids are too

much bother.

Now, I come back and I say, "Why are you just bidding a dollar?"

"It is a requirement."
"Why don't you bid $5, so you can erase some of that bother?"

Now, the intent of the hours that were in these contracts was to

reach out into community that this work is impacting.

Ms. Velazquez. Mr. Chairman, I am just searching for some sta-

tistics that prove otherwise. Maybe later I will be able to report

back to this committee. I was reading a report that stated that it

was because of the Davis-Bacon Act and because of the court cases

that brought about openings in terms of providing blacks opportu-
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nities through apprenticeship programs, providing them the skill

that would enable them to be part of the construction industry.
I do disagree with you, Mr. Pearson.
Mr, Pearson. Well now, that is the intent, but what is actually

happening, and you can see it by most stat sheets, especially in
Washington State. There is no success ratio. I was subpoenaed in
1970-actually, the subpoena came in 1969-to testify on behalf of the
local union. The U.S. Grovernment was suing the unions about their
recruiting of blacks.

Now, this has been 20 years ago. Judge William Lindberg's deci-

sion in June 1970 says that each union will put in 25 apprentice-
ship trainees each year with no time limit. Any of these people who
do not make it, the requirement still remains, and you nave to re-

place them in kind. This is Judge William Lindberg, which is on
the record.

Now, if this court decision had been abided by, we would have
a lot more than just a handful of electricians and electrical contrac-
tors in the State of Washington right now. What I am saNnng is the
Davis-Bacon and the union-the apprenticeship training that you
have mentioned, it sounds good from those people who can speak
a lot better than I. They relay the message, it sounds pretty, it is

nice, and then you wonder wny people like me are challenging it;

because I have lived through this.

I may not be able to make the nice speeches to sell the commit-
tee all of the things people such as the U.S. Department of Labor,
AFL-CIO, and those guys that have the real good speakers can,

but I am telling you it is not working the way it was working.
The only way it is going to be able to work is give guys Tike me

room enough to bring in a few minorities into my shop and train

them on an interim level without having to start them out at $22
an hour. Now, at least give us a chance to do that. I am saying if

not suspend the Davis-Bacon Act, give it a recess for a while.

Ms. Velazquez, I would say that I just want to see that wa^es
in this country are not lowered, rather that we create the trainmg
programs that are necessary to enable people with the skills that
they need in order to join the construction industry.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairman Talent. I thank the lady for her questions.
Mr. Jones, your testimony was very eloquent. I thought when

you were testifying about how Abe Lincoln quoted the passage from
the "Bible" that "A house divided against itself cannot stand."

My parents were both very poor when they were raised, and
there were a lot of differences among Americans when they were
raised, but I have really this terrible sense that the differences

then-differences between the haves and have-nots then-were eco-

nomic. However, people basically shared the same ambitions and
hopes and ideals and felt they had a reasonable shot at achieving
them.
Now, although we have made progress on so many fronts with

the elimination at least of outright racial discrimination, for exam-
ple, it is the sense of despair that people feel that is the worse
thing. I mean, that is a lot worse tnan poverty. You touched on
that much more eloquently than I have ever heard it, and I really

appreciated it.
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Mr. Uqdah mentioned that we need to talk to people, and I

agree. That is one of the reasons I wanted to hold this hearing. Let
me just ask you all, since you are talking from your experiences,

how widespread is this problem? I have read the stats about the
taxicab business, and I know about in cosmetology.
Mr. Uqdah, I am from Missouri, and you know that our law is

particularly "comprehensive," to use a neutral term.
How widespread is the problem? I mean, how many people are

chaffing under this right now?
Mr. Uqdah. There is no way to measure it, Mr. Chairman, sim-

ply because barriers to entry-level entrepreneurship cannot be
measured, because you never know who has the desire to go into

business but is frustrated by the process.

For example, one of the first businesses I owned was a grocery
store, a 24-hour market. In order for me to own this store, I needed
an occupancy permit, a business license, a patent medicine license,

a cigarette license. If I chose to sell beer and wine, I had to have
an alcoholic beverage control license. I had inspectors from Weights
and Measures coming in inspecting my scales. I had people coming
in from the Health Department to inspect the cleanliness of my
place.

Now, some of these things I agree with. But what you have to

understand about the licensing process is these licenses are perpet-

ual. It is not like I pay for a cigarette license, and then it just rides

along with the operation of the business
The same thing with taxicabs: I talked to a cab driver this morn-

ing. He pays $75 every year for a license. When I asked him what
he got for his license, ne could not tell me, just the license with his

picture on it.

You have had work done in your home. Did it take a licensed
plumber to put on a toilet seat in your bathroom? I do not think
so, but that is what is required across this country. Pretty soon, it

is going to get to a situation where if you want to change a light

buu) in your own house, you are going to have to call a licensed

electrician. That is the part of the process that is unfair.

Chairman TALE^^^. I fought for years in the Missouri Legislature
to get lay midwives licensed because I know so many people who
would have preferred to use them. I will not go into this, especially

since we have a vote coming up, but I am very familiar with what
you are talking about. It is a real problem.
Maybe you can comment on this, and again I am sensitive to the

concerns that my distinguished friend, Ms. Velazquez, raised about
Federal intrusion into an area. I will finish my comment briefly,

and then please.

It strikes me there has to be some room for a careful Federal role

in this, either as part of our responsibility to try to remove burdens
on commerce, which this clearly is, or to enforce the 14th Amend-
ment's guarantee that everybody should have a fair opportunity.

I mean, I think the point you made-you both made, and Mr.
Pearson as well-as eloquently as I have ever heard it, is that the
pursuit of happiness, protected by the Declaration of Independence,
is really the right, free fi-om arbitrary intrusion by anybody, to

build your own business or have your own way of life and partici-

pate in the economic and community life of the country.
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I just have to believe that there is some way. We have tried to
clear the way federally from overt racial discrimination. We have
the antitrust laws, and these laws seem to me to be violations of
the antitrust laws. They are simply allowed because the State sanc-
tions them. Maybe you would like to make a comment on that, and
then we will probably need to wrap it up, because we are going to
have to go vote. Please.
Mr. Jones. I would like to respond. You are asking for what pro-

portion or what percentage would justify what we are going
through?
Chairman Talent. Yes.
Mr. Jones. I would like to suggest that since Representative

Velazquez likes statistics, that she use and you use statistics on
crime, statistics on poverty, statistics on more prisons, more police
officers. Recognize the fact that if economic opportunity was opened
up to every .Ajnerican citizen we would need none of that.
We have had a war on poverty, a war on drugs, a war on crime,

and everything has increased. The population of America is getting
poorer and poorer. All of this is by Government regulation. By Gov-
ernment wars. The real war cannot do anything unless there is a
cause and effect. I cannot put more cabs on the street in the Den-
ver market and help my drivers, unless I lower the payoff.
To me it is very simple, it is give us the right, the economic lib-

erty that we supposedly have been guaranteed. Let us fail or suc-
ceed on our own merit. Open up the door and get out of our way,
and let us live. I will guarantee you that most of the problems-the
divorce rate will go down, drugs on the street as far as crimes with
gang members will go down.
Just imagine, in our system we have a system called "qualifica-

tions:" Are you qualified? Qualifications has never been anything
but a doorway to disqualify people from coming in. In my life and
the way I live and my education, it has always been: Are you capa-
ble? If a man is capable, it does not matter what school he went
to; it is just that he can do the job.

I have had college professors that were qualified, pardon my ex-
pression, that had buggers hanging out of their nose on spittle on
the side of their mouth. They put me to sleep, and I didn't learn
a darned thing in their class.

If we live on this system of qualifications and we start using this
divisiveness of, "Well, I'm black, you're white, I'm Mexican, you're
black," and we keep fighting against each other, we will never have
a solution. I guarantee you if we take the profit out of the racism
and the sexism in this country, and we allow our economic oppor-
tunity, you will see this country fulfill its goal and its dream and
its ideals about being free.

We go around this world saying that we believe in freedom, and
yet we have sponsored every major dictator that has existed since
1940. We say we want peace, and yet we are the biggest arms run-
ners in the world.
To me it is not a point about knowing what the solution is, what

the point is, is making a commitment that we are going to live up
to the goals and ideals that we really believe in, that we say we
believe in, and then doing what is necessary. That is, opening up



47

economic liberty, allowing people to have property without the
threat of the IRS taking it away from them.
Let us enforce our laws equally. We let corporations come into

a neighborhood, as Ms. Velazquez was saying, that promise us 85
jobs or 150 jobs. We give them tax breaks, tax incentives, and we
pay them money to set up. Then in 2 years we let them downsize
and fire all of tne people they hired. What was the point that we
let them enrich themselves?
We have a law, a word says "bankruptcy." Bankruptcy to me in

the dictionary in all my studies has said "to be without funds." Yet,
we allow people with $10 million or a $1 billion to say, "I am bank-
rupt," and not pay, live up to their responsibilities.

If you want to look at statistics, we can say, "Why more prisons?
Why not more opportunity? Why more policemen?" Crimes are com-
mitted by people who do not have and who are trying to take away,
because they nave no other way to get it or they do not feel they
have any other way to get it. It is caused by ignorance.
We want to educate our children to be economic in nature long

before they leave high school. Let them start practicing where they
get paid $10 a week, to take that money and see if in 2 weeks they
can make it into $20. I mean, we need to teach our kids to learn
how to survive and make money and have opportunity. Then, after

they are able to feed themselves and feed their families, then they
can go back to school and become whatever they want.
Chairman Talent. We are all at the mercy of the House's sched-

ule. Ms. Velazquez and I have to go vote, so I am going to have
to let that be the end of it. I am grateful for you all being here.
Without objection, we will hold the record of the hearing open for

2 weeks, so that I can address some follow-up written questions to

Mr. Bolick, and any other Member can do that as well-and also so

that you can find those statistic reports that you wanted to submit
for the record.

I really would like to continue this, but we are going to have to

vote. I will declare the hearing adjourned. Thank you again for

being here and for your compelling testimony.
Mr. Jones. Thank you so much. I am sorry for talking so much.
Chairman Talent. No, you did not. Again, we are all at the

mercy of the House's schedule here.

[Whereupon, at 2:05 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, subject
to the call of the chair.]
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"REGULATORY BARRIERS TO MINORITY ENTREPRENEURSHIP"

June 7, 1995

Good morning ladies and gentlemen. I want to begin thismorning by thanking each of our witnesses who have agreed toappear before the subcommittee today, especially those who havetravelled great distances in order to be with us. It is also agreat pleasure to have Congressman Flake, a member of the
Committee, and former HUD Secretary Jack Kemp, a former member ofthis Committee, with us today.

This morning the Subcommittee on Reaulation and Paperworkwill hold the first in a series of hearings on the regulatory
burdens of particular concern to minority entrepreneurs. I hopethat this first hearing will provide members of this subcommitteewith an overview of the federal, state and local regulatory
issues of particular concern to minority small businesses.

The toll government regulations exact from the American
economy every year is well known. Excessive regulations kill
Dobs and cost the economy an estimated $500 billion every yearmore than $5,000 for the average American family. These
regulatory costs are borne by every business and every family inthis country, but especially those on the bottom rungs of the
economic ladder. There is a great deal of evidence that
excessive regulation and arbitrary barriers to business creationon top of other impediments that already face many minority
communities, have a disproportionate impact on minority
entrepreneurship.

Clearly, some government policies have been designed to helpminorities achieve access to opportunity. For example, it took
the power of the federal government to end segregation in theUnited States and to end state-sanctioned discrimination. Theimportance of these achievements simply cannot be underestimated.
But an increasing number of minority entrepreneurs believe
excessive regulations prevent them from establishing businesses,
hiring employees and producing goods and services needed by our
society.
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The purpose of this hearing is to discover what government
regulations interfere with creative entrepreneurship. We will
explore the concept of "economic liberty," the inherently
American ideal that every American from every neighborhood and
from every background has the right to pursue a profession of his
or her choice free from arbitrary government intrusion. In doing
so, we will try to determine whether specific regulatory policies
place the heaviest burden on our nation's minority entrepreneurs,
many of whom struggle to join the economic mainstream by starting
out at the bottom of the economic ladder.

By raising these questions, I hope that our witnesses today
can help the subcommittee understand the extent of the problem
and where the bulk of it lies: at the federal level, the state
and local level, or some combination of all three. And, after we
conclude, I hope we will leave this discussion with a sense of
what can be done to ensure that every American's right to pursue
his or her dream is not abridged by arbitrary government
policies.

Again, I'd like to thank the witnesses who are with us
today. At this point, I'd like to recognize the ranking member
of the subcommittee, Ms. Velazquez, for an opening statement.
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ERADICATING BARRIERS TO ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY:
A CIVIL RIGHTS IMPERATIVE

Testimony of Clint Bolick

Litigation Director

Institute for Justice

Before the

House Smal] Business Committee
Subcommittee on Regulation and Paperwork

June 7, 1995

Mr. Chaiiman and membeis of the Subcommittee, good morning and thank you for

inviting me to present testimony. My name is Clint Bolick, and I am vice president and

litigation direaor at the Institute for Justice. I am privileged to appear with my distinguished

friend. Jack Kemp, and with three heroes in the battlw for economic liberty, who my col-

leagues and I have had the honor to represent in the courtroom: Taalib-din Uqdah, Leroy

Jones, and Ait Pearson.

I am here to ask you to make good on one of the most fundamental, but forgotten,

civil rights: economic liberty, the right to earn an honest living in a chosen business or

profession, free from arbitrary or excessive government regulation.

One hundred and thirteen years ago, Congress voted to protect economic liberty as

among the "privileges or immunities" of citizenship guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amend-

ment.' This provision was essential to safeguard the rights of recently emancipated slaves

against oppressive southern state governments. Following the Civil War, many blacks used

the skills they had developed as slaves to open their own businesses or to compete in the

labor market. But the southern governments, determined to protect a cheap and servile labor

supply, enacted "black codes" designed to thwart freedom of contract, private property rights,

and the right to pursue a business or occupation.

' For a more detailed discussion of the historical baclcground and case law relating to economic liberty, see dint
Bolick. Unfinished Business: A Civil Rights Strategy for America's Third Century (San Francisco: Pacific Research

Institute, 1990X pp. 47-91.
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In response, Congress passed the Civil Rights Act of 1866, expressly protecting these

economic liberties. But President Andrew Johnson asserted that the law was unconstitutional,

prompting Congress to make it part of the 14th Amendment. Although the amendment's due

process and equal protection guarantees are much more famous today, the "privileges or

immunities" guarantee, which was meant to encompass economic liberty, is listed first and

foremost among the three.

But the protection was short-lived. A year following the amendment's ratification, the

U.S. Supreme Court ruled by a 5-4 vote in the Slaughter-House Cases^ that the privileges

or immunities clause did not protect economic liberty against abridgement by state govern-

ments. In the ensuing many years, although the equal protection and due process clauses

have been invoked repeatedly to strike down state laws that violate individual rights, the

privileges or immunities clause has never once been used to invalidate a state law, no matter

how oppressive. This is judicial activism of the worst sort: draining a constitutional

guarantee of its meaning.

As a result, among the basic rights we cherish as Americans, economic liberty receives

the least protection in the courts. Hence today the perverse anomaly that the "right" to

receive a welfare check receives greater judicial protection than the right to earn an honest

living.

The consequences of this judicial abdication are devastating, particularly for people

outside the economic mainstream. Oppressive regulations proliferate at every level of

government, blocking entry into businesses and occupations that in a fi-ee market would

provide plentiful opportunities for people with few skills or little capital. In a nation

doctrinally committed to economic liberty, this is a travesty.

At the Institute for Justice, we arc committed to restoring economic liberty. Our

principal means are litigation and the court of public opinion. Our strategy is to develop

favorable building-block precedents and public support until finally Slaughter-House is

overturned and meaning is restored to the privileges or immunities clause and the basic right

of economic liberty.

83 U.S. 36 (1873).
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But another, complcmentery route is possible. Congress has the power to enforce the

14th amendment through appropriate legislation. It should use this power to enact an

Economic Liberty Act. The provisions are simple.' Any federal or state law that restrains

entry into a business or occupation must be narrowly tailored to a legitimate public health,

safety, or public welfare objective. Any person aggrieved by arbitrary barriers to entry could

challenge them in court and have them removed. The practical effect of this law would be to

vindicate the right of all Americans to earn an honest living while preserving legitimate

governmental objectives.

In the appendix to this testimony, I present synopses of five case studies illustrating

the pernicious effects of barriers to entry into businesses and occupations. The individuals

whose stories I recount, including Taalib-din Uqdah, Leroy Jones, and Ait Pearson, illustrate

how the bottom rungs of the economic ladder are being cut off by oppressive regulations

imposed by ovcrzealous and often self-interested government officials.

Their examples underscore as well the true struggle for civil rights in the 1990s.

These people do not want minority set-asides, or welfare, or any other sort of government

handout. All they want is an opportunity to earn an honest living, to support themselves and

their families, and to provide jobs to others. In other words, the basic economic liberty that

is every American's birthright — every American's cjvj7 right.

Mr. Chairman, these individuals can tell you far more eloquently than I about the

barriers they have encountered on the road to the American Dream — barriers no American

should be forced to endure. Unfortunately their stories are all too typical, for the rules of the

game are often rigged in favor of economic insiders against those who seek to honestly

compete.^

We have a duty to provide basic and equal opportunities to people who seek to

become productive members of society. I urge this subcommittee to take steps to make good

on the guarantee of opportunity on which our nation's moral claim is staked.

' The text of model economic liberty legislation at the state level is attached to this testimony.

* See Walter Williams, The Slate Against Blacks (New Yoiic: McGraw-Hill, 1982).
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Appendix

CHALLENGING BARRIERS TO OPPORTUNITY:
FIVE CASE STUDIES

Bootstraps Capitalism

The quest to restore economic liberty started literally at the ground level, with

streetcomer shoeshine stands. Ego Brown had toiled for years as a government bureaucrat,

and yearned to start his own business. He discovered a lucrative niche in the thousands of

scuffed shoes pounding the streets of Washington, DC. Brown set up a streetcomer shoeshine

stand and soon his business was thriving. So much that he began expandmg, by leasing

stands to enterprising homeless people for whom shining shoes was a second chance at life.

Unfortunately, the District of Columbia govenmient shut down Brown's stands, citing

a 1905 Jim Qow-cra law forbidding shoeshine stands on public streets. Other businesses,

such as food vendors, were allowed to operate, but shoeshine stands were expressly prohibit-

ed.

Brown went to federal district court, arguing that the ban violated the 14th Amend-

ment's guarantee of equal protection of law. The legal standard in such circumstances is

whether the law has any "rational basis" — a standard under which virtually all economic

regulations are upheld. But Brown won the first federal court decision in 50 years striking

down a barrier to entry. The court "had no difficulty finding that bootblack prohibition fails

to pass the rational basis test," declaring that "we would have to "strain our imagination' . . .

to justify prohibiting bootblacks from the use of public space while permitting access to

virtually every other type of vendor."

The decision in Brown v. Barry,^ which the city did not appeal, provided the first

building block in the jurisprudence of economic liberty. Brown's case received favorable and

widespread media coverage. ABC-TV made Brown its "Person of the Week," with anchor

Peter Jennings declaring, "He's made us all a little bit fi'eer."

Revival of the Jitneys

Like Ego Brown, Houston entrepreneur discovered an untapped market. A cab driver,

Santos discerned a need for a third transportation alternative beyond expensive taxicabs and

highly subsidized public buses. He discovered the solution in Mexico City: the "pesero," or

in English, the "jitney."

Jitneys are a transportation mainstay in large cities around the globe. They run fixed

routes and charge a flat fee, like buses. But they pick up and discharge passengers anywhere

' Brown v. Barry. 710 F. Supp. 352 (D.D.C. 1989).
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along the route, like taxis. They are smaller and more efficient than buses and less-expensive

than taxis. They also are ideally suited to low-capital entrepreneurship.

Santos began using his cab during off-duty hours as a jitney, operating in low-income

Houston neighborhoods. The business was successful, quickly attracting other jitney opera-

tors. But the city quickly shut the industry down, invoking its "Anti-Jitney Law of 1924."

In the 1920s, jitneys were the main source of competition to subsidized streetcars.

The streetcar companies lobbied in city halls across the country, all but exterminating jitneys.

Seventy years later the streetcars arc nearly all gone, but the anti-jitney laws remain. Today

they are supported by the public transportation monopolies that replaced the streetcars.

Santos challenged the law in federal court, which recently struck it down as a violation

of equal protection and federal antitrust laws.* The city did not appeal the ruling, thereby

allowing another favorable precedent to stand.

Occupational Licensing

Perhaps the most ubiquitous regulatory restraint on entry into businesses and profes-

sions are occupational licensing laws, enforced at the state and local levels of government.

Such laws restrict entry into hundreds of professions, from medicine and law to cosmetology

and plumbing. The laws ostensibly are aimed at proteaing health and safety, but often arc

enforced to limit competition from newcomers. The laws typically are enforced by appointed

boards comprised of members of the regulated profession, with the coercive power of

government at their disposal.

When Taalib-din Uqdah and Pamela Fenell opened Comrows & Co. in Washington in

the early 1980s, they provided a single highly specialized service: African hairbraiding.

They paid taxes and trained their own braiders, hiring people off the unemployment rolls.

Over ten years, there was not a single health or safety complaint.

But before long, the District of Columbia issued an order that Uqdah and FeircU shut

down their business or go to jail. The violation: failing to obtain a cosmetology license.

Cosmetology licensing in all 50 states and the District of Columbia requires extensive

training and testing in various hair and skin care techniques. Many of these, such as the use

of chemicals in the hair, the use of cosmetics, and care of fingernails, are not used at all by

braiders, who merely wash, heat, and twist hair. By contrast, hairbraiding is not tested on the

exam. Thus the irony that in order to lawfully practice the specialized craft of hairbraiding,

an individual must demonstrate proficiency in all manner of activities in which she will never

engage — but none whatsoever in the service she will offer to the public!

« Santos V. City of Houston, 852 F. Supp. 601 (S.D. Tx. 1994).
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Uqdah and Ferrell tried for several years to have the law changed, even hiring a

lobbyist to draft and push for regulations geared more specifically to the cosmetology

profession, all to no avail. As with other entry-level regulations, powerful special interests

(in this case the cosmetology profession) deploy massive resources to defend the protectionist

status quo. Reform through ordinary political processes is almost never successful.

The Institute for Justice challenged in federal court the array of licensing requirements.

The court was sympathetic, comparing the licensing regime to Soviet Russia. But under

existing precedents, the judge compelled to uphold the law.

This case, however, demonstrates the efficacy of arguing in the court of public

opinion. Favorable coverage in the Wall Street Journal and other media followed the case

throughout, and Uqdah and Ferrell emerged as eloquent proponents of economic liberty. The

crowning blow was an expose by John Stossel on the popular ABC television show, 20/20,

entitled "Rules, Rules, Stupid Rules." The District of Columbia cosmetology bureaucrats

were revealed as oppressive and incompetent.

The result was that previously recalcitrant politicians suddenly decided to change the

law. While the case was pending on appeal, the District of Columbia became the first

jurisdiction in the United States to deregulate entry into the cosmetology profession. Instead

of shutting down or going to jail, Uqdah and Ferrell today operate a thriving hairbraiding

salon — and provide both employment opportunities and an important service to the

community.

A Driving Spirit

Ani Ebong, Rowland Nwankwo, and Girma Molalegne emigrated some years ago to

the United States in search of opportunity. Each settled in Denver and pursued an employ-

ment path common to recent immigrants: driving taxicabs. Before long, they discovered that

the three taxicab companies in Denver were poorly run and offered inadequate service in

low-income areas. Sensing a market niche, the trio teamed up with another cab driver, a

transplanted New Yorker named Leroy Jones. Together they launched Quick-Pick Cabs, a

driver-owned taxicab co-op with plans to concentrate on low-income neighborhoods.

As required by state law, the new company had to obtain fi'om the Colorado Public

Utilities Commission a license to operate. When the men submitted their application, they

were confronted with a barrage of opposition fi'om the existing cab companies. When the

process was over, Quick-Pick met the same fate that had befallen every other applicant for a

new taxicab license since 1947: application denied.

This story is all too common: in most cities in the United States, taxicab licenses are

restricted to an oligopoly, cutting off entry into a low-capital business that in a free market

could provide opportunities to thousands of low-income entrepreneurs. In Washington, D.C.,

which has open entry into the taxicab market, nearly all the taxicabs are owned by their
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driveis, many of whom are immigrants and minorities. In New York, by contrast, which has

not issued any new taxicab licenses since World War D, the market value of a taxicab

"medallion" is over $150,000 — effectively foreclosing opportunities to economic outsiders.

Although the federal district court in Denver dismissed the lawsuit, favorable nation-

wide publicity acated pressure on the Colorado legislature to deregulate entry into the taxicab

market. Since the Denver deregulation, Lcroy Jones and his partners renamed their company

"Freedom Cabs," and will begin operations with a fleet of 50 taxicabs this year. This victory

in turn inspired two other cities, Indianapolis and Cinciimati, to deregulate the taxicab

industry as well, following public hearings at which my partner, Chip Mellor, and Leroy

Jones testified. But intransigent barriers exist in most other cities, blocking this important

path to entrepreneurship.

Prevailing Wages

In 1931, during the midst of the American Depression, black workers from the south

began moving north and offering to work on publicly funded construction contracts for lower

wages than unionized white workers. The unions responded in typical fashion — not by

trying to out-compete the newcomers, but by seeking protectionist legislation. The result was

the federal Davis-Bacon Act.

The Davis-Bacon Act applies to all federal construction contracts, covering 20 percent

of all construction contracts nationwide and 25 percent of all construction jobs. It requires

payment of "prevailing wages" — often union wages — on all such contracts. This destroys

any competitive advantage offered by more efficient contractors. The law also imposes union

job classifications, which forces non-union contractors to adopt inefficient work rules and

severely reduces the opportunity to use low-skilled or unskilled workers.

In addition to costing taxpayers billions of unnecessary tax dollars, the Davis-Bacon

Act has had its intended effect: protecting highly-paid, predominantly white union workers

against competition from less-skilled, predominantly minority workers. In an industry that

traditionally has provided plentiful entry-level opportunities, black unemployment rates are

twice as high as white rates. Minority-owned firms, which typically are non-union, also are

placed at a competitive disadvantage in bidding for federal construction contracts. Ironically,

"civil rights" leaders and elected black politicians, valuing their labor union alliances more

than their constituents, have opposed efforts to repeal the Davis-Bacon Act.

The Institute for Justice has filed a lawsuit in federal district court challenging the

Davis-Bacon Act on the grounds it is racially discriminatory. The Institute represents five

minority contractors, two of which went out of business as a consequence of the law; and

three public housing tenant organizations who have been frustrated in their efforts to hire

unskilled tenants to work in public housing jobs that are subject to the law. The court

rejected the U.S. Department of Labor's motion to dismiss the lawsuit, and the case is heading

to trial later this year.
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This lawsuit is on a much broader scale than other Institute litigation in the economic

liberty area. But it illustrates in stark terms the perverse coosequcnces of economic regula-

tions that limit entry into businesses and professions. Repealing the Davis-Bacon Act would

remove one of the greatest barriers to opportunity in our society.
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Economic Civil Rights Act

Summary

Among the rights Americans cherish the most are freedoms to pursue a chosen enterprise or profession. Yet of

all the rights we deem fundamental, economic liberty has eroded most of all. to the extent that the "right" to receive

a welfare check today enjoys greater legal protection than the right to earn an honest bving.

Licensing and regulation of businesses and professions— often placed in the hands of the regulated industry

—

artificially limit entry and reduce competition. Myriad entry-level opportunities are affected by occupational

licensing laws, government- imposed monopolies in businesses such as taxicabs and trash hauling, and

restrictions on home-based businesses such as day-care centers.

The principal victims of these of these restrictions are jjeople outside the economic mainstreair. for whom the

bottom rungs of the economic ladder are cut off. This model legislation would ensure that all such regulations are

limited to legitimate public health, safety, and welfare objectives, and that individuals are free to earn a share of

the American Dream.

The model legislation is based upon a draft by Clint Bolick, litigation director at the Institute for Justice in

Washington. D.C.. a public interest law center that challenges barriers to opportunity in the courts.*

Model Legislation

Section 1. This Act may be referred to as the "Economic Civil Rights Act"

Section 2. Statement of Findings and Purposes.

(A)The legislature hereby finds and declares that;

(l)The right of individuals to pursue a chosen business or profession, free from arbitrary or excessive

govenmient interference, is a fundamental civil nghL

(2)The freedom to earn an honest living traditionally has provided the surest means for economic

mobility.

(3)In recent years, many regulations of entry into businesses and professions have exceeded legitimate

public purposes and have had the effect of arbitrarily limiting entry and reducing competition.

(4)The burden of excessive regulation is borne most heavily by individuals outside the economic

mainstream, for whom opportunities for economic advancement are curtailed.

(5)It is in the public interest:

(a) To ensure the right of all individuals to pursue legitimate entrepreneurial and professional

opportunities to the limits of their talent and ambition:

(b)To provide the means for the vindication of this right; and

(c)To ensure that regulations of entry into businesses and professions are demonstrably necessary

and carefully tailored to legitimate health, safety, and welfare objectives.

Section 3. { Definitions}.

(A)"Agency" shall be broadly construed to include the state, all units of state government and all units of

government and shall exclude no entity established under the constitution or laws of the state or established by

any entity which was itself established under the constitution or laws of the state.

*For further background on this issue, see Bolick, Unfinished Business: A Civil Rights Strategy for

America's Third Century (San Francispo: Pacific Research Institute, 1990).
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(B) "Entry regulations" shall include any law, ordinance, regulation, rule, policy, fee, condition, test, pennit,

administrative practice, or other provision relating in a market, or the opportunity to engage in any occupation

or profession.

(C)"Public service restrictions" shall include any law, ordinance, regulation, rule, policy, fee, condition, test,

permit, administrative practice or other provision the effect of which is to exclude or limit the use of private firms

from providing pubhc services under the supervision of agencies, with or without the support of public subsidy

and/or user fees.

(D)"Welfaie" shall be narrowly construed to encompass protection of members of the public against fraud or

harm. This term shall not encompass the protection of existing businesses or agencies, whether publicly or

privately owned, against competition.

(E)"Subsidy" shall include taxes, grants, user fees or any other funds received by or on behalf of an agency.

Section 4. (Limitatioa on Entry Regulations.}

All entry regulations with respect to businesses and professions shall be limited to those demonstrably necessary

and carefully tailored to fulfil legitimate public health, safety, or welfare objectives.

Section 5. { Limitation on Public Service Restrictions.}

All public service restrictions shall be limited to those demonstrably necessary and carefully tailored to fulfil

legitimate public health, safety, or welfare objectives.

Section 6. {Elimination of Entry Regulations.

}

(A)Within one year following enactment, every agency shall conduct a comprehensive review of all entry

regulations within their jurisdictions, and for each such enffy regulation it shall:

( 1 )Articulate with specificity the public health, safety, or welfare objective(s) served by the regulation,

and

(2)Articulate the reason(s) why the regulation is necessary to serve the specified objective(s).

(B)To the extent the agency finds any regulation that does not satisfy the standard set forth in Section 4, it shall:

( 1 )Repeal the entry regulation or modify the entry regulation to conform with the standard of Section 4

if such action is not within the agency's authority to do so: or

(2)Recommend to the legislature actions necessary to repeal or modify the entry regulation to conform

to the standard of Section 4 if such action is not within the agency's authority.

(C)Within 15 months following enactment, each agency shall report to the legislamre on all actions taken to

conform with this section.

Section 7. {Elimination of Public Service Restrictions).

(A) Within one year following enactment, every agency shall establish, and within 18 months following

enactment implement a routine private participation process with respect to the public services under its

jurisdiction. Such process shall require that:

( 1) Private companies be permitted to perform pubhc services that can be produced without subsidy. An
agency may establish reasonable requirements with respect to notice of entry and exit

(2) Private companies be permitted to periodically and fairly compete for contracts to perform pubhc

services that cannot be produced without subsidy.
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(3) Private companies not be precluded from commercially producing any service under the jurisdiction of the
agency which is not included in (1) or (2) above.

(B) The competitive process required by (A)(2) shall be designed to allow the maximum extent of participation
by private firms of all sizes and shall:

(1) Rely upon multiple contracts wherever feasible, and

(2) Not include any provisions or arrangements that have the effect of limiting competition or precluding
participation except as necessary to achieve the standard set forth in Section 5.

(C) Every agency shall have the authority to establish reasonable standards of customer service with respect to
public services under Sections (A)(1) and (A)(2) above.

(D) Every agency shall recommend to the legislature actions necessary to repeal or modify any public service
restriction to conform to the standard set forth in Section 5 if such action is not within the agency's authority.

(E) Witiiin 15 months following enactment, each agency shall repon to the legislature on all actions taken to
conform with this section.

Section 8. {Administrative proceedings).

(A) Any person may peution any agency to repeal or modify any entry regulation into a business orprofession
within its jurisdiction.

(B) Within 90 days of a petition filed under (A) above, the agency shall either repeal the entry regulation
modify die regulation to achieve the standard set forth in Section 4, or state the basis on which it concludes the
regulation conforms witii die standard set forth in Section 4.

(C) Any person may petition any agency to repeal or modify a public service restriction within its jurisdiction.

(D) Within 90 days of a petition filed under (C) above, die agency shall eidier establish and within 9 montiis
implement die requirements of Section 7, or state the basis on which it concludes die public serN-ice restriction
conforms with die standard set forth in Section 5.

Section 9. {Prohibition of Restrictive Provisions}

(A) Notwitiistanding any odier provision of law, an agency shall not award or extend any franchise diat has the
effect of conflicting widi either Section 4 or Section 5.

(B) Notwitiistanding any odier provision of law, an agency shall not execute or extend any contract provision,
including any labor contract provision that has the effect of conflicting with either Section 4 or Section 5.

(C) This section shall not require die cancellation of any contract clause in effect as of January 1 of die year of
enactment so long as die contract expires no later than 24 mondis after enactment.

Section 10. {Enforcement.)

(A) Any time after 90 days following a petition filed pursuant to Section 6 tiiat has not been favorably acted upon
by die agency, die person(s) filing a petition challenging an entry regulation or public service restriction may file
an action in a Coun of general jurisdiction.

(B) Wid) respect to die challenge of an entry regulation, die plaintiff(s) shall pitsvail if die Court finds by a
preponderance of evidence diat die challenged entry regulation on its face or in its effect burdens die creation of
a business, die entry of a business into a particular market, or entry into a profession or occupation; and either
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(DTl^at the chaUenged entry teguladon is not demonstrably necessary and carefully tailon=d to fulfill

legitimate public health, safety, or welfare objecnves; or

n. Where the challenged entry regulation .s necessary to the legitimate pubUc health, safety, or welfare

S^vrsuch^bSesTan ^^effectively served by regulations less burdensome to economic

opportunity

either.

(1) That the challenged pubUc service restriction ,s not demonstrably necessary and carefuUy tailored

to fulfil legitimate pubUc health, safety or welfare objectives; or

n^ Where the challenged pubUc service restriction is necessary to fulfil legitimate public health, safety

l?w!;?^<;S;:S« f:c?objectivescan beeff^^^^^

participation.

Section 11. {Severability clause.)

Section 12. {Repealer clause.)

Section 13. {Effective date,)

91-562 0-96-3
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Testimony of Leroy Jones
before the

U.S. House of Representatives
Small Business Subcommittee
on Regulation and Paperwork

June 7, 1995

My name is Leroy Jones. I am an owner and co-founder of Freedom Cab

Company in Denver, Colorado. I am here to speak with you about laws and

regulations that kill minority entrepreneurship and opportunity, particuleirly in the

inner city. My personal story involves taxicabs. But the issues at hand is about

much more than just one industry and just one man. It is representative of

countless other people in many other fields. Tajricabs like many other occupations

offer the prospect of earning a decent living, but like so many other industries it is

closed to new people outside America's economic mainstream.

No one with a dream for success should ever lose hope. But holding on to

that dream, in the face of a seemingly unbeatable opponent, is hard work. Trust me.

Fve been there.
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America is the great experiment of the world. It is supposed to be the

country where a person, if they work hard enough, can succeed. But many of us

who want nothing more than the chance to earn an honest living and by our own

example show to our children the benefits ofwork, are being denied that right. And

we are not alone. Nearly 90 percent of cities with population of 50,000 or more

restrict entry into the taxi industry-an industry perfectly suited to low-income

minority entrepreneurs because it doesn't cost much money, it doesn't require a lot

of training, the more you work the more your earn, and our communities are so

under-served by existing cab service, there is a great market niche to fill.

With all the current restrictions, the only people who can afford to work

within the system to own and operate cabs are the very rich. Do you know that a

taxi medallion in New York City now sells for $140,000? In Boston its $96,000.

This creates a system that isn't "justice for all." It creates a system that is "just us

with money" and blocks another poor man's gateway to mainstream America.

For the past three years, me and my partners, Ani Ebong and Girma

Molalegne, have all shared the dream of starting our own company-one that would

be different than any other in Denver. For starters, most cab companies treat
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drivers like sharecroppers charging them up to $400 per week for the privilege of

driving a company cab. Because we have been drivers, our company would charge a

lot less. That way we would make a profit and the person who did most of the work

would also benefit.

We would also service Five Points, one ofDenver's mainly minority

communities, where we live. In Five Points, like in most inner cities, a cab is the

only thing harder to get than a job. We knew ifwe could just get on the streets, we

would be able to provide plenty of both to the community.

But the Colorado PubHc Utilities Commission, the regulatory agency that

oversees the taxi industry in the state, blocked us every step of the way. No new

cab company had been allowed to operate in Denver since 1947.

Let me repeat that. The state of Colorado had not let a single new cab

company offer service for nearly 50 years. This was not because there weren't

entrepreneurs like myself who wanted to provide better service. It was because of

stupid government rules that protected existing companies fi^m much-needed

competition.
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Unfortunately, what has happened in Denver is happening in many other

dties across our great country. In almost every big city in your home states,

taxicabs are heavily regulated and would-be entrepreneurs are blocked from

competing. In cities such as Los Angeles, Chicago, Boston, New York, Miami,

Buffalo, Houston, and San Francisco, and market entry is tightly restricted.

While some cities prohibit outright new entrants to the taxicab market,

others achieve the same results while paying lip service to open entry. Many cities

like Denver and Philadelphia say each new cab company must show 'pubhc

convenience and necessity,' is not being met-a standard that is almost impossible

to satisfy. In my case, the Colorado Public Utilities Commission allowed my well-

financed competitors to ask for unreasonable information, such as our five-year

advertising plan and the list of over 100 potential drivers who were now driving for

their companies', as a way to block our entry and put fear in the hearts of their

drivers.

The only winners with current taxi restrictions are existing cab companies.

The consumers are biggest losers (second only to would-be cab owners); they pay
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higher fares, wait longer for a cab, and get worse service than they would with

competition. The days when a man or women could work as a part-time cab driver

to earn a little extra money for their kid's education are disappearing fast.

Taxicab regulations aren't designed to protect public health and safety.

Regulations, such as background checks on drivers, vehicle safety inspections and

insurance requirements, are needed. But what aren't needed are regulations whose

only purpose is to protect existing companies from competition. These kind of

regulations are all-too-common and are simply un-American.

Poor, minority, and elderly consumers are hit especially hard by these

regulations. Members of these groups are less likely to own cars and are more

likely to live in areas that are served poorly, if at all, by taxicabs and other forms of

public transit. A study by the Urban Mass Transit Administration showed that by

every measure, low-income people "rely more heavily on taxicabs than do higher

income individuals." As another study showed low-income people spend a larger

percentage of their incomes on taxis than do high-income people, and in many taxi

markets, consumption of taxi rides per capita is higher for low-income people. As a

result, [these regulations] impose a disproportionate burden on low-income people."
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Let's think for just a minute what it would mean to take away these kind of

barriers. One study found regulations restricting entry of new cabs and preventing

fare discounting cost consumers nearly $800 miUion annually. Moreover, removal

of these restrictions would create 38,000 new jobs in the taxi industry, many of

them for minority cab owner/operators.

But there is growing hope at the grassroots. Teaming up again with the

Institute for Justice. I spoke to Cincinnati dty councU encouraging them to open up

their cab market for the first time in decades. The market is now opened. The

Institute also achieve the same effect in IndianapoUs and the result are

encouraging, but not surprising:

In Indianapolis, after only six months of deregulation, there was a 119

percent increase in the number of cabs operating with 32 new companies operating

52 cabs. Seventy-five percent of the new companies are female or minority owned.

Nearly all of the new taxi owners are former drivers who long-wanted a chance to

own their own business. Fares were reduced: Pick-up charges dropped 12 percent,

the average mileage rate dropped three percent and the average first-mile rate
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dropped seven percent. Cabs are safer with all companies passing police

background checks as well as an enhanced safety inspection and carrying at least

$100,000 in insiurance coverage. The program has been so successful that since taxi

deregulation, the city has not receive one written complaint; whereas they used to

receive hundreds of complaints annually.

Within the next month, Freedom Cabs will become the first new taxi

company to provide service in Denver when the first of our 50 taxis will roll out on

Denver's streets. Our fleet of drivers will be made up of other would-be

entrepreneurs, who like me, have been shut out of Denver's taxi market by over-

reaching government regulations that stifled people's ability to earn an honest

living.

Originally, my partners and I called our cab company "Quick Pick Cabs" to

convey the quick and convenient service we wanted to provide Denver's riding

public. But after the bureaucratic nightmare we went through, we decided to

change our compan/s name to "Freedom Cabs" because that is what we wanted for

ourselves and other cab drivers—fi-eedom from the state-imposed taxi monopoly of

three existing companies.
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I encourage you to do whatever you can do to break down these barriers to

entrepreneurship. They impair our ability to earn a good living for ourselves and

for their families. They limit our opportunity to develop our skills and to work for

ourselves, instead of others. Itdestroy our dream of a brighter future. There is no

guarantee of success, but it is only by encountering this ban that we realized that

we would not even have a chance to compete. Until all such oppressive bans are

removed, minority entrepreneurs will be denied one of the most basic civil rights . . .

the right to earn an honest living.

I want to leave you here today with two very different quotes but they both

sum up what Fm trying to explain. The first is firom James Brown. He used to

sing, "I don't want nobody to give me nothing. Open up the door. Fll get it myself."

Like the song says-black entrepreneurs don't need anything more than an

opportunity. Well take care of the rest ourselves.

The second quote talks about the risk to society that is created if this

opportunity isn't available and if inner-city would be entrepreneurs are not given

the opportunity to succeed or Sail on their own merits. It say. The most dangerous
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creation in society is the man who has nothing to lose." Giving minority

entrepreneurs a stake in our society by protecting their right to earn an honest

living gives them a reason to be a positive part of society.

Thank you for this opportunity to speak with you today.
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Minority Entrepreneurship and the Effects ofRegulations

TESTIMONY OF JACK KEMP
Before the

Committee on Small Business

June 7, 1995

Chairman Meyers, Representatives LaFalce and members of the Committee, it is a pleasure to

appear before you today on the topic of minority entrepreneurship. I have been asked to paint

a broader picture this morning and I expect some of my fellow witnesses to address the details

of how regulatory barriers inhibit the formation and growth of businesses in general, and

specifically in our minority conununities.

I can't emphasize enough that it is time we did something dramatic to help create jobs and

business opportunities for the minority population centers of this nation. How can we

possibly begin to address the problems of crime, drugs, and education without first

recognizing that without jobs and opportunity, there is little hope and few reasons to graduate

from school, stay off drugs, and resist the underground economy? Without the expectation

that there is a good job waiting out of college or high school, there will be no link between

effort and reward, and no way to address fully the social pathologies that are all too prevalent

in our inner cities.

Robert Kennedy once said, "To fight poverty without the power of free enterprise is to wage

war with a single platoon while great armies are left to stand on the side."

First, we need to reexamine who creates jobs in our economy and what incentives affect their

decisions and actions. It's a well-known fact that most new jobs in America are created by

entrepreneurs and small businesses, not the Fortune 500. In fact, these economic activists.
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who put capital at risk to start new businesses, were responsible for nearly all the new jobs

created in the 1980s.

As Eai\ Graves, publisher of Black Enterprise magazine, has said, "If African Americans are

ever to secure a full measure of freedom and independence in this country . . . they must not

only be employees; they must become employers. They must not only collect paychecks; they

must issue paychecks . . . They must not only have the dollars to stay in hotels; they must have

[access to] the mega-dollars to own hotels."

But over the past several years, the federal government has created an economic climate in

America that is indifferent at best, and hostile at worst, to the agents of economic growth.

Washington now imposes a vast array of income taxes, corporate taxes, payroll taxes,

regulations, and mandated benefits that encourage businesses to keep employees to an

absolute minimum. Today, the combined tax and regulatory burden on risk-taking -- the

process by which new enterprises and jobs are created - has climbed to the levels of the early

1980s.

Madam Chairman, for over a decade now I have testified again and again in favor of

enterprise zones in both the House and the Senate.

The key idea behind the original enterprise zone proposals was that tax incentives could spur

the creation of new jobs and new businesses. Entrepreneurs and investors would be

rewarded for creating real private sector jobs through powerful incentives such as eliminating

the capital gains tax in impoverished communities.

The point must be made that the most intrusive regulation on businesses, and this is especially

true for small businesses, is a high marginal tax rate and a complex, burdensome tax code. As
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you may know, I have been appointed by Senator Dole and Speaker Gingrich to chair a

commission on tax reform and economic growth. The primary purpose of the commission Is

to move beyond tax reform toward a complete overhaul of the entire tax system. We wiU

design a system that is flatter, fairer, and simpler; one that wUl encourage strong economic

growth, greater opportunity, and more jobs, income savings, and investment. Lower and

fairer marginal tax rates are absolutely th^- most important thing we can do for the small

business owner.

Look, for instance, at the effect of a lower marginal tax rate on the job market in the 1980's.

The 80's wasn't a decade of greed, it was a decade of growth. Unprecedented non-inflationary

growth. The American economy produced nearly 20 million new jobs, more than Europe and

Japan combined. Some five and a half million new businesses were created. And while

Fortune 500 companies did trim down to meet the foreign and domestic challenges, the

entrepreneurial and mid-level business sector took over, generating more than 90% of all net

new jobs. Americas real GNP surged by 32% during the Reagan-Bush recovery and revenues

grew by nearly 40%.

And it was not a narrow recovery for the select few, but a broad-based recovery that included

women, Blacks, Hispanics, immigrants, and indeed all Americans. According to the Wall

Street Journal, from 1982 to 1987, the number of black owned firms increased by nearly 38%,

about triple the overall business growth rate during that period. Hispanic-owned businesses

soared by 81%. Women owned firms expanded by 57% and their sales nearly tripled.

Furthermore, a high marginal tax rate is made worse by the presence of a capital gains tax.

When the top capital gains tax rate was reduced from 49 percent under previous law to 20

percent, the number of small company startups more than doubled, rising to 640,000 from

270,000, creating 15 million new jobs. By eliminating the capital gains tax in especially
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depressed areas, we can put that enormous job-creating potential to work where it is needed

most. Yet, some still fail to realize that a capital gains tax cut will not serve the rich. Rather,

it will benefit those seeking to become rich. Instead of focusing on "What are the causes of

poverty" we need to focus on "What are the causes of wealth?"

Starting in 1986, Congress raised the capital gains tax by 40%, sharply reducing the flow of

venture capital into new enterprises. Then, Congress passed and President Bush signed the

1990 Budget Agreement, which raised individual income tax rates and pushed millions of

successful entrepreneurs into a higher tax bracket.

Minority entrepreneurs have most of their capital gains in front of them. My personal opinion

is that cutting the capital gains tax will most help minority firms by freeing up capital from

status quo business and assets like blue chip stocks and government securities and expanding

access to new, riskier firms and enterprises which are the best vehicle for minority

advancement and wealth accumulation.

Until the disincentives to take risks and create jobs are addressed, job growth will remain

stagnant and Americans' concern over their economic future will climb. The key lies in

unleashing the job-creating power of America's entrepreneurs and small businesses, not

viewing them as a limitless revenue source for an insatiable federal bureaucracy. Our

economic pohcy should be aimed at nurturing and expanding the recovery, not burdening

American workers, investors, and businesses with higher taxes and more government

regulation.

A perfect example of the types of governmental handicaps can be seen in our very own

District of Columbia. Decades of excessive tax and regulatory policy have created in

Washington a vicious circle of middle class flight, job destruction, diminishing opporunity.
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increasing demands on public assistance and a shrinking tax base. Of course, this Icind of

counter-productive social and econoniic policy is very expensive, and we should not be

surprised that it has brought us to the present budgetary "crisis" that fills our newspapers and

TV screens.

This is why I am supporting a radical plan of eliminating the federal tax burden in the District

to encourage economic growth and job creation in D.C. by instituting, among other

provisions, a flat tax of about 15 or 16 percent.

In brief, the plan has five basic components:

1

.

The federal income tax would be zeroed out and replaced by a 15 to 16 percent flat tax on

personal and corporate income, with a $15,000 to $20,000 exemption on personal income,

removing low income families from the tax rolls altogether.

2. The capital gains tax, which discourages the creation of new business and new jobs, would

be eliminated altogether within the District lines for anyone who lives and invests his or her

savings in the city.

3. Property taxes would be frozen; and in order to spur the renovation of the city's housing

stock, no tax increases would be levied for improvements to an existing structure.

4. To promote entrepreneur^hip, historically the prime route out of poverty, all excessive

requirements for business licenses would be removed. As I have often said, it should be at

least as easy to get a business license as it is to get an unemployment check.

5. And most importantly, all low income residents of the Distnct would own stock in a trust
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created from publicly owned property, giving them a stake in the financial viabihty of the city

and allowing them to benefit from an inevitable increase in property values.

Even static estimates show that the city would better than break even. But the whole point of

a federal exemption, tax cut and relaxation of bureaucratic regulations is that the stimulative

effect on the economy — the creation of new businesses, new jobs, and an expanded tax base -

- would be almost certain to expand the city's revenues.

It is extremely important that we enable entrepreneurs, and especially African Americans,

women, Hispanics, and other minority businessmen and businesswomen, to take full

advantage of the great opportunities available in our global marketplace. Barriers to the

success of our entrepreneurs must be removed. With a new Congress that seems to be

comniitted to the success of the entrepreneur, it is time to stop talking and start acting. With

your leadership. Madam Chairman, and with the leadership of this Committee, I look forward

to the needed relief of burdensome "over-government" from the backs of all of the small

business owners in America.
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STATI ITORY AND REGULATORY BARRIERS TO MINORITY KNTRRPRENEIJRSHIP

Report to House of Representatives

Peter N. Kirsanow

June 7, 1995

A. Statutory and Regulatory Constraints on Black Businesses: The New Poll

Tax .

A wide variety of regulations ranging from those issued by the EPA to those

promiUgated by OSHA directly and indirectly stifle minority entiepreneurship and employment.

Compliance with ADA and FMLA regulations, just to name a few, have substantial paperwork

compliance costs. To the extent regulations raise the cost of doing business (or raise the cost of

labor), they raise formidable barriers to marketplace and workplace entry that have a profotmd

effect upon inexperienced, marginally capitalized firms. A disproportionate number of those

firms (and their employees) are black.

The subject regulations are issued at the local and state level as well as by federal

agencies. The cimiulative effect of these regulations places a substantial burden on any start up.

Paperwork compliance alone places an enormous drag on productivity. Just as the poll taxes of

decades past chilled black voting today's plethora of regulations chill black entrepreneurship.

The number of regulations affecting business and employment is so great that a

report thereon would easily run into the thousands of pages. They include occupational licensing

laws, franchise fees, safety regulations, etc. They may be well intended, but each adds to the cost

of business and labor. This report will, therefore, briefly review the effects ofrandom federal

requirements and the regulations promulgated thereunder: The Davis-Bacon Act; The Striker
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Replacement Ban Order; and Minimum Wage Requirements. The effects of these sample regs

can be extnqxjlated to regs promulgated under the ADA, FMLA, OSHA, etc.

B. The Davis-Bacon Act Renders Minority Firms Uncompetitive .

The Davis-Bacon Act requires federal contractors on public works and

maintenance projects costing over $2,000 to pay "prevailing wages" to their employees. The

prevailing wage is usually the union scale.

The Act was passed in 1931 with the intent of barring black non-union woricers

from the South from competing for jobs with white, more highly paid union workers from the

North.

The relevant regulations of the Department of Labor insure that most contractors

wilt pay their employees non-market rates. The General Accounting Office has found that the

rates set under DOL regulations are inaccurate averages of prevailing area rates. The rates are

frequently much higher than the true prevailing rates for the area.

The regulations are biased against non-imion labor and non-union contractors. It

is simply more efficient for contractors who are required to pay prevailing wages to hire workers

through union hiring halls than to recruit labor off the street. The hiring hall method of

recruitment places black workers at a disadvantage since the regulations place an operational

premium on the employment of highly skilled or craft workers. Because black workers are

under-represented among highly skilled classifications, fewer blacks are hired. Moreover, blacks

are still under-represented in construction unions.

The negative effect ofthe Davis-Bacon Act on both entrepreneurs and employees

is supported by considerable statistical as well as anecdotal evidence. For example, an analysis
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by the U.S. Comptroller General found that "Davis-Bacon wage requirements discourage non-

union contractors from bidding on federal construction work, thus harming minority and young

workers who are more likely to work in the non-imionized sector of the construction industry."

(Report to Congress, HRD-79-18; The Davis-Bacon Act Should Be Repealed, 32 (April 27,

1 979)). More than 90% of black construction contractors are non-union and most black

construction employees are non-union. They are disproportionately barred by the Act and its

regs:

One of the most striking effects of the law is the way it makes life difficult

for the little guy: the immigrant, the black or woman contractor operating out of a

rusty Ford van, the painter who hires students or unskilled labor as helpers. The

Baltimore-based Enterprise Foundation, a developer of low-income housing

nationwide, has found that even in areas like Dallas, where Davis-Bacon wages

aren't out of line, the law drives up prices because small contractors are scared

away by the paperwork and other requirements. "When the small firms shy away

from the job, that kicks us up to the next level of contractor," says Gene Ruckle, a

development specialist for the foundation. "When we go out to the bigger firms,

they say 'Aha!' and give us a nice fat bid." Barry, The Washington Monthly

(December, 1990) at 6.

The Davis-Bacon Act costs taxpayers approximately $2 billion dollars per year in

inflated construction costs. Paperwork costs alone amount to $200 million dollars per year. The

expenses are compoimded by the incalcuable costs associated with barring black firms from

competing on public works projects.

Most black contractors are small firms. Their ability to compete with larger firms

def)ends on large part on cost efficiencies. That fact is substantially a function of lower

overhead—including the relatively lower wages paid to their employees.

The Davis-Bacon Act places black firms at an extreme disadvantage by

mandating that they pay inflated wages. The Act also forces them to adopt inflexible work
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practices that destroys their ability to compete with larger finns by being more productive and

efficient. The Act in effect requires firms to be just as inefficient as larger firms, fi-eezing the

status quo and removing any competitive advantage that might give smaller firms a foothold into

the marketplace.

A statute enacted with an intent to discriminate on the basis of race and which

continues to have a pernicious discriminatory effect is unconstitutional and must be repealed.

C. Minimum Wage Increases Raise The Cost of Doing Business .

Labor Secretary Robert Reich has advocated raising the current minimum wage of

$4.25 per hour by at least $1.00. He also supports indexing the minimum to the rate of inflation.

The proposal is ostensibly pro-worker. Indeed, the original intent of Congress in

enacting the minimum wage law was to insure "a minimum standard of living necessary for the

health, efficiency and well-being of workers."

But raising the minimum wage by indexing it to inflation is harmful to the well-

being of many unskilled workers, a large proportion ofwhom are black. It also penalizes black

entrepreneurs who are less able to absorb mandated wage increases. The minimum wage law is

particularly devastating to black youths, whose unemployment rate exceeds 65% in some areas.

Nearly forty years ago, before substantial increases in the minimum wage, the unemployment

rate for black youths was actually lower than that for white youths. Since that time, black youth

unemployment has far surpassed that of white youths.

Even during Jim Crow, many businesses employed black kids to perform general

labor. Although some ofthe youth were unskilled and poorly educated, and the task assigned

(sweeping floors, pumping gas, moving product, etc.) were simple, the kids were, in the strictest
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sense, valuable employees. That is, they were worth every penny they were paid.

But as the minimum wage rose, the relative value of unskilled labor did not.

Gradually, employers just found other ways to get the job done. And the teens, without family

businesses or a network of contacts to fall back on, were increasingly left without jobs.

Studies by the Bureau of Labor Statistics and others reveal that after adjusting for

other factors, a lO-cent increase in the minimum wage has historically resulted in a loss of

30,000 to 50,000 full-time jobs. Industries employing youths or low-skilled workers are usually

hardest hit.

The reason for this displacement is that the government-mandated increase at least

temporarily prices marginally skilled workers out of the workplace. It is an arbitrary standard

that distorts the labor market.

The displacement affects not only those earning the minimiun but those whose

wages are bumped upward by the new minimum. Consequently, the wage scales of a significant

percentage ofjob classifications escalate, further driving up overall labor costs. Moreover, tying

the minimum wage to inflation permanently skews the entry level labor market, with a domino

effect upon the wage levels immediately above.

The minimum wage law is but one of a number of government mandates such as

unemployment insurance, ADA compliance, workers' compensation insurance, family leave,

overtime, etc. These mandates may be well intended and have varying degrees of utility.

Nonetheless, each adds to the cost of labor.

Their cumulative effect is to erect formidable barriers to workplace entry for

unskilled workers: At some point the cost of employing the unskilled worker begins to exceed
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his value to the employer. (The Department ofLabor's own statistics show that these

requirements have caused a 30 percent increase in per-worker costs in just the past few years.) It

is no coincidence that black unemployment has risen with the proliferation ofemployment

regulations.

Proponents of the minimum wage increase counter that since it applies to all U.S.

employers, no specific employer is unfairly disadvantaged. That argument may have had some

limited validity in the past, but it ignores the realities of the contemporary global marketplace.

The labor cost of a U.S. company producing widgets must now be competitive with those of

Taiwanese widget companies.

When labor costs affect competitiveness, an employer has at least four options:

Layoffs. The quickest way to reduce labor costs is to trim the size of the work

force. Generally, those with the fewest skills and least seniority are the first to go. It is often the

case in many industries that the least senior employees are black.

Automation. When a minimum wage hike causes the cost of labor to eclipse that

of certain capital investments, the low-skilled worker may find himself permanentiy replaced by

a machine. Machines typically do not file workers' compensation or overtime claims.

Relocation. The added costs associated with a higher minimum wage may also

make it more profitable to export jobs, despite tariffs and increased shipping costs. We need not

worry that the North American Free Trade Agreement might create a "giant sucking sound of

jobs going south," as so vividly described by Ross Perot. A perpetually rising minimum wage

insulated from market forces could provide similar sound effects.

Temps. Those who advocate minimum wage increases apparentiy presume that
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employers will take no measures to prevent erosion of profit margins due to spiraling labor costs.

Employers seeking to avoid metastasizing regulatory burdens have increasingly resorted to

temporary or part-time employees.

The Bureau of Labor Statistics reports that after the most recent 1 1% minimum

wage hike, the number of temporary workers grew by nearly 20%. The minimum w^e has

doubled in the last 20 years. During the same period the use oftemps has quadrupled.

Of course, the mushrooming use oftemps and part-timers is not solely attributable

to minimum wage hikes. But when the minimum wage drives overall labor costs to a certain

critical mass, temps become a cost-effective alternative. As with machines, the use of temps and

part-timers generally does not trigger as many costly federal and state requirements as does the

employment of full-time workers.

Many black businesses simply caimot employ any of the four foregoing

alternatives. They therefore are less able to absorb a minimum wage hike and remain

competitive. The vast urban wastelands devoid of businesses that once thrived in black

communities are at least partially the result of increased labor costs.

An inflation-indexed minimum wage would aggravate the chronic under-

employment and unemployment of those it is designed to benefit. It would impair the ability of

many black entrepreneurs and workers to gain that crucial first foothold on the ladder of

economic upward mobility. The result is a persistent dependency class.

It is one thing when the analytical sclerosis of bureaucrats punishes the intended

beneficiaries of government policy. After all, good intentions frequently have bad consequences.

It is quite another for disingenuous politicians to champion, under the banner of "fairness," or
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"middle class rights" policies proven to be pernicious.

D. The Striker Replacement Ban is a Bareaining Tax That Will Render

Smaller Firms Uncompetitive.

On March 8, 1995, President Clinton issued an executive order debarring any

federal contractors who invoke their legal right to replace striking workers. Since many minority

businesses contract or subcontract with the federal government and tend to have a sizable

percentage of black employees (due in no small measure to E. O. 1 1246), the order would have

more than a tangential effect upon black business and employment. This is especially true

considering that the non-construction unionized workforce is increasingly black. Indeed, in

1994, 21% of all black workers were unionized, compared with 15% of all white workers.

The law currently permits employers to permanently replace striking workers

under certain conditions, a right that has been in existence since the Supreme Court decided

NLRB V. Mackav Radio and Telegraph Co. more than fifty years ago. The right to strike and the

right to replace are pivotal elements of a federal labor policy that recognizes economic self-help

as vital to the collective bargaining process. The balancing of these economic self-help remedies

allows bargaining disputes to be decided by the interplay of economic forces. The economic

rationale of the federal policy is that an employer's ability to hire permanent replacements is the

most reliable barometer of the legitimacy of the strikers' wage demands. For example, suppose

the employees of the"Widget Co." believe that woricers with their level of skills and training in

the widget industry should be paid $10.00. The company maintains that $8.00 is more consistent

with the current maiketplace. Negotiations reach an impasse and the employees strike, asserting

that the company's offer is below the prevailing market wage.
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If the Widget Co. can easily hire permanent replacements at $8.00 an hour, it is a

good indication that the $10.00 demanded by the employees exceeds the market rate for workers

in the widget industry. The Union must, therefore, make some movement in its bargaining

demands or weather an unproductive strike.

On the other hand, if the Widget Co. cannot hire permanent replacements at $8.00

an hour, it must give serious consideration to the higher Union demand or risk going out of

business. Under either set of facts, the company's labor costs will ultimately be competitive with

the prevailing industry standards. The company will be less likely to be forced out of business

due to artificial, non-competitive labor costs.

Implementation of the striker replacement ban would radically alter the bargaining

balance by eliminating market forces from the equation. Consequently, any inclination to strike

would not be sufficiently tempered by economic reality.

Implementation of the proposed order would spur the development of at least

three strike scenarios:

• Deprived of the right to permanently replace strikers, a company may be

forced to capitulate to an inflated Union wage demand unrelated to

prevailing market conditions. By doing so, the company may be

uncompetitive and may be forced to cut back operations or even cease

business.

• Under a second scenario, a company does not give in to the inflated wage

demand of striking employees. Because it is barred from hiring strikers to

continue operations, the company's customer-base dwindles, cutbacks
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ensue and it may eventually go out of business.

• The third alternative is for a company to choose the path of least

resistance. American businesses already chafe under regulations and

constraints perceived by some as burdensome. The order will also provide

companies with further impetus to export jobs to countries without similar

restrictions.

Under any of the aforementioned circumstances, the workers whom the order

purports to benefit suffer. The jobs eliminated may never return in this era where American

business and labor must compete against their counterparts around the world.

While unfavorable ramifications abound with its issuance, the order will do little

to augment protections already available to striking workers. Indeed, the use ofpermanent

replacements is currently limited by a variety of constraints—so much so that the option is rarely

used.

Permanent replacements may not be used without financial peril in a strike

precipitated or prolonged by the employer's commission of an unfair labor practice.

Economic strikers not guilty of strike misconduct may not be discharged by the

employer and are entitled to reinstatement upon making an unconditional offer to return to work.

In addition, employers may not discriminate against returning strikers with respect to wages,

benefits, seniority or terms and conditions of employment. Strikers even retain voting rights in

representation elections after the strike starts.

Black businesses would also have particular difficulty weathering a strike or the

threat thereof Most black business do not have a sufficient capitalization, inventory, customer
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base, etc. to survive even a short-term strike. Therefore, they would likely find themselves in the

first scenario above.

Moreover, the order lags behind the evolutionary curve of labor bargaining

tactics. In recent years, Unions have increasingly employed a number of sophisticated

alternatives to strikes which are sometimes more effective and carry fewer consequences for

workers. Some of the alternatives include consumer boycotts, publicity campaigns and

administrative actions through federal regiJatory agencies.

The striker replacement ban amounts to a bargaining tax upon business. For

many black firms, the tax will cut into margin. For others, it will deter them from pursuing

certain federal contract opportunities.

D. Occupational and Business Fees and Licensing Raise the Cost of

Marketplace Entry .

Entry into various businesses and occupations is regulated by federal, state and

local governments. Most licensure laws are not a result of consumer groups lobbying for higher

standards. Rather, they are the direct consequence of occupational incumbents' desire to limit

the number of practitioners within their respective occupations, thereby increasing demand and

driving up prices.

Licensure laws cover a number of businesses, including plimibers, electricians,

beauticians, taxi drivers, food service, pest control, etc. Licensure laws pertaining to these

businesses often contain candidate requirements only tangentially related to actual job

performance. For example, minimum educational requirements mandating that e.g.,

cosmetologists having a high school diploma often have no bearing on a candidate's ability to
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competently perfonn their occupational tasks.

Educational standards wholly unrelated to job duties are unlawfiil because they

have a disparate impact on certain protected classes. Yet arbitrary occupational licensing

standards that have the same effect abound.

Licensure laws often require attendance at "accredited" or "approved" schools for

specific periods of time. Again, these requirements are often unrelated to actual competence.

The tuition levels frequently deter potential impecunious entrants. In fact, several studies have

shown virtually no difference between the perfonnance of those meeting licensure requirements

and those who do not. Licensure laws are yet another artificial barrier to entry that

disproportionately affects blacks.
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Testimony of Art Pearson
before the

VS. House of Representatives

Small Business Subcommittee

_ on
Regulation and Paperwork

Jane 7, 1996

My name is Art Pearson. I am an electrical and general contractor in

Tacoma, Washington. Much ofmy business involves contracts for highway

construction and traffic and street lighting-all federally aided Davis-Bacon work.

Pearson Electric & General Contracting Co. is a union shop that employs

more than a dozen employees. Because we are a union shop and unions in

Washington State are mainly white, nearly all of my employees are white. Of

Washington State's 109,000 construction workers, only 2,000 are black.

I am concerned about the rising tide ofjoblessness and violence in the black

community. As an African American, I believe I have an obligation to improve the

quality of life in my conmiunity. But the Davis-Bacon Act is standing in my way.

As many of you know, the Davis-Bacon Act was passed in 1931 at the urging

of unions. With Davis-Bacon, Congress neutralized black labor competition by
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reqixiring that •prevailing wages' be paid on all federal projects valued at more

than $2,000-in essence, all federally financed construction projects. In practice,

"prevailing wages" meant union wages, effectively counting out any laborer who

could not command union-scale wages. Well-capitalized companies could afford

union wages, but their unions usually kept blacks out. Non-unionized businesses-

which were often less well capitalized-could not afford to pay those prohibitive

rates on labor.

Today, construction unions still try to keep the black labor pool out And

many black-owned firms are still small and nonunion. To seek Davis-Bacon

contracts minority firms must not only pay inflated wages and adopt inefficient

work practices, but must expose themselves to huge compliance costs and threats of

litigation and union harassment. Few minority-owned firms win Davis-Bacon

contracts, and many others give up trying. The widening net of federal government

means that, in practice, few contracts available to my business, for example, are

outside the power of the Act Davis-Bacon remains a principal reason why blacks

are unemployed at twice the rate of whites in the construction trade. With less

than 13 percent of the American people involved in organized labor, it is reasonable

to ask why the federal government is spending one-eighth of every project dollar

limiting the access ofthe other 87 percent of the work force. Union activity is

protected in an array of policies and agencies. There is no reason for the Federal

Government to also be the union steward.



91

If the Davis-Bacon Ace were removed today, I, and other contractors like me,

would be able to hire more people for the same or fewer taxpayer dollars, complete

more projects for the same tax dollars, and complete them more quickly.

Davis-Bacon is a waste of taxpayer funds. The Act accounts for 20 percent of

the $232 billion construction business nationaDy. Repealing the Act would save the

federal government approximately $1 billion on construction costs and $100 million

in administrative costs each year. Costs of compliance with the Act for the

construction industry total nearly $190 million per year. The Act*s repeal would

also result in the creation of an estimated 31,000 new construction jobs, most of

which would go to members of minority groups.

Stated as simply as possible: Davis-Bacon means federal government

contractors must hire fewer workers but pay them exorbitant wages, work on fewer

construction projects and to complete them more slowly.

The amount of paperwork that a contractor is required to fill out as a result

of regulations governing Davis-Bacon also prevents small, minority-owned firms

from seeking Davis-Bacon projects. Many small firms do not have available

personnel with the necessary expertise to complete myriad forms and reports the

regulations require. This provides a great advantage to the larger (and usuaUy
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highly unionized) firms who have more resources to devote to eompljring with the

Act*s requirements.

At Pearson Electric, we spendliour after useless hour filling out certified

payroll reports, monthly utilization reports, labor and industries affidavit of wages,

equal employment opportunity reports, reports on subcontractors, reports on

approval of material sources, certificate of material origin reports and so on. The

paperwork requirements are so extensive in fact, that I thought at one time of

getting out ofthe construction industry and beginning a firm dedicated solely to

processing federal paperwork for other firms. What is truly tmfortunate is that I

tried to hire a number of minority subcontractors who would have nothing to do

with the federal contracts I had won because the paperwork requirements were too

burdensome.

Most of the work I do as an electrician involves traffic signals and

streetlights. Seventy-five to 80 percent of that work is unskilled labor work. This

involves removing sod or grass, digging trenches or removing asphalt, pouring

concrete and mnlring wooden forms, matalling conduit, and replacing all the same.

It does not require a skilled oraftsnoan as the union job classification dictates. But

because of the union job classifications, if the job even remotely involves electrical

work, it must be performed by bh electrician who is paid $27 per hour. This is the

equivalent of requiring everyone in a hospital's operating room, fnm the scrub
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nurse and orderly to the doctor who is perfonning the surgery, to be paid at the rate

of a trained physician. These requirements are a waste of taxpayers' money and

they are just another way of keeping poor people from these higher paying jobs.

There is no valid justification for paying a skilled electrician $27 an hour to dig a

ditch when you can hire three people who are willing to dig that same ditch for an

equal total wage.

Just for a minute, lefs imagine we apply this foolish requirement to your

offices here on Capitol Hill. Tm sure each ofyou have a hard-working staffmember

who answers phones, attends legislative meetings on your behalf, assists you in

speech writing and might occasionaUy even drive you to an event Now apply what

Davis-Bacon does to my business to your business. Imagine the headaches you

would get trying to classify, under penalty of law for mistakes, that one hard-

working staff member's time spent between the clerical wage earned for the hours

answering phones verses the staff wage earned while attending legislative meetings

verses the speech-writers wage earned to create your next major address verses the

drivers wage earned while driving you to events. It is enough to drive you craay or

out of business or both.

Our federal government must apply the same common sense we smaU

businessmen have always used.

91-562 0-96-4
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From the start the Davis-Bacon Act effectively foreclosed the only means by

which unskilled blacks could learn the necessary skills to become skilled workers.

The initial set of regulations created by the Department of Labor relating to Davis-

Bacon's enforcement did not recognize categories of unskilled workers except for

union apprentices. As a result of this failure, the regulations required a contractor

to pay an unskilled worker who was not part of a union apprenticeship program the

same wage paid to a skilled laborer. Given that blacks were poorly represented in

the unions and their apprenticeship programs, unskilled minority workers were

almost completely excluded from working on Davis-Bacon projects.

This claim is supported by the available statistical evidence. Prior to the

passage of the Davis-Bacon Act, blacks suffered from unemplojrment at

approximately the same rate as the general population. After Davis-Bacon became

law, the rate of minority unemployment began to deviate from that of whites.

The difference in unemployment rates is especially pronounced in the

construction industry. According to a recent study by the National Urban League,

in the fourth quarter of 1992, 26.8 percent of all blacks involved in the construction

industry were unemployed, compared to only 12.6 percent of white construction

workers.
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The young men who are unemployed but seeking skiUs are the ones perhaps

most negatively impacted by Davis-Bacon-no one will pay $60,000 a year to train

someone who pounds nails and must be classified as a "carpenter" as is required in

Boston; or pay $40,000 a year to train a ditch digger in Seattle. Rather than hiring

them, they will continue to be left behind. The only way for unskilled would-be

laborers to become skilled craftsmen is to break into the ranks of the employed as

-helpers." Craftsmen could train those who are currently unskilled and help them

reach the first rung on the economic ladder to better paying work.

For example, when I tried to hire a dozen black youths for a simple job of

tearing off wallboard on a Davis-Bacon project, the labor union refused to allow it

even though I was willing to pay their union dues. I was told there were 300

members ahead of them. Another opportunity to train minority workers was lost.

Despite Davis-Bacon's racist history and its continued discriminatory effects,

only one constitutional challenge has been filed to wipe this vestige ofJim Crow

away. My company, along with four other black-owned construction firms, has

joined others as plaintiffs in a lawsuit filed by the Institute for Justice, challenging

the constitutionahty of the Act.

Tve known the discouragement of a young worker who waits in a union hall

looking for work, but because of their race they are rejected or at best delayed in
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their placement. Members of Congress, the federal government has no place

maintaining a law that promotes such discrimination.

Ifthere is one sommary I can leave yon with it would be this: In 25 years in

the construction business, Fve seen the big picture ofthe Davis-Bacon Act and how

truly Hnrnnging this Act has become to the minority community. Ifwe do not do

something about the way the Davis-Bacon Act wastes our taxpayer dollars, requires

otherwise efBdent companies to become inefficient and perpetuates chronic inner-

city, minority unemployment, it will only create additional problems. I encourage

to you repeal Davis-Bacon and allow black would-be construction workers to get to

work.

I thank you for this opportunity to speak with you today.
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Thank you Congretaman Talent and aeabers of the coaoaittee

for providing the opportunity for me to speak on behalf of the

minority business conaunity. Z am the chairperson of the

National Association of Minority Business. The prime purpose of

the Association is to Insure fair and equitable treatment of

minority businesses from a legislative and regulatory standpoint.

Since affirmative action became the burning issue in 1995, my

plate has been full In meeting the challenge of protecting our

members and their buisinesses. Considering the full-force

legislative and regulatory attacks on the minority business

eonmunity, the possibility of removing regulatory barriers seems

like a glimmer of light in the darkness.

First of all, I suggest that not all regulations are

barriers. The purpose of regulations is usually to protect end

ensure the rights of all citizens. Historically, regulations

were established to correct some fault in the system. Since

there are so many regulations that i^act the small and minority

business coaunuixity, my cooments are broad-based. My testimony
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will address the D«vis Bacon Act, the Service Contract Act,

Federal Acquiiltion Streamlining Act, The Federal Acqulaition

Reform Act, subcontracting, regulatory development, coordination

between federal and atate agencies, and comaunication.

The Davis Bacon Act

First of all, let me say that I am not an expert on the

Davis Bacon Act (DBA) , but 1 will present my understanding

gathered from a coalition of minority business associations.

It is Interesting that the DBA was put into place during a

Similar time in our history when the sentiment was antl-mlnority

business. At that time, the primary purpose was to prevent non-

unioniied Black workers from competing with unionized white

workers. The DBA effectively placed onerous hiring and

administrative burdens on the minority business community.

The DBA requires that categories of labor be hired at pre-

defined labor rates. The way this translates into business

practice is that a business employing a laborer at $10/hour may

have to pay that same laborer $20/hour when bidding on a contract

covered by the DBA. Additionally, the DBA inhibits a minority

business or any other business from bringing on lower wage

employees in a training mode, because no one is going to pay

$20/hour to train an unskilled person.

The other burden that the DBA places on the minority
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business is In the ar«a of weekly wage reports. The average

small minority business owner does their own marketing, project

management and administrative work. The addition of having to

develop, maintain and subait weekly wage reports becomes an

onerous burden on the minority business owner.

One of the good things about the DBA is that it seta payment

standards. In other words* the DBA has its pluses and minuses.

Our strong recommendation, is that the Committee raise the

contract threshold from $2,000 to $100,000. This would allow the

minority business enterprise to bid their existing workforce and

eliminate the unnecessary paperwork. Afttr these modifications

to the DBA are made, then the Committee should review the DBA for

other ways to iaqprove. The Davis-Bacon Act should not be

repealed, but it should be strengthened.

The Service Contract Act

The Service Contract Act (aCA) in conjunction with the

Depart of Labor (DOL) Wage Determination Rates do for the service

industry what the DBA does for the construction industry. The

primary difference is that the rates are usually too low. The

impact on the minority business enterprisa is that they cannot

afford to hire the caliber of staff necessary to accon^lisb the

tasks and they do not have the slse of cos^any to bid the low

rates and still make a sufficient profit. During these tight
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economic times, the SCA/DOL rates btcome the defacto bid rates,

and most MBE's cannot afford to bid. In other words, if the

Committee decides to review the DBA, then it also needs to review

the SCA/DOL rulaa because the SCA/DOL actually effects more

businesses then DBA.

Federal Acquisition str«^Uninq Act

The Federal Acquisition Straamlinlng Act (FASA) has created

major changes in federal procurement. A large percentage of the

minority businsas conmunity is not even aware of the changes and
no one, including Congress, has any idea of the real impact of

those changes. Th« KBE conmunity does not have the wherewithal

to keep abreast of all of the regulatory changes and when they do

become aware, it takes time to absorb and adjust. In my opinion,

it would not be wise for Congress to continue to make major

changes to those policies that directly impact the MBE community.

For instance, FASA was originally written to provide

electronic notification to the small and MBE community under the

Simplified Acquisition Threshold (SAT). Now th« implemsnting

regulations are being written so that the contracting officer can
simply call three business and obtain a quote.

The other regulatory change that is occurring is in the area
of full and open competition. Under the new Federal Acquisition
Reform Act of 1995, bidders will be pre-qualified, and the
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qualifications are slanted towards long established businesses.

Because of the linittd resources of the MBE conmunity. Congress

must act as the watchdog and Insure that these types of

regulatory changes do not negatlrely ijq>act the MBE's.

Subcontracting

The area of subcontracting has continued to be a bone of

contention for th« MBB cotnaunlty. There ar« laws on th« books

that require prime contractors to make their best efforts to

subcontract a certain percentage of their contracts to the saall

and MBE community. The prime contractors have never complied

with the existing laws and make a mockery of the laws through

activities such as exhibit attendance. Due to the economic

downturns, the prime contractors are more and more reluctant to

subcontract any of their contracts. I urge Congress to insure

that current regulations requiring subcontracting plans remain in

place as they are written and that those regulations become

enforced.

Regulatory Development

It is the recommendation of my Association that the MBE

community become involved in the regulatory development process.

Mechanisms and procedures should be established for effective

two-way communication and interaction with affected MBE's. The

normal channel of coomunicatlon, the FAR, cannot be the only
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means of communicating, bacausa many MBE's do not have accass.

MB&'s are stalceholders in the process and It is important that

Congress insure that outreach is conducted to bring NBE's into

the regulatory development process. KBE's need to have input not

only during the development of regulations but also prior to

amendment or deletion.

Coordination between Federal and State

There are many cases when paperwork is duplicative between

Federal and State agencies. One of the most discussed areas is

in the area of certification. For instance, when a company does

business in several states, they are often required to be

certified as an MBE in each state and sometimes in different

cities/counties within the state. We have one member who has a

full-time staff person to file and keep current all of their

certifications across the country. This type of paperwork is

absurd and needs to be abolished as soon as possible.

Communication

As mentioned earlier, communication through the Federal

Acquisition Register (FAR) is not an effective means for the MBE

community. Even Congress is remiss in informing the MBE

community about upcoming legislation that effects the MBE

community. MBE's do not have the financial wherewithal to hire

lobbyists to track legislation or regulations, therefore, it is
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incunbent upon the Congress to see to It that MBE's are kept

informed.

Th«t is the end of ay testimony today. I have tried to

broadly address some of the problems with regulations effecting

minority entrepreneurs. I welcome the opportunity to provide

additional information on any of the subjects that I have

addressed either today or in the future.

Respectfully submitted,

Aleta Robinson Nil son
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Good Morning Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, staff and

invited witnesses. I am Taalib-Din Abdul Uqdah, co-owner of Comrows &
Co., a small business enterprise located, here, in Washington, D.C. I am
forty-three (43) years old, a 1970 graduate of Eastern High School, here in

the District of Columbia and have been self-employed for over twenty (20+)

years. I am not an economist, have never been to college and have no

background in law, accounting, medicine or politics.

I tell you these things about myself in order for you to get a clear picture

as to my perspective on life as it relates to small business and my testimony

before this committee today. It is not based on any theories of law, science

or economics; so don't expect any earth shattering revelations to pour forth

from my lips or from these pages.

What you will get from me is the same simplicity which I was raised with

on Benning Road and carried with me to Anacostia and on to upper

northwest Washington; and that is a strong sense of the difference between

what is right and what is wrong. What you can further anticipate from me is

the truth, smattered with doses of common sense. I have no agenda, hidden

or otherwise; I am affiliated with no wing of any political party; nor do I

hold any memberships in any private clubs or secret organizations. I am a

practicing Muslim. Islam is my religion; and as such I have a great deal of

respect for commerce and trade. My purpose here is twofold; one to discuss

the problem of burdensome federal and local regulation and how it affects

the small business entrepreneur and two, what I perceive may be some of the

solutions to those problems created in our recent present.

I consider myself to be an expert on small business affairs (or what I call

minuscule economics), by virtue of the fact that this is all I've done for

nearly half my life. I've owned a 24-hour market, selling everything from

fruits and vegetables to Christmas trees, fireworks, apple juice, fish and

flowers. For two years, I owned and operated my own public relations, signs

and advertising business. But my most proudest achievement to date and the

most fhistrating has been the ownership and operation of Comrows & Co.
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Proudest, because by God's Grace, in 1980 Pamela Ferrell, (my wife and

business associate) and I took five hundred ($500.00) dollars, three

employees, a four-year lease on someone else's building and a purpose other

than making money and turned it into a half-million dollar a year operation,

with 12 employees, a single location with an international reputation and

ownership of our building valued at over $4(X),000.(K).

Frustrating, because we spent more than 10 of our 15 years in business

fighting the District Government in their feeble attempts to close down our

lone establishment for operating a beauty salon without a Ucense; spending

thousands of dollars to defend our position and launch an offensive against

all three branches of District government while losing hundreds of thousands

of dollars in business revenue in the process. Where our business would

have been, how many people we would have employed, how much we
would have earned is speculative. What is not speculative is that the ten

years I spent fighting the District Government I could have spent furthering

the growth of our budding industry.

Comrows & Co.'s story is truly a young entrepreneurs dream come true.

We started in 1980 as a professional hair braiding salon, offering African

and American style braids. By 1983 we had opened up the country's first

training academy in order to funnel a pool of qualified professionals, for our

use, into an emerging growth industry. At its peak, we employed 14

full-time individuals, consistently grossed well over $250,000.00 per year

and paid over $30,(X)0.(X) a year in various types of federal and local taxes.

We boasted a single location with a world wide reputation and a customer

clientele base which numbered well over 20,0(X) people. We were, (and by

God's Grace still are), the premier hair braiding and natural hair care

establishment in the world today.
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Our only mistake and our biggest crime, was being located in the District

of Columbia, where a corporation counsel, a board of cosmetologists and

barbers (who were all salon owners) and its governing regulatory agency

joined forces with an uninformed city council and two mayoral

administrations to try and close our tiny business down for the unsi>eakable

crime of operating a beauty salon without a license. The violation: our

refusal to comply with a 1938 Jim Crow era law which said (in part) "...

anyone involved in the arranging and styling of hair .... must have a

cosmetology license." The sentence: up to 5 years in jail and/or a $5,(X)0

fine.

No matter what we did, who we spoke with, what letters we wrote or who

wrote to us; who we met with or testified before; no one listened, no one

cared. It was not important to anyone, but us. We were characterized and

painted as just troublemakers and dumb hair dressers who were trying to get

around the established licensing scheme and wanted a special exception just

for ourselves, to the exclusion of everyone else.

The problem for us was ten fold. 1) The cosmetology courses, which had

no applicability to hair braiding, offered 15(X) hours or 9 months of

instructions on chemical relaxers, manicures, pedicures, facials, cutting,

coloring, curling and eye brow waxing at an average cost of $4,0(X). 2)

Schools of cosmetology did not teach hair braiding. 3) The instruction of

hair braiding did not appear in any cosmetology books and there were no

books of instruction on hair braiding at the time. 4) There was no license for

hair braiding. 5) Even if we were to comply with all the (then) present

regulations, we still could not teach hair braiding and have others become

licensed. 6) We refused to submit to the jurisdiction of the cosmetology

board. 7) We refused to allow the thousands of hours invested in perfecting
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the art of hair braiding and comrowing to be reduced down to a mere

definition of "arranging and styling of hair." 8) The District, as many other

states, recognized separate licenses for other cosmetology disciplines, but to

this day, all exclude hair braiding. 9) We did not feel that we were in

violation of the law, just because the city did not have a law which governed

what it is that we did; and further, our refusal to be categorized as something

we were not. 10) The statute we were accused of violating was over 50

years old and had no direct or indirect applicability to present day industry

standards.

From 1982 until 1993, (1 1 years), we endured the following: scores of

correspondence and meetings back and forth between every branch of D.C.

government and city official imaginable, four (4) paid attorneys, two (2)

introductions of proposed legislation (1 died in committee), fourteen (14)

appearances before the board of cosmetology, four (4) council hearings, two

(2) fines, (totaling $1,000), one (1) cease and desist order, four (4)

department investigations, two (2) threatening letters from the corporation

counsel, one (1) civil adjudication court procedure and appeal, two (2)

mayoral administrations and one (1) federal lawsuit.

Our only saving grace during this entire process happened in 1990 when

we introduced ourselves to CUnt Bolick and the Institute for Justice.

Immediately, they provided for us the relief we had sought. Not only were

they able to tell us what our problem was before we could tell them, but they

also put some definition to what we were only able to distinguish as right

and wrong. They called it economic liberty; the constitutional right of every

American citizen to be able to pursue economic freedom without the burden

of government regulation. We were a perfect match. What they provided to

us was some much needed understanding to a long standing problem that, to
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us, defied comparison. The best part of it all was that we didn't have to

convince them we were right and they represented us free of charge.

Embarassed into submission after worldwide notoriety highlighting our

pUght and the city's indefensiable position, (then) Mayor Sharon Pratt Kelly

signed into law the Cosmetology Amendment Act of 1992 on January 8,

1993. It provided five (5) separate license categories within the cosmetology

industry, recognized hair braiding as a separate discipline and placed a

professional hair braider (Pamela Ferrell) on the board. Deregulation would

have been preferable to more regulation, but we found an 1 1 year fight easier

than a lifetime commitment.

Comrows & Co. continued its meteoric rise to success and growth as

the leaders within its industry. We have appeared in or on every major print

and visual medium in this country, including a segment on ABC's 20/20

news program entitled "Stupid Rules;" and abroad in Japan, Germany and

England. We've diversified our operations into mail order, product

manufacturing, book publishing and video production; and count amongst

our clients such notables as mega star Diana Ross and the distinguished

Senator from the State of Illinois, Carol Mosley Braun.

However, our success will always pale in comparison to the responsibility

that lies ahead of us to continue this fight for economic liberty across the

country where otiier budding entrepreneurs face the same problems. From

our initial meeting with the Institute for Justice a mutual respect has

developed between us, but more importantly a flood gate of understanding

exactly what the issue of economic liberty is all about is embodied in the still

unfolding success story of Comrows & Co. That understanding needs to be

passed on
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to this committee and throughout the federal and local bureaucracy in order
to free our country and its citizens to reach their highest potential.

Our small business / entrepreneurial problem here in America is that we
have developed a false sense of capitalistic freedom. On the one hand we
claim to be the capitol of the free world, the harbingers of the free enterprise

system, where the free flow of ideas and the ways and means to implement
those notions are at a premium; when in reality, we're a country of stringent
rules and regulations and the crusher of dreams and aspirations. There is

nothing free about our capitalism, our economics or our enterprise.

It was the free flow of ideas and the opportunity to take risk, to work on
those ideas, that put this country ahead; that made us world leaders. But
today, there is not a business or an invention that exists that would have been
allowed to advance, grow and flourish if present day regulatory schemes
were put in place back then. Could you imagine Thomas Edison or Lewis
Latimer (inventors of the light bulb and carbon filament) being fined for

unlicensed activity, or Granville T. Woods (holder of fifty patents in

telegraph, telephone and railroad equipment) being placed before a judicial
proceeding for operating a business out of his home; or Madame C.J. Walker
(beauty and hair care pioneer) being arrested for operating a beauty salon
without a license? You certainly can't imagine it then; the question is, why
are we doing it now?

Why are we more determined now, than ever, to make it more and more
difficult to allow the emergence of another Marriott Corporation or a
Nordstrom's or a Hewlett-Packard or an Apple Computer, all bulging
American enterprises started as what today would be recognized as illegal

activity in most states.
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Today, there is no free enterprise system, only enterprise. There is no

freedom and there is certainly no system; only chaos, confusion, frustration,

bewilderment and the infamous "red tape." As a matter of fact, our so-called

Third World countries, presently show more tolerance for entrepreneurial

freedom than we do.

We cannot, on the one hand, claim to be economically free, while on the

other, refuse to give our citizenry the opportunity and die right to exercise on

that freedom. Along with this freedom comes a sense of responsibility and

trust. Everyday what we say to our American citizenry is that we don't trust

you. Granted, laws show our civility, they show our sense of order and our

respect for government and leadership. Regulations governing those laws

only say to our citizenry that we can't trust you to follow the law as we've

written it.

Licensing schemes, our local and federal governments' "cash cow," in

many cases, knowingly participates in a "closed shop" mentality of

unionized and non-union type activity by shutting out unlicensed

individuals, preventing the emergence of anything that resembles what the

present license holders will claim to be "unfair competition," and only

demonstrates the license holders' ability to be able to pass a non-descript

"standardized" test.

There is nothing within the license or regulatory scheme of any federal or

local jurisdiction which can claim licensees are more proficient at their craft

than non-licensees. In other words, there are bad, inefficient and pathetic

electricians, plumbers, steam fitters, auto mechanics, barbers and hair

dressers ~ all licensed ~ who go to work everyday, botching all but the
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simplest of task, but they go to work, buy cars, boats and homes; send their

kids to college, pay taxes and keep the government happy ~ all for an annual

licensing fee.

The food at a licensed restaurant doesn't taste any better because it is

licensed and it's certainly not any cleaner based on a licensing criteria. But

there are probably no fewer than four paid licenses required to open any

sit-down restaurant in this country and that doesn't include licenses for

alcohol or live entertainment. The same holds true for small comer grocery

stores who must hold an occupancy permit, a business license, a certified

food managers license, a cigarette license, a patent medicine license and a

license for various classes of alcoholic beverages, only to mention a few.

Burdensome regulations are simply a means to justify the hiring of

"government" workers, bloating the bureaucracy, running up the deficit,

setting up little governments within the government, cloaked as a board or a

commission, which are made up of practitioners within the governed

industry to keep out the undesirables, (unlicensed practitioners), perpetuating

the establishment of training schools, which the government licenses and

regulates; then charges perpetual and escalating fees to an unsuspecting

public who thinks their government has their best interests at heart because

their motto is "we're doing it for you - public health and safety."

Licensing and regulatory schemes have become a legitimized government

racket disguised as small business entrepreneurship. Let's keep the natives

happy; hire them all to do inconsequential work and make them think

they've got a "good government" job.
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The first thing I would recommend to this committee is to deregulate all

trade industries. Make our free enterprise system free again. For those who

want licenses, they would still be available; but you would have choices, just

like a high school graduate deciding on their future: do I go to college to

increase my chances for a better job?; or an employer deciding on his new

employee: do I hire the college graduate or the experienced worker? You

may or may not make the right decision, but rest assured, it will be your

decision and not that of your government. Local and federal officials need

to have more respect for the intelligence of the American public that they

can decide whether they want a licensed or unlicensed mechanic.

Adoption of Clint Bolick's proposed Economic Civil Rights Act would be

the first step in accomplishing this goal; mandating both federal and local

jurisdictions to release their strangle hold on small business enterprise in

America.

Further, I would set in place a mechanism for re-defining what a small

business is. Presently, most local and federal jurisdictions consider a small

business any business which grosses between three and eight million dollars.

The rest of us I classify as "minuscule." What local and federal officials

have done is to declassify these minuscule businesses as non consequential,

expendable, simply an after thought. This is unacceptable.

Expansion and support of public and private entrepreneurial initiatives is

a must. The incorporation of business practices and principles into the

present school curriculum along with basic skills is imperative, with an

emphasis on innovative projects which encourage creativity and thought,

even if we don't understand it.
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Establish public / private partnerships with emerging industries, tracking
students for those positions at an early age. Grant tax incentives for any
businesses that adopt an entire school district, a school or simply a class
room or a student.

Finally, I would urge this committee to include us, the small business
entrepreneur, in the process of government. We have no lobbyist, there's no
one in government looking out for our interest. How many legislators or
their staff / aids can claim to be from backgrounds remembered where the
business household grossed less than a million dollars? When have you or
they brought those struggles to mind when you were burdening the rest of us
with some of the senseless legislation you allow to pass through these very
halls everyday? How can you possibly begin to understand my plight when
you've never talked to me or someone Uke me?; and I'm not referring to the
friendly chat with the cab driver on your way to the aiiport; I'm referring to
meaningful, substantive dialogue.

What I'm saying to this honorable chair and this committee is simply this;
inviting us here to offer testimony as we've given today does not make me
feel any better, nor am I disillusioned to think that this presentation makes
me a part of the legislative process. I seriously wonder at times do
legislators truly understand our pUght if you don't hear from us constanUy
and consistently as other lobbying or interest groups until its too late. If I

don't ask to represent myself, who will represent me?



115

I am available, as I'm sure others are, to lend you my expertise, my

opinion and my position on past, present or pending legislation; to assist in

the formation or review of that legislation (should it even be necessary)

assuring that the interest of our firee enterprise system is protected at all

levels.

Thank you for your time and your consideration. I will respectfully

address any questions or comments this committee may have of me.
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Summary

Two schools of thought present opposing policies for expanding women and minority

opponunities in the construcimn laboTinurket. The deregulation school advocates eliminating

prevailmg wage laws which in turn will reduce the prevalence of unions and apprenticeship

programs in construction. As conimctors shift to a less skilled, labor inicniive crew mix, the

employment of women and minorities will expand. This will first be seen in entry level jobs. As
employment shifts from apprentices to helpers the employment of women und miiiorilics ^'•ill

increase.

The affirmative action school counters that opening up employment for women and minorities by

destroying training, wages and working conditions defeats the purpo<;c of seeking more jobs (or

women and minorities in construction. Vigorously enforced affirmative action policies can and

have expanded training and employment opportunities for women and minorities without

dismantling apprenticeship training or eroding good wages.

1 his research finds that:

(1) Construction incomes range between SIS.OOO to S35,01K) depending on occupation;

(2) In the nonunion sector, there are approximately 3 women and/or minority workers for every

10 entry level helpers,

(3) In the union sector, there are approximately 2 women and'or minority workers for ever)- 1

entry level apprentices;

(4) In construction there are 8 helpers for every 2 apprentices which roughly corresponds to tlie

overall proportion of nonunion to union workers;

(5) Among apprentices, 82 percent have high school diplomas or more formal schooling v-hile

among helpers, 54 percent have high school diplom.is or more formal <;chooling:

(6) Apprentices work approximately 50 percent more hours annually than do helpers and

correspondingly apprentices experience half the unemployment rate of helpers;

(7) It is well known that apprentices receive more formal class room training and more

systematic on-the-job training. This research shows that apprentices receive more hours of on-

the-job training and more continuous training simply because they work more hours and more

steadily. For instance, in 1989, women apprentices worked on average 1 534 hours while women

helpers worked 913 hours. Women apprentices reported an unemployment rate of 12 percent

while women helpers reported an unemployment rate of 26 percent,

(8) Because they work more and leam more, apprentices cam more than helpers. For instance, in

1989 women apprentices earned on average $16,608 in 1995 dollars while woinen helpers earned

on avcmgc £5,261.

(8) Affumative action policies regulating apprenticeship programs have been effective for iwv

decades. As early as the 1970s, union apprenticeship prtigrains wcic curulling ariiuiid 20 percent

minority workers. Smaller, nonunion apprenticeship programs which because they had fewrr

than 5 apprentices v>.'ere mil covered by affirmative action guidelines, enrolled around 10 pcteciil
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minority workers.

(9) Dtrregulation policies cun be studied hccnuse nirn^ states have repealed their prevailing wdge

laws since 1979. In these nine states, minority panicipation in apprenticeship programs has

fullen. Minorities who were over-rcprcsenled in apprenticeship programs relative to their state

populations in these states became significantly undcr-reprcscnied in apprenticeship training aHer

repeals.

(10) This paper concludes that enforced afllmialive action policies promote access for women

and minorities to high-skilled, high-wage jobs in construction while deregulation policies enlarge

women and minority employment opportunities at the cost of reducing the training and

remuneration of those jobs.
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Note on Sources:

The majority of data for this report come from the 1090 U.S. Census of Population 5% Public

Use Micuxliita Sampl* which arc machine rcadublc file containing a siuiiple ofinJividual long-

form census records showing most population and housing characteristics but with ideniincaiion

information removed These data are avalliible to the public. For more information sec U.S.

Department of Commerce. Economics and Stati.stics Administration. Bureau of the Census.

Census Catalogue and Guide. 1 993. p. 237 for specific PI IMS cluition and pp. 2-3 for ordering

infonnation.

Some data for this report come from unpublished reports of the US. Department cf Labor.

Bureau of Apprenticeship Training. (202) 219-5921
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Th« Deregulation Argument:

There are two theories regarding the best way to enlarge upon the employment
opportunities of women and minoritiw within the eonstruction industry. The first sehool
advocates deregulating the construction labor market. Primarily this entails elimination of
prevailing wage laws which regulate the payment of wages on public works construction
Secondarily, this could entail rela>wtion of safety regulations and child bbor laws. The
deregulation school argues that particularly prevailing wage legislation induces crew mix
strategies and iraiiung institutions which are adverse to the interests of women and minoniiss.

The deregulation school contends that prevailing wage laws entourage and promote
unionization in construction. Prevailing wage regulations require that winning bidders on public
works projects pay specilied wages for individual occupations on the construction site. These
wages arc as iiiueh a spccifitaiion of the eonsiruLiioii lu be done as arc the quality of materials
used or the nature of the project to be constructed.

Prevailing wages ore, in principle, the market wage rate for each occupatiun cmplovcJ .mi

the construction site. Market rates axe detenmned in advance by an assigned regulatory- ajency
of either the federal, state, county or municipal government dcpt>nding on the specific law being
enforced. In the case of the Federal government, the county-by-couniy prevailing wage is

determined by the U.S. Labor Department based upon wage and employment data on previous
coastruction in each county provided by contractors and unions

The deregulation school contends that in many cases ihe prevailing wage is the union
wage. When the govermncnt is required to pay the union wage, then contractors will assemble
crew mixes which correspond to the skills of relatively high-paid union construction workers.
The deregulation school contends that this is adverse to the interests of women and minorities

because if contractors arc required to pay wage rates corresponding to skilled labor, then
contractors will hire skilled labor. Ihe deregulation school contends thai women and minoniics
have been excluded from obtaining high skills in construction and consequently, when pi-evaijing

wage laws encourage the hiring of skilled labor, ihese laws discourage the hiring of womc2 and
minority construction workers (or would-be construction workers).

The heart of discrimination in construction, according m the deregulation .school, is L'le

apprenticeship program which provides entering construction workers with systematic on-the-job
and formal training in a variety of construction trades. The deregulation school contends ir.zt

collectively bargained and jointly administered union-management apprenticeship piograms have
discriminated against would-hc women and minority cnnsiniclion workers. ConsequentU. -Jierc

are a limited number of high-skilled women and minority construction workers. In short,

prevailing wage laws encourage the employment nf skilled workers in eonstniction and ih:^

means white, male workers becau.sc (it is alleged) women and minorities have been excluded
from union apprenticeship training.

The deregulation school earns its name because it claims that the solution to this alleged
liistorv- and current pattern of discrimination is deregulation. Wnh the elimination of labo:

market regulations in construction, labor unions will decline or disappear. collectively-burEaiiicd

apprenticeship programs will disappear, in turn, l.inion apprenticeship training will be replaced
by mcnt shop (i e open shop) training to the extent such training is required by the dictates to the
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market. Crew mixes will shili towards more labor intensive and less skill intensive tcchr.iqucs.

Apprentices will be replaced by hclpt.>rs (1 ielpcrs gam some on-the-job experience but do not

receive either formal cla.s> room trainmg nor formal rotation or oversight of on-the-job irsinjng).

With the shift to less skilled workers and helpers, women and minoniies will gain a greater share

of tunstruetion labor nidrkei employment.

The Affirmative Action Argument.

The affirmative action school accepts the notion that women and minorities should have a

greater shiire of employmenl in the construction industry. It notices thai minoritici arc uTider-

represented in construction employment at a reflection rate of roughly 70 percent. The minority

reflection rate is the percent minnritie.'; in cnnstniction divided by the percent minorities in ihc

population. Women are starkly under-represented in construction with a reflection rate c: under

10 percent.

The affirmative action school also accepts the notion that explicit discrimination Ln

apprenticeship selection is a historical fact. However, the afrinnativc action school argues that

aflirmative action regulations when vigorously enforced have been successful in overcoming

discrimination in the apprenticeship selection process The affirmative action school argixs that

affirmative action guidelines have successfully altered apprenticeship selection processes and

clear patterns of discrimination currently exist only for under-sized, nonunion apprenticeship

programs which are too small to be covered by aftirmative action pulicies.

Furthermore, the reason women and m.inoriiies would want Jobs in the construction

industry is because Uicbc arc reasonably well-paying jobs for people with a high school education

(or less). Construction affords the opportunity not only for jobs but for training which le^ds to

yood jobs. The affirmati v« action school cuutions that just like u medical ojicrulion is uol a

.success if the patient dies, policies which open up jobs for women and minorities by destroying

the attractiveness of those jobs e;innnt be called ;> success Policies which open up jobs for

women and minorities by making those jobs less secure, less safe and less remimerative defeat

the purpose of obtaining more, attractive labor market opportunities tor groups which havr been

the historical victims of discrimination.

The affirmative action school further argues thai unions and collective bargaining

arrangements provide useful tools to enforce affinnativc action guidelines. For instance,

currently affirmative action guidelines do not cover apprenticeship programs with Ics.s lha2 five

apprentices. Small apprenticeship programs are common in the nonunion segment ol

eunstniction because single-employer programs are most common in the merit shop

environment. Union programs are predominantly multi-employer proi^rams which have Izrger

numbers of apprentices which are easier to regulate. I'urthermore. collective bargaining

arittJigcincnts create l\>mial procedures for recruitment and training witliin apprenticeship

programs. Formal arrangements arc easier to regulate. I'hus. unions provide a useful hap.dle to

apply affirmative action pressures on the cuii»lruclion labor market.

Why Construction Employment i» Attractive.
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Those representing ihe interests of women and minorities advocate greater employment

opportunities for these groups in construction because construction employment has historically

provided middle-class incomes for people with limited formal training. Figure I shows annual

income in 1989 (but denominated in 1.995 dollars) for a selected set of occupations in

construction. Within this group, the highest mean income was 532.438 tor crane operators wtile

the lowest income was $16,828 for roofers. Operating engineers earned, on average. $27,605

while painters earned $ 1 7.634 while minority painters anil operators earned less than their

white counterparts, the difference was not overwhelming. Figure 2 shows that white operators

edrited $27,938 while niiiiuriiy opcraiurs earned $24,K62. Siniilarly, while paiiucrs earned

$18,096 while minority painters earned $15,510. The gap between males and females among
operators and painters was wider. Figure 3 showj that in 1989 (but dciioniiiiated in 1995 dwliars)

male operators earned S27,710 while female operators earned only $22,043. Among painter?,

males earned $ 1 8,034 while females earned markedly less. $11,551. Despite thess earnings

differentials by race and sex, advocates of the interests of women and minorities view

construction employment .is attractive Thus, expanding job npponuniiic^ for women and

minorities in construction is deemed desirable.

Analyzing Entry into Construction.

Educational Hack$;round. Many people enter construction work through informal

training. Formal training is limited to systems of helpers and apprentices and among helpers the

training is limited. The occupation of helper i.s a cvmiiiiuiii entry iiceuiwliim m the nonunion

environment and apprentices are a common entry point in the union environment. Figure 4

shows that in 1990 there were 4 helpers for every apprentice in construction work. This roughly

corresponds to the overall ratio of union to nonunion workers in constniction Figure 5 shows

that roughly 3 out of every ten helpers in 1 990 were women and minorities while roughly 2 out

of every ten apprentices were women and mmoriiy workers.

This is the key evidence that the deregulation school points to in adviKating an expansion

of nonunion construction employment. If more women and minorities are to be found in the

entry level jobs in the nonunion sector, it suggests that an expansion of the nonunion sector

would expand the jobs available to women and minorities. The affinnali ve action school

res-ponds, however, that hecau.se apprentices work more hours than helpers and earn more

income, effective employment of women and minorities (hours times wage) is overestimated in

the helper sector relative to the apprenticeship sector

Helpers have substantially less Ibrmal education than do apprentices figure 5 shows that

82 percent of apprentices in 1990 had a high school education or bolter while only 54 percent of

the construction helpers had received a high school degree or higher educaiiuri. higurc 7 iiiowi

the percent distribution of education within each group, helpers and apprentices. More thar. 30

percent of apprentices IwJ some college. Around 20 percent of helpers had >uinc college. .A
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considerable proponion of helpers had very limiced education. Figures 8 and 9 show that the

educational distrihution of minority and women ditYer with women being better educated than

minorities and entering construction workers in general. Ho\*.ever. the relative educational

profiles within group.s by helper and apprentice remain the same. Thus, the story that fonr.aJly

uneducated workers can enter construction and receive an old-lashioncd education is something

of a myth. Disproportionately, school drop-outs are channeled into the helper sector where

training is inferior while high school graduates arc more likely to enter apprenticeship training

where systematic training is common.

l^tcr wc will icc thai the rewards lo ioniial cducaliuii arc greater in llic apprcnliccihjp

system than in the helper system. (Sec Table I).

Hours of Work. Construction workers rarely work the 2080 hours which arc coPiSiUcicd

a full year's work in manufacturing or the service sector. This is also true of entering

construction workers Figure 10 shows that among entering white cunslruction workers,

acgrentices worked in 1989 roughly 50 percent more hours than did helpers. White and minority

helpers worked basically the same number of hours, around 1 1 00 and mmority apprentices

worked more hours than helpers but fewer hours than white apprentice.s Hours of work for

entering workers are important not only because more hours means more income but because

more hours means more experience for helpers and more training lor apprentices. Because the

future income payoff of experience and training is high for entry level workers, the differCTce

between the hours of helpers and apprentices has significant downstream effects.

Perhaps surprisingly. Figure 1 1 shows that among apprentices, the hours of work for men
and women was essentially the same in 1989 with men working on average 1519 tioursaad

women working slightly more at 1 534 ttours. In contrast, women helpers worked significantly

less than did men helpers while all helpers worked substantially less compared to apprentices.

The widest gap is between women ajDgrentice.s who worked most at 1534 hdurs and women
helpers wno worked Icastot 9TT hou.s. There aie .NubNlaiillal dowuilrcaju costs to women
helpers from working substanTially fewer hours and receiving informal rather than formal

training during those shorter hours. As wc shall sec, the earnings uf female helpers is very low.

Some might presume that this low wage compensates the employer lor training. But when

women helpers work less than half a year, little training is taking place and the continuity of

training is largely absent.

Unemployment DifTerences. Limited working hours which typify construction raeaiis

that at any given time, the unemployment rate for constniclion workers will be much higha than

the national average. However, differences between the unemployment rate of helpers a-ni

apprentices are driven by differences between training in the nonunion and union sectors of

construction.

Figure 12 shows that among entering white construction workers, the uncmploymeni rate

for helpers m 1990 was twice that of apprentices. Unions regulate entry into apprcnticesb-.p

programs so that the number of new trainees con-esponds to the growih of the local consLiKtion

economy and allriiion frum the ranks of experienced construction workers. In the nonunion

sector no such supply regulation takes place and at any given time one out of every four to five

helpers is out of work. This pervdjiivc unemployment leads lo a diseuiiliiiuity uf training which
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combined with its informality substantially reduces the quality of the rcsuliinB skills acquired.

Figure 1 3 shows a similar pattern by gender comparing unemployment rales for helpers and

apprentices. Figure 1 3 shows a higher unemployment rate for minority upprcntices compared 10

white apprentices which corrcsp^mds Xo the relatively fewer hours of work for minority

apprentices compared to while apprentices shown in Figure 10. These hours and unemploymcnl

differentials lead affirmative action advocates to suggest that one focus of regulations should be

to monitor the process whereby whites and nonwhitcs are allocated job/training opportunities.

However, the difference in hours and unemployment between apprentices and helpers is more

significant ihan ilic diffcrciiLcs between white and nonwhiie apprentices simply because the

hours of helpers arc the least of all and the unemployment of helpers is the greatest.

Income differences. Willi fewer work hours in a year, it is not surprising that helpers

earn less than do apprentices. Figure 14 shows that in 1989 (hut denominated in 1995 dollars)

white helpers earned $9,303 while while apprcniicfs earned over 50 pcrcem niorc—Sl 5,436. 1 he

earnings differential among minorities was less but still significant. Minority helpers earned

mughly the same as white helpers at $9,224 while minority apprentices earned 513,520. Figure

15 shows that among females, women helpers earned a measly $5,261 while women apprentices

earned three times as much at S16.608 Wnmcn are significanily under-represented in both union

and nonunion entry level jobs, but women who are apprentices do as well as male apprentices

and significantly better than female helpers.

Thus, apprentices worked more than helpers; they learned more than helpers and they

earned more than helpers. This was true for women as well as men and for minorities as well as

whites. HowTvcr, the hours of work and consequently the earnings o I minority apprentices was

less than that for white apprentices.

Discrimination in income among entry level workers. Table I presents linear

regression models of income fur apprentices and helpers, in equation (1 ), the natural log of 1 989

income denomiiiaicd in 1995 dollars is a function ofage, age squared, years of schooling,

whether or not the worker was an apprentice (as opposed to helper), whciher or not the worker

was a minority (as opposed to white), and whether or iiui ihc wurkcr wiis female. A constant is

included in the model reflecting unmeasured effects on income. I'hc adjusted R square is about

20 percent on these cross-sectional data. Statistical significanec at the 1 percent level i> denoted

by an asterisk.

Age and age squared capture work experience and allow- work e.xpcrience to rise at a

diminishing rate if age is positive and age squared is negative The coefficients of these two

variables arc statistically significant at the 1 percent level and they h.ivc the anticipated sign.

Together they imply that apprentices and helpers' incomes rise at a diminishing rate with

experience. Years of schooling also raises the incomes of entry level vvorkers. Being an

apprentice, as opposed to a helper, raises an entry level worker's income significantly and

substantially and being female lowers income. I here is no measurable statistical effect on

income of being a minority worker

In models (2) and (3) we re-run model ( 1
) f«ir apprentices-only and helpers-only

respectively. This means in models (2) and (3) we need to omit, of course, the variable for

apprentices versus helpers because each model is run on only one type of entry-level worker,

llie age variable is statistically significant in both models but is larger for apprentices.
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Apprentices" xN-agcs go up faster with age. Years of Ibnnal schooling Is also significant for both

apprentices and helpers but the effect of more formul schooling is larger for apprentices Hast

success in tbrmal schooling has a greater payoff in apprenticeship systems because in mos!

apprenticeship programs additional formal schooling is required and provided. Helpers are not

provided additional class room training and past success in formal schooling is less directly tied

to the requirements helpers confront.

Being in a minoriiy does not alter incomes in eitlicr the apprentice or helper environment

but being female does lower incomes for helpers There is no statistically significant lowering of

income for female appi-cniiccb. Thus. lo the extern there is gender discnmmation in incor.e

determination among entry level construction workers it is among females in the nonunion

environment The constaiu or ^lu^ting pi)im in calculating income is greater for apprentices

compared lo helpers.

In short, these three models suggest that incumcs for eiury level Lonsiruclion workers

goes up al a diminishing raie with increa.<;ed experience and the experience effect is greater for

apprentices compared to helpers Income got-s up with formal schooling and this effect is greater

for apprentices. Apprentices start earning at a higher level than helpers. There is no cleai

cvidence of discrimination in income determination ;imong while ;ind nonwhite apprentices, but

females in the nonunion sector do experience di.senmination.

Affirmative action policy in practice.

Attirmative action policy has been applied lo construction appren'.iccship prograi::s for

decades. Not only do we not find dear evidence of discrimination among apprentices from the

1990 Census offopulalion 5% Public Use Microdata Sample, but earlier U.S. Dcpartmen: of

Labor, Bureau of Labor statistics data for apprenticeship programs also suggests that affirniativc

action policy has been elTeclive since the late 1970s.

Table 2 compiles BAT data for all construction apprentices and minority apprentices and

shows that us early os l';75. 19% of all jointly sponsored, union-inaildgcilicnl apprentices w-rc

minorities. In contrast, in 1975 only 9% of all apprentices in nonunion, nonjoint programs wtre

minorities, less than half the rate of minonty involvement that one found in the union

apprenticeship environment. Ihe rate of minoriiy paHicipation rose slightly in both the uaion

and nonunion environment through the late 1 QTOs In both ihe union and nonunion progr=;zi. the

relative graduation rate for minority apprentices was lower comp-TTcd to the nonminority

graduation rate. (The 1979 union datum here seems anomalous )

This is not a comparison in Table 2 of apprentices to helpers but rsthcr a comparisor: of

union apprentices to nonunion apprentices. Each year union programs graduated a little less than

4000 minority apprenfices in the late 1970s while the nonunion programs graduated a little less

than 200. Thus the union apprenticeship programs generated 20 times the number of mmori'.y

journeymen in construction compared to the nonunion apprenticeship programs. Given thz: the

minority population in the United .States in the 1970s was roughly 20 percent of the ovenil!

population, affirmative aeiion policy seems to have been effective is inducing quality minoriiy

tratmng in construction in the union environmcni in the nonunion environment, alfirmative

action p«,»licy (or its absence) was failing in the 197Us.

91-562 0-96-5
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The reason ufVirmalivc aclion policy was failing in the nonuriKni environment was

because many of the nonunion apprenticeship programs had fewer than five apprentices

AfTirmative action regulations do not cover programs wiih fewer thaii five apprentices. In Table

2, the number nonunion programs was more than twice the number ol union programs but

enrolled about one-sixth the number of apprentices. The average size of the nonunion program

was 2.2 workers, well below the 5 apprentice threshold. The average size of the union program

was 52.6 workers, well above the 5 apprentice threshold. Thus, the effect of alfirmative action

policy can be seen in the doubling of minority participation in covered programs.

Deregulation policy in practice.

Deregulation policies can also be studied in practice. Since 197Q. 9 states have repealed

their state prc\ailing wage laws. An additional 9 .stales never hdd picvuiliiig wage laws at the

State level. In the nine states which repealed their prevailing wage laws, minority participation

rates in apprenticeship programs fell IVom 10.-1 percent before repeals to 12.5 percent after

repeals. Figure 16 translates minonly participation rates into reflection rates. A reflection rate is

the ratio of the minority participation rate in apprenticeship programs to the percent minority of

the total slate population. Figure 16 shows that in states whi;;h eventually repealed their state

prevailing wage laws, prior to repeal, minorities were over-represented in those states'

apprenticeship programs by 107 percent. After repeal, the minority rellection ratio fell to 85

percent. This change is similar to the standing difference in reflection percentages m 32 states

which continue to retain their prevailing wage laws versus the 9 states which have never had

prevailing state wage laws. Figure 16 shows that minorities m retaining states are slightly over-

represented in apprenticeship programs while minorities in states which have never had

prevailing w-age laws are substantially under-represented in apprenticeship programs.

Summary.

Today, a host of labor market regulations are under attack. Prevailing wage laws, hours-

of-work laws, child labor laws, convict labor laws, workcr.s curupensiitioii laws, workers satctv

laws are all being considered for repeal or substantial weakening of their provisions and

enforcement These liiws date from the Progressive Kra and are many arc almost onc-hundrcd

years old. Prevailing wage laws date from Kansas in 1 89 1 , In addition to these Progressive Fra

laws. New Deal laws ijoveming collective bargaining and social •;eLunty are .tIso being

considered for review, reform or elimination

The construction labor market is the miner's canary when it come-; in the effects of

deregulation on the labor market. An unregulated labor market will easily slide into a casual,

low-wage, low-skill, uninsured and volatile labt)r market. I he construction labcir market docs

not have the high capital-labor ratios and stable product markets which lead to stable

employment relationships absent regulations and unions As a deregulated construction labor

market slides down to a low-wage, low-skill, low-security labor market, it is not surprising that

this demolition would open up job opportunities for women and minorities After all. low wage,

low skill, low security jobs arc the sorts ot opportunities women and minonties are currently
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being offered

True advocates of the interests of women and minorities want women and mmoriiies to

become apprentices, not helpers. 1 hey want women and minorities to get training not menial

work. They want the training to leadjo skills which will justify good incomes with pcniions and

health benefits In short, true advocates of the interests of women and minorities are not be

interested in false opportunities, where jobs become available simply because working conditions

have dcicrioraicd and no one else is any longer interested in them.
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Table 1: Minority Training in Union and Nonunion Construction Apprenticeship Programs,

to 1979.
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70. US Bureau of the Census, 1970 Census o/ Population.

71. Figures 3.7 and 3 8 include all states for which any data are available, except California, Delaware, the Distnci

of Columbia, Hawaii, and Rhode Island — for which there are no Bureau of Apprenticeship Training data for the

second period. We exclude these stales and the Distnci of Columbia (for the same reason)

12. We do not know what accounts for the unusually high tiaimng rate for 'never-had' states ^n 1976. This anomaly

disappears when average training rates by decades are compared.

73. This transformation into the log fl^n odds ratio meetf the nAnality^ssumpSols of liAifar regi^Jion analysis.

The technique used is generalized least-squares regressi'oD, 'witg the r(^ressi^il(\veighted iHf'Jh'' square root of

(percent trained) times (one minus percent, trained) times (siite ^ploytnent).

# •-
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undetermined additional ntmiber of fhjuries and illnesses — the costs of which araibome as reduced producQ\-ity,

ruined lives for workers and their fai^ilies, and burdens on workers' compensation aAd other social^corirv svstems.

For a mix of reasons, there are no pliable estimates on the number of such illne^^s

75. C.Culver, M. Manfaall, and C.CoiJBblly, Construction Accidents: The Workers' Compensation Z)a*4 Base, 198S-

1988. Washington, DC, OSHA OfTuSof Construction ghgineerinB l^^""

76. In figure 4.1, n refers to the number of observations in each state-law category. For instance, there were 230

state-year combinations for states that had prevailing wage laws throughout the period.

77. In the case of lost workdays per injury, the reported result is of the expected sign, but not statistically significani.

78. Jimmie Hinze, Indirect Costs of Construction Accidents, Seattle: The University of Washington, 1992, 14.

79. Because of small numbers, there are no reliable estimates on how repeal would affect death rates. Thus, n^

cannot calculate the projected increase in fatalities due to repeal. If, however, they were to be affected at the saice

magnitude as are injuries, we would expect an increase of 130 to ISO fatalities per year.

80. Uuh, Depvtmcnt of Tranpontlion, 'Foul Eiunuui Pncoxtl Tor Piymenu, 1970-74 dau published in 198} mij 1994 rcpons.
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percent, you have cut total costs by only 2.5 percent.

82. Georce F. Will, 'Its tone to repeal (he Davis-Bacon Act'. Dtjcni Newj. February 5. 1995

83 Charles Culver, Michael Marshall, and Constance Connolly, Construction Accidents: The Workers' Compensation

Data Base. 1985-1988. Office of Construction and Engmeenng, OSHA, 1992

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects



147

Losing Ground: Lessons from the

Repeal of Nine "Little Davis-Bacon" Acts

University
OFUTAH



148

Acknowledgements

The authors wish to thank Hamid Azari-Rad, Randy Brown, Van Hemeyer, Matt Hotchkiss, Gary

Ray, and Scott Smith — all students at the University of Utah — for help gathering informarion

for this study. We also wish to thank the many government officials at the state and federal levels

who helpfully provided data for our analysis. This study was originally funded in 1992 by a gift

from Local 3 of the International Union of Operating Engineers. Subsequent funding came from

the United Association of Plumbers and Pipe fitters of Utah and from the AFL-CIO. Some

material in this volume originally appeared in Hamid Azari-Rad, Peter Philips, and Anne Ycagle,

"The Effects of the Repeal of Utah's Prevailing Wage Law on the Labor Market in

Construction," in Sheldon Friedman, et al., eds.. Restoring the Promise of American Labor Law

Gthaca: Cornell University ILR Press, 1994), 207-22.

This is a working paper of the Economics Department of the University of Utah. Inquiries,

comments, criticisms and suggestions should be directed to:

Peter Philips

Professor

Economics Department

University of Utah

Salt Lake City, Utah 84112

TEL 801 585-6465

FAX 801 585-5649

INTERNET PHILIPS@ECON.SBS.UTAH.EDU

The authors welcome your comments.

This working paper will be periodically updated as our research progresses. Updated electronic

versions of this working paper are available from the anonymous ftp site at the Economics

Department of the University of Utah. Internet users may use ftp (file transfer protocol)

commands to obtain an updated version. The file is in Wordpcrfect 5.1 with extended postscript

attachments. It may be printed out in Wordperfcct 5.1 or 5.2 on any postscript laser printer. To

obtain an electronic copy do the following:

(1) log on to an internet terminal; (2) at the prompt type ftp keynes.ccon.utah.edu ; (3) at the

request for user name type anonymous ; (4) at the password request type you e-mail internet

address; (5) once you have entered the University of Utah Economics Department ftp site type

cd tmp [then return] then type binary ; (6) then type Is to obtain a listing of the files in the ftp

site. The file you are looking for is called DAVISBAC (7) Type get davisbac c:\javisbacjny

where the second phrase c:^davisbac.my refers to the drive you want the file to go to and the

name you wish the file to have.

Copyright 1995. All rights reserved.

Peter Philips

Garth Mangum
Norm Waitzman

Anne Yeagle



149

Contents

Executive Summary, page iii

The Authors, v

I. The History of Prevailing Wage Laws in the United States, 1

Passage of State Prevailing Wage Laws, 2

Passage of The Davis-Bacon Act, 3

Repeals of Some State Prevailing Wage Laws, 6

Efforts to Repeal Other Prevailing Wage Laws, 7

Efforts to Repeal Davis-Bacon, 8

II. The Economic Effects of Davis-Bacon Repeals, 1

1

Cutthroat Bidding, 1

1

A Loss of Earnings for All Construction Workers, 16

A Loss of State Tax Revenues, 17

Regression Analysis of the Decline of Construction Worker Earnings, 21

Increased Employment Associated with Lower Wages, 24

The Net Effect of Repeals on Government Budgets, 25

Summary, 31

in. The Effect of State Repeals of Prevailing Wage Laws on Training, Black

Unemployment, and Minority Participation in Training, 33

The Effect of Repeal on Construction Unions and Wages, 34

The Relation between Repeals and Black Unemployment, 37

A Decline in Training, 40

Market Responses: Training, Turnover, and Careers, 42

National Trends in Registered Apprenticeship Training, 44

Summary, 55

rv. Construction Safety Put at Risk, 57

Why Prevailing Wage Law Repeals Lead to Increased Injury Rates, 58

A Comparison of Injury Rates, 60

The Cost of Injuries, 60

Summary, 63

V. Conclusion, 65

The Effects of Repeal of Prevailing Wage Laws, 65

The Goals of State Prevailing Wage Laws, 65

The Definition of a Prevailing Wage, 65

The Financial Costs of State Repeals, 66

Other Costs of State Repeals, 68

Estimated Effect of a Davis-Bacon Repeal, 73

End Notes, 76

References, 82



150

Figures

2.1 The mix of construction employment in Utah, by contractor type, before and after the repeal of the

state's prevailing wage law, 12

2.2 Average cost overruns as a percentage of accepted bids on Utah road construction, before and after

the repeal of the state's prevailing wage law, 14

2.3 The ratio of accepted bids and final cost to the Utah state engineer's estimate of road construction

project cost, before and after repeal of the state's prevailing wage law, 15

2.4 A comparison of annual construction earnings, by status of prevailing wage law, 18

2.3 A comparison of construction earnings in nine repeal states only, before and after repeals (in 1991

dollars), 19

3.1 Union membership in construction in Utah, 1977-89, 35

3.2 Wages and employment in construction m Utah relative to wages, 36

3.3 The ratio of black to white unemployment in five repeal states, before and afier repeals , 38

3.4 Black, white unemployment ratio for states that retained and never had state prevailing wage

laws, 39

3.5 Apprentice plumbers as a percentage of journeymen plumbers in Utah, 1961-91, 41

3.6 Turnover in Utah's construction industry compared with all employment statewide, 45

3.7 Apprenticeship training rates, by state groups, before and after repeals, 48

3.8 Apprenticeship training rates, by state groups, 49

3.9 Minorities as a percentage of all construction apprentices by state groups, 53

3.10 Ratio of the percentage of minorities in construction as a ratio of the percentage of minorities in the

state population, by state groups, 54

4.1 Injury rates in construction by status of prevailing wage law, 61

5.1 Annual income-tax revenue loss, construction cost savings, and resulting e£fect of repeal on Utah

budget, 1987-93, in 1994 dollars, 68

5.2 The percentage of minority apprentices in constjucdon, divided by the percentage of minority

population in the state -the minority reflection percentage-for nine repeal states, 71

5.3 Estimated efiiect of a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act on income-tax revenues, construction cost, and

total budget (billions of dollars), 72

Tables

1.1 Prevailing wage laws, by state, 4

2.1 A simple estimate of Utah tax revenues lost in 1991 as a result of the 1981 state prevailing wage law

repeal, 20

2.2 A description of the data used in regression model of construction earnings decline, 22

2.3 A regression model estimate of the effects of state repeal on construction annual earnings, controlling

for regional differences in earnings, and for secular and cyclical trends in earnings, 23

2.4 Effects of wages on employment, controlling for state differences in employment, differences in the

size of SIC groupings, the direct effects of repeals, and secular and cyclical trends, 26

2.5 Effects of construction earnings decline on employment for an average-size detailed construction

standard industrial classification (4-digit SIC) of 3,540 workers per state, 27

2.6 The relation of hypothetical construction-cost savings to tax revenues, 29

2.7 Projected effects of a repeal of Davis-Bacon on the federal budget, 30

3.1 Linear regression model of turnover rate in construction in Utah, 1956-91, 46

3.2 Training rates in repeal and never-had states as a percentage of training rates in states that retained

their wage laws, 51

3.3 Training rates in repeal and never-had states as a percentage of training rates m states that retained

their wage laws, 1975-78 and 1987-90, 52

4.1 Regression model of the effect of state repeals on injury rates for plumbers and pipe fitters, 62



151

Executive Summary

Like the 1931 federal Davis-Bacon Act, legislation in 41 stales has required that the "prevailing" wage

be paid on state-govemment-funded construction projects. From 1979 to 1988, however, nine stales

have repealed their prevailing wage laws. (Nine states never had such a law.) The remaining 32 stales

have retained prevailing wages. These variations in state experience provide useful information with

which to consider probable effects of additional state repeals or the proposed repeal of Davis-Bacon.

This study found that state repeals of prevailing wage laws had several effects.

First, in Utah, whose experience was examined most closely, the state budget has not benefited

from repeal of the prevailing wage law. The repeal helped drive down construction earnings and the

state has lost substantial income tax and sales tax revenues. In the decade before the 1981 repeal in

Utah, construction worker earnings averaged about 125 percent of average non-agncultural earnings.

By 1993, construction worker earnings had fallen to 103 percent of the average earnings for Utah

workers. This decline in earnings is because of lower wages, but also because of a subsequent shift

to a less-skilled construction labor force.

Second, also in Utah, the size of total cost overruns on state road construction has tripled in the

decade since repeal in comparison to the previous decade The shift to a less-skilled labor force —
lowering labor productivity along with wages — and the greater frequency of cost overruns have

lessened any possible savings in public works construction costs associated with the repeal.

Third, looking at ail the states, and controlling for a general downward trend in real construction

earnings, variations in stale unemployment rates, and regional differences in wages, repeals have cost

construction workers in the nine states at least $1,477 per year in earnings, on average (in 1994

dollars). The costs may eventually be higher as the effects of the more recent repeals mature, driving

wages and training down further.

Fourth, controlling for a general downward trend in the amount of construction training,

variations in state unemployment rates, and regional differences in training availability, the nine slate

repeals have reduced construction training in those states by 40 percent.

Fifth, minority representation in construction training programs has fallen even faster than have

the training programs in repeal stales. UAil the various stale repeals, minority apprenticeship

participation mirrored the minority percentage of each stale's population. After repeal, minorities

became significantiy under-represented in construction apprenticeship programs.

Sixth, occupational injuries in construction rose by 15 percent where state prevailing wage laws

were repealed.

Based on these findings, we conclude that, if the federal Davis-Bacon Act were repealed;

• Federal income tax collections wouldfall by at least SI billion per year in real letms every year

for the foreseeable future. This is because construction wage levels would decline across all

states and — based on the exf)erience of the nine repeal states — construction employment levels

would not rise enough to offset this revenue loss. The figure for lost tax revenues may well be

higher. If the experience of the nine states that never had a prevailing wage law is
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indicative, lost tax revenues from a repeal of Davis-Bacon could rise to $2 billion per year

Whether the losses are $ 1 billion or $2 billion, the government cannot count on making them

up with its cost savings as a purchaser of construction. The government will not break even.

There would be 76,000 additional workplace injuries in construction annually, with 30.000 of
them serious and thus requiring lime offfrom work to recover. As a result, more than 675,000

work days would be lost each year in construction. This could lead to additional workers'

compensation costs of about S3 billion per year, of which $300 million would be passed on to

the federal government as increased costs on public works.

Utah's experience suggests that repeal of Davis-Bacon would generate a period of significant

cost overruns and the increased use of expensive change orders. Although we cannot measure

the exact costs of such practices, it is generally accepted that change orders add substantially to

construction costs.

Davis-Bacoo Repeal Efluu
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I. The History of Prevailing Wage Laws in the United States

In February 1891, Samuel Gompers, president of the Amencan Federation of Labor, visited

Topeka, Kansas, to speak on what the local newspaper called "the great topic of labor." Ten years

earlier, the AFL — at its own creation — had laid out legislative aims that included the eight-

hour work day, the elimination of child labor, free public schooling, compulsory schooling laws,

the elimination of convict labor, and prevailing wages on public works. These proposals were

based on a belief that the American labor market should consist of highly skilled workers earning

decent wages, with time for family, and with children free to earn an education. In pursuit of

these aims, Gompers' political strategy in Kansas allied him with the Republican Party.

On the morning of Gompers's arrival, the Alliance Party, known to history as the Populist

Party, withdrew an earlier invitation for him to speak in the hall of the state House of

Representatives, which the party controlled. Gompers, who represented 900,000 workers, had

fallen out of favor with the populists, reportedly because of his belief that the trade unions should

not form a political party with the Alliance. ' The Republicans, who controlled the Kansas Senate,

invited Gompers to speak there, and he did.

Gompers was in Kansas to focus on the eight-hour day. Like other Amencans,

Kansans in 1891 typically worked six days per week, ten to twelve hours per day. In the older

trades and crafts, such as carriage making and saddle making, where the work pace was slow and

under the workers' direction, the long work day was tolerable. In the newer factories producing

shoes, textiles, and the like; in the mines; and in die urban putting-out systems in needlevrark,

six-day weeks and twelve-hour days were grueling. The AFL had made its prime objective a

shortened work day and work week with as little cut in pay as possible. In his Topeka speech,

Gompers declared:

Our banner floats high to the breeze and on that banner float is inscribed, "Eight hours work,

eight hours rest and eight hours for mental and moral improvement.'^

At that time, when there were no income supplement programs for the poor, low-income

parents worked and had to send their children to work to make ends meet. This practice was later

referred to by a North Carolina newspaper editor as "eating the seed com." Each generation of

poor condemned its offspring to poverty because the children grew up as illiterate as their

parents. The prevalence of cheap child labor, which accounted for 5 percent of the manufacturing

labor force in 1890 and a larger proportion of service sector workers, kept wages down and

forced adult workers to put in the long hours to make ends meet. Gompers wanted regulation to

force employers and the poor to adopt a strategy, however painful in the short run, of a high-

wage, high-skilled growth path where children were in school and workers had the skills to

justify wages that would allow for a family life. Gompers said.

The Federation endorses the total abohtion of child labor under 14 years of age; an eight hour

law for all laborers and mechanics employed by the government directly through contractors

engaged on public work, and its rigid enforcement; protection of life and limb of workmen

employed in factories, shops and mines, ...the extension of suf&age as well as equal work for

equal pay to women....The Federation favors measures, not parties.'
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Although It was not clear at the time whether government could require pnvate sector

employers to honor the eight-hour day, government could set an example, Gompers believed. In

state after state, he pleaded for the eight-hour day for government workers and pnvate sector

workers employed on public works. Gompers also pleaded for workers to be paid the "current"

daily wage so they could afford the reduced work time. Government was being asked to set a

good example for the private sector, to show that a refreshed labor force could produce in eight

hours what a fatigued and bedraggled labor force turned out in ten or twelve hours. The
prevailing wage law in its infancy was an attempt to obtain shorter working hours for all labor.

The AFL paid attention to public works, however, because government at all levels was a major

purchaser of construction. The AH. said government should not try to save money by eroding

the wages of its citizens.

With similar logic, the AFL called for an end to convict labor. Many states employed

convicts to pay for their keep. Convicts built roads on chain gangs, operated farms, made textiles,

and sewed garments. Convict-made goods were sold, forcing down prices and the wages of

working free citizens.

Thus, prevailing wage law legislation, at its birth, was embedded in an overarching intent

to shorten the grueling working day for all labor, to compel the working poor to make ends meet

in some fashion other than by sending their children into the factories, to compel children into

schools so that they might become better workers and better citizens, to compel employers to

adopt techniques that profited on the employment of skilled adult workers rather than unskilled

child labor, to present government as an exemplar of good management by establishing the eight-

hour day in government employment and on public works, and to abolish the practice of

government saving tax dollars by grinding down wages on public works or through convict labor.

It is not surprising, then, that the first prevailing wage law passed in the United States —
in Kansas — was part of an eight-hour-day law

Passage of State Prevailing Wage Laws

The Kansas Eight-Hour law. Kansas established the first prevailing wage law in 1891. In

January 1890, the Kansas Bureau of Labor and Industry Statistics, in preparation for its Sixth

Annual Report, di> . .buted a questionnaire to each trade imion and the Knights of Labor

Assembly. In response to a question about needed legislation, the Molder's Union of Parsons,

Kansas, replied, "a law.. .against the letting of contracts for State work to unfair employers."* This

plea for the state to let out contracts fairly appears to be one of the first reports leading up to the

enactment of a prevailing wage law.

In February 1891, the Second Annual Convention of the Kansas State Federation of Labor,

in Topeka, approved a bill concerning state-p^d wages. That month, the bill, which included the

prevailing wage section, called "for an Eight Hour Law" and wsis brought forth by Mr. Avery of

the Typographical Union No. 121, Topeka. The bill stated.

That in no case shall any officer, board, or commission, doing or performing any service or

furnishing any supplies to the State of Kansas under the provisions of the act be allowed to

reduce the daily wages paid to employees engaged with him (or them) in performing such

service or fumishmg such supplies, on account of the reduction of hours provided for in the act.

2 Davis-Bacon Repeal Effecu
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That in all cases such daily wages shall remain at the minimum rate which was in such cases

paid and received prior to the passage of the act.'

The eight-hour bill was one of four labor-related bills pending in the legislature. The weekly

pay bill, the child-labor bill, and the bill to make the first Monday in September a holiday, which

would become known as Labor Day In addition, that year the Kansas State Federation of Labor

approved a resolution calling "for the abolition of convict labor when in competition with free

labor."'

The eight-hour bill. Senate Bill 151, failed in the Kansas senate March 6, 1891, with the

prevailing wage section removed. But by March 10, when the prevailing wage section was put

back in, the bill became law. This first prevailing wage law stated.

That not less than the cunent rate of per diem wages in the locality where the work is

performed shall be paid to laborers, workmen, mechanics and other persons so employed by or

on behalf of the state of Kansas....'

At first, however, the law was not enforced.' Not until 1900, did the Kansas Bureau of Labor

and Industry Statistics report enforcement: "there were hundreds of complaints that were attended

to by correspondence, and good results obtained."'.

Prevailing wage laws in other states. New York was the second state to pass a prevailing

wage law. New York's eight-hour law (Chapter 385) was amended in 1894 by Chapter 622 to

include a prevailing wage law for those employed on public works. As in Kansas, however, there

were many violations.'" Laws similar to those in Kansas and New York were passed in Oklahoma

(1909), Idaho (1911), Arizona (1912), New Jersey (1913), Massachusetts (1914), and Nebraska

(1923) (see table 1.1). These laws established a precedent for the creation of the federal Davis-

Bacon prevailing wage law.

Passage of The Davis-Bacon Act

Three federal laws primarily affect prevailing wages in the United States: the Davis-Bacon Act

of 1931 which applies to construction, the Walsh-Healey Public Contracts Act of 1936 which

covers employers in manufacturing and supply industries, and the Service Contract Act of 1 965

(known as the OUara-McNamara Service Act), covering suppliers of personal and business

services. These laws attempt to neutralize the effects of government purchases on wage

determination in the private sector. The Davis-Bacon Act is the most significant of the three laws.

A prevailing wage is intended to prevent &e federal government from affecting local wages

and construction conditions; Davis-Bacon disallows the government from pushing down wages

in competitive bidding. The government has always been a major purchaser of construction

services. As a primary customer of construction services, the government holds the potential to

use its bargaining power to force down wage rates.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Table 1.1 Prevailing Wage Laws, by State
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The Government is engaged in building in my district a Veteran's Bui^au hospital Bids were

asked for. Several New York contractors bid, and in their bids, of course, they had to take into

consideration the high labor standards prevailing in the State of New York ...The bid, however,

was let to a firm from Alabama who had brought some thousand non-union laborers Q^om

Alabama into Long Island, NY.; into my district. They were herded onto this job, they were

boused in shacks, they were paid a very low wage, and the work proceeded. ..It seemed to me
that the federal Government should not engage in construction work in any state and undermine

the labor conditions and the labor wages paid in that State. ..The least the federal Government

can do is comply with the local standards of wages and labor prevailing m the locality where

the building construction is to take place."

Hearings for a federal prevailing wage law began in 1927 and continued in 1928 and 1930, but

no bill was passed. On March 3, 1931, Bacon's original proposal, which he had reintroduced as

H.R. 16619, was signed into law by President Hoover
'^

The Davis-Bacon Act required payment of prevailing wages on federally financed

construction projects. The law essentially ruled out bidding on construction worker wages on

federally financed construction. The original language was vague, however, and prevailing wages

generally were not determined before the acceptance of bids. In 1935, President Roosevelt signed

clarifying amendments to the act, wdiich became the basis of the current Davis-Bacon Act. The

National Labor Relations Act of 1935 gave the Secretary of Labor authority to set the prevailing

wage.

In 1935, Roosevelt's Secretary of Labor, Francis Perkins, established the original rules for

determining the Davis-Bacon prevailing rates. The prevailing wage was said to be the wage paid

to the majority, if a majority existed, if not, the 30-percent rule was used The 30-percent rule

means if 30 percent of the workers in an area are paid the same rate, that rate becomes the

prevailing rate there. The 30-percent rule often resulted in the union wage being the prevailing

wage. If the 30-percent rule did not apply, because at least 30 percent of the workers in a given

occupation in the local labor market did not receive the same wage rate, the average wage rate

was paid to workers doing the same job. The prevailing wage was determined this way for 50

years.

In 1985, President Reagan changed administration of Davis-Bacon, creating the 50-percent

rule. The revised regulation reduces the influence of the negotiated union wage in most areas (see

page 9, below).

The Tenth Amendment to the Constitution restricts the ability of the federal government to

dictate contract terms for the states. Thus, work funded entirely by state or local governments is

not covered by Davis-Bacon. Each state, county, or city can establish its own prevailing wage

— if it chooses to do so — through legislation. In 1994, 29 percent of all county-level federal

Davis-Bacon prevailing wage rates were taken from union contracts, 48 percent used average

wages, and the remaining 23 percent of counties used a mix of union and average wages,

depending on the occupation.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Repeals of Some State Prevailing Wage Laws

Kansas had passed the first prevailing wage law in 1891 and, by 1969, 41 states and the District

of Columbia had prevailing wage laws. Several cities also passed local prevailing wage laws

affecting construction. However, state governments began experiencing fiscal crises in the late

1970s. In 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13, restricting state expenditures, and the

Labor Law Reform Bill failed in Congress. In this political context, many state legislatures

believed that, to save tax djllars, government should use its bargaining power to lower

construction costs, even if the probable effect of this action would be the lowering of construction

wage rates and a possible effect might be the lowering of quality in the construction industry.

More than SI bill", have been introduced in 23 state legislatures to repeal or curtail so-called

little Davis-Bacon I .. ...
"' Alabama, Arizona, Colorado, Florida, Idaho, New Hampshire,

Kansas, Louisiana, ; in have repealed their prevailing wage laws.

Florida. Florida .^-iiich passed its prevailing wage law in 1933, was the first state to repeal.

The statute was repealed over the veto of the governor in 1979.''' One of the most populous

counties, Broward, established its own local prevailing wage law and several cities in Broward

passed similar laws.'^

Alabama. Alabama was the next state to repeal, in 1980." After Alabama's repeal, the entire

South from Virginia to Mississippi, except Tennessee, was without state prevailing wage law.

Unsuccessful attempts were made in 1983 and 1984 to reinstate the 1968 Alabama laws.

However, prevailing wage laws exist at the local level, such as one in Mobile for city-sponsored

construction."

Utah. Utah's prevailing wage law had been passed in 1933. Eventually, prevailing rates were

set by hearings held in three districts that were created for diis purpose. In addition to covering

construction, the Utah statute established prevailing rates for piece work.

The first indications of intent to repeal the Utah law were heard from the local chapter of

the national Association of Building Contractors (ABC) in 1978, (The ABC, nationally and in

Utah, sought to represent the interests of non-union contractors.) The Utah ABC outlined its

strategy in a letter to other state ABC chapters in 1978:

It is our hope that the major argument in favor of repeal would be based on tax savings and

unnecessary government spending, rather than a imion verses non-union argument."

The ABC lobbying effort became public during the Utah legislative session in 1979. The

sponsor of the Utah repeal, Republican Representative S. Garth Jones wrote in ihe Deseret News:

The prevailing wage rate is substantially the union pay scale. In 1933 the law was designed to

place money into a depressed economy, to increase wages to get the economy moving. The law

does the same thing today. But today, the economy is not depressed; inflation is the problem

and the cost of government is too high. Repealing the prevailing wage will allow the free

enterprise system to establish the wages of tradesmen at a substantia] savings to the taxpayers.

The prevailing wage law is inflationary. Additionally, the prevailing wage rate discourages non-

nnion contractors from bidding public contracts. It encourages union contractors v.i bid public

contracts. The effect is to force people looking for work to go to union contractor.. The law is

inconsistent with Utah's Right to Work law.(Feb. 23, 1979)

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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The first bill to repeal the statute was introduced in 1979, only to be vetoed by Democraric

Governor Scott Matheson In 1981, repeal bills were introduced in 14 states Only in Utah did

repeal succeed that year and it succeeded only after a second veto from Matheson
"

The bill was approved on almost straight party lines — Republicans favonng repeal and

Democrats opposed The Salt Lake City Tribune noted that only one Republican representative,

who called himself a lifelong Republican and union member, voted against repeal and broke away
from party lines."

When Matheson vetoed the bill in 1981, he said, "I'm convinced that repeal of this law is

not in the best interests of working people in the trades whose skills are essennal for a vigorous

construction industry."^' Nonetheless, the Senate overrode the veto 21-7 and the repeal took effect

2 months later.

Those m favor of the repeal maintained that the prevailing wage law was inflationary and

pro-union Republican C McClain (Mac) Haddow sponsored the 1981 repeal bill. He said, "the

law IS outmoded and is preserved only as a tool to extend union control. The law is contrary to

Utah's right-to-work philosophy.. .."^^

Roger Evershed, president of the Association of Building Contractors, predicted a 10 to 15

percent savings on public works projects with repeal."

Arizona. The next state to repeal was Arizona in 1984." Arizona's statute began as an eight-

hour work day in 1912 and, by 1930, became a prevailing wage law. In a court test, the statute

was found unconstitutional in September 1979." In November 1984, voters repealed the stamte

m a ballot initiative. Proposition 300. Provisions of the ballot initiative prevented communities

from implementing local prevailing wage statutes."

Idaho. Idaho's prevailing wage law was first enacted in 1911 as an eight-hour law. The

statute was extensively amended until 1965; efforts to repeal it began in 1979. The legislature

failed to ovemde several vetoes but did repeal the law in 1985." At the same time, overtime pay

requirements for more than eight hours of work were repealed.*'

Colorado. Colorado also repealed its prevailing wage law in 1985." Attempts for repeal

began in the late 1970s, but it was not until after the governor had vetoed the bill several times

that the veto was overridden and the repeal passed. Nevertheless, since 1985 at least one

municipality, Pueblo, established its own prevailing wage rate for local construction.'"

New Hampshire. New Hampshire joined Colorado and Idaho in 1985 when it, too.

repealed. '' Although legislators began in 1979 to try to repeal the prevailing wage law, they did

not succeed until 1985. Influenced by reports of inflated costs on a school construction job, both

houses passed repeal without the signature of Governor John Sununu.'"

Kansas and Louisiana. Kansas, the first to have a state prevailing wage law, repealed it in

1987." Louisiana followed in 1988 with repeal over the initial veto of the governor."

Efforts to Repeal Other Prevailing Wage Laws

The Massachusetts ballot initiative. In Massachusetts, in 1 988, thousands of union members,

already active in the presidential election, worked with community groups to help defeat a ballot

initiative that would have repealed the state's 1914 prevailing wage law. The effort to block

repeal in Massachusetts appears also to have slowed efforts to repeal other stale prevailing wage

Davis-Bscon Repeal Effects 7
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laws until the midterm elections of 1994. Question 2, the repeal initiative and the hottest issue

on the ballot that yea vas defeated 58 to 42 percent on November 8."

The Massachuse aw requires contractors to pay employees on state-financed projects a

predetermined wage. Prevailing wage rates are most often based on collective bargaining

agreements, which vary by trade and geographical jurisdiction."

In 1988, the Association of Building Contractors (ABC) and Citizens for Limited Taxation

formed a coalition that spearheaded the repeal effort, with a signature drive run by the "Fair

Wage Committee." In March, a report by the Massachusetts Foundation for Economic Research,

77ie Peculiar Prevailing Wage Law, presented the public rationale for a repeal of the state law."

The report stated that the many attempts to modify the prevailing wage law were defeated before

reaching the governor's desk." Using confidential data collected from a construction contractor,

the authors estimated that the prevailing wage law increased construction costs by 14 percent

through higher wage costs. The report concluded that, "in 1987, the prevailing wage law cost

Massachusetts at least S212 million dollars.""

In August, in response to the report by the Foundation for Economic Research, the Regional

Information Group of Data Resources Inc. presented a contrasting view. Data Resources said the

earlier report had used insufficient data and oversimplified analyses.'" Data Resources maintained

that a repeal in 1990 would result in a "total wage loss of $196 million and a net employment

loss of 600." Data Resources concluded that although there would be nominal tax savings with

a repeal, the overall impact would be to increase unemployment and lower living standards."

By the end of a hard-fought campaign, commimity support included the Catholic Church;

the Jewish Labor Committee; the Massachusetts Nurses Association; the National Women's

Political Caucus; and the National Organization for Women."
A similar effort in 1994 to repeal by initiative failed on the Oregon ballot. The battleground

has shifted back to state legislatures and the U.S. Congress.

Efforts to Repeal Davis-Bacon

The onset of state efforts to repeal prevailing wage laws coincided with U.S. Senate hearings in

1 979 to repeal Davis-Bacon. During the first hearings, Davis-Bacon proponents defended the law

with these points:

1. The act prevents the disruption of local wage and construction market conditions by the

introduction of federally financed construction.

2. The act protects the prevailing living standards of construction workers by discouraging

cutdiroat competition by construction contractors.

3. The act provides equality of opportunity for contractors who are free to bid on the basis

of skill, efficiency, and knowledge, rather than on their ability to slash labor standards.

4. The act helps maintain the high quality of the construction labor force and equal

employment opportunity in the construction trades by encouraging use of bona fide training

programs on federally funded construction.'"
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Advocates of repeal of Davis-Bacon said:

1. The act has inflated construction costs.

2 The act costs the federal government huge amounts of money.

3 The act is poorly administered.

4. The act is biased toward union contractors and hurts non-union contractors.

5 The act has caused wage mflation

6. The act discnmmates against minorities, because they are disproportionately represented

among the low-skilled labor force.

7. The free-market system is suppressed.

Although the Davis-Bacon Act was not repealed in 1979. the Reagan administration changed

the way the law is administered a few years later. The administration in 1985 altered the 30

percent rule. Until then, the Department of Labor used the modal — most common — wage to

determine the prevailing wage for an occupation in a local labor market, if the modal wage to

the penny accounted for more than 30 percent of all wages for that group." If the modal wage
accounted for fewer than 30 percent of all wages, the mean (average) wage was declared the

prevailing wage.

The Reagan administration raised the threshold to 50 percent before the modal could be

declared the prevailing wage. Union wages tend to be the modal wage and they tend to be above

the mean or average wage for an occupation. So the Reagan administrative change had the effect

of lowering the prevailing wage in areas where unions were weak.

Some of the competing claims for and against Davis-Bacon can be tested against the experience

of the states — those that have repealed state prevailing wage laws, as well as those that continue

to have such laws, and states that have never legislated a prevailing wage. This study examines

the contentions of Davis-Bacon proponents that prevailing wage laws prevent the disruption of

local wage and construction labor markets and that prevailing wage laws protect living standards

and discourage cutthroat competition. This study examines, as well, the contention of Davis-

Bacon opponents that the law costs government considerable sums of money and discriminates

against women and minority construction workers. The study also raises two new questions First,

^^at are the effects of prevailing wage laws on training and human capital formation in

construction? Second, what effects do these laws have on the safety and health of construction

workers?

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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II. The Economic Effects of Davis-Bacon Repeals

Cutthroat Bidding

As soon as the law was repealed, some of these non-union people [contractors] that had been

doing small work around town suddenly just took ofT, and the union people [contractors] like

ourselves, our market share decreased.

— President, a union construction company. Salt Lake City, 1993

[Our] company has consisted of my father and my grandfather and me from about 1963. [We

are a double-breasted company.] Company A is a union [general] contractor that hires merit

shop companies with no regard to union affiliation. Company B is a non-union merit shop

company.... Our industry became very competitive during the mid-eighties, a lot of people are

chasing the same type of work.

— General contractor, double-breasted company. Salt Lake City, 1993

We've been in business for 31 years. Before that my great-grandfather ran a construction

company and so we've always done construction. Right now we're doing mostly mechanical,

and we do utilities. Mountain Fuel, water lines, sewer lines, AT&T jobs. WeVe built homes.

We've built golf courses. WeVe built apartment buildings. In the last probably about eight years

[since the mid-1980s] there's a lot more imall companies — little tiny, you know, dad and his

three boys. We can't compete against them. We have too much overhead to do that and you get

small start-up companies, they're willing to work for nothing for a while and you know tfaeyll

go out there for two years and just take these jobs dirt cheap. Sometimes they can't finish.

They'll go broke in the middle but still, we don't want to work for nothing. We'd just rather lock

the gate and wait.

— Office manager, union construction company. Salt Lake City, 1993

When Utah repealed its prevailing wage law in 1981, the structure of the construction industry

changed dramatically. The most obvious effect v^ras the decline of union membership and union

contractors. But this was only the most obvious effect. Underlying the decline of union

contractors was the rise of the little contractor and increasing turnover of contracting firms in die

business. The industrial organization of the industry changed, with an increased reliance on

subcontractors.

Comparing the 12 years prior to repeal to 10 years after repeal, the share of totzl

construction employment accounted for by the typically bigger and more capital-intensive genersJ

contractors and heavy and highway contractors fell, while the share of total employment

accounted for by specialty subcontractors rose (fig. 2 1)

With the entry into the market of more contractors and smaller contractors, competitive

pressure to win bids heated up. This pushed wages down. An operating engineer familiar with

the bidding wars stimulated by Utah's prevailing wage law repeal tells how the bidding affected

labor.
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Before 70-81

After 82-91

General Heavy Specialty

Figure 2.1 The mix of constructioD employment in Utah, by contractor type, before and after repeal

of the state's prevailing wage law
Source: Utah LMI Annual RepnrL Table 5.
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When they repealed Utah's law, a lot of companies went out of business because of the

cutthroat competition. A lot of companies just bought jobs so they could have a cash flow to

make payments on their equipment. The design engineers would tell the contractor that let's say

the job was going to cost a million dollars. The contractor would still go in there an>'way and

low-ball the bid. Then they would tum around to their workers and make their wages fit

whatever they had to be to fit the low-ball bid.

The general contractors did a lot of bid shopping after the prevailing wage law was repealed.

The general contractor would get a bid from the subcontractor of say S50,000 and then he

would low-ball the bid. Then, when the general got the job he would go back to the

subcontractor and say yeah I've got the job but you've got to cut your bid to $40,000 to have

this job I've got and the sub would go back to the workers and say OK we've got this job but

now I've got to cut your wages.

See costs of materials and supplies and equipment were stable. The price of bricks and the

asphalt didn't go down just because you got this job. So the workers had to make up the

difference for all this low-ball bidding. So basically the employer got their money off the backs

of the worker. Whether it was to make money or just to break even, wages had to fall.

— Operating engineer. Bountiful, Utah, 1994

But wages were not the only factor to feel the strain of an overiieated bidding process.

Government purchasers of construction services were now exposed to practices of low-balling

bids and over-running costs. Average annual cost overruns for the Utah Department of

Transportation prior to the law's repeal was 2 percent of initial accepted bid (fig. 2.2). Since fte

repeal, however, overrun costs have risen to 7.3 percent of the initial bid. This rise in overrun

costs has come despite the introduction of computers as a tool for contractors in preparing their

bids.

The cause of these increased overrun costs is the post-repeal tendency for contractors to take

more risks in the bidding process under the pressure of increased competition (fig. 2.3). When
the state calls for bids on a project, the state engineer prepares an initial estimate of the project's

cost. In the decade prior to the repeal of Utah's prevailing wage law, winning bids averaged 91

percent of the state engineer's estimate. After the repeal, witwing bids have been, on average, 89

percent of the state engineer's estimate. Contractors are shaving their bids to win state contratrts.

These lower estimates have not proved to be a windfall for the state.

Instead, after Utah's prevailing wage law repeal, final construction costs have been running

at 95 percent of the state engineer's initial estimate. This amounts to 6 percentage points above

the accepted bids. Prior to Utah's repeal, final costs were running 93 percent of the engineer's

estimate, only two points higher than initial accepted bid prices.

This does not necessarily mean that the pre-repeal construction was ultimately cheaper for

the state, but it does mean that the relationship between accepted bid price and actual costs was

more certain and that contractors promised less before Utah's repeal, but delivered more relative

to die state engineer's cost estimates.

Heightened competition after Utah's repeal has not only created uncertainty in the bidding

process, but has also lowered Utah construction wages across the board. A union plumber

describes this:

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Figure 2^ Average cost overruns as a percentage ofaccepted bids on Utah road constructioo, before

and after repeal of the state prevailing wage law

Cost overruns on the construction of Utah roads averaged 2 percent over accepted

bids in the decade before Utah's repeal of its prevailing wage law. In the decade
after repeal, average cost overruns rose to 7.3 percent over the accepted bid.

Change orders associated with cost overruns are one of the more expensive

components of construction costs.
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After Utah repealed its little Davis-Bacon law I was working on a job as a union plumber The

elcctncians on the job were non-union. At that time there was temfic pressure on wages and,

as I remember, the IBEW (International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers] took a big wage

cut — something like $3 — from $16 to $13. Anyway, the day after the union electricians took

that cut, the contractor came on the job and told these non-union guys they would have to take

a $3 cut too. There was a lot of animosity around that but they took the cut an\-way They had

to. Our union held of! two years before we had to do the same thing the electncians did, and

when we took our cut the non-union plumbers' wages fell right along with ours

— Union plumber. Salt lake City, 1994

Utah repealed its prevailing wage law just as the economy was falling into the 1982

recession. Thus, the effects of the repeal initially were tangled up with the effects of the

recession. However, some of the nine states that have repealed their prevailing wage laws did so

in good times and some in bad times. A comparison across states can somewhat disentangle

effects of the business cycle from effects of a repeal.

A Loss of Earnings for All Construction Workers

Whatever a government might save in construction expenses from the repeal of a prevailing wage

law, the saving has to be balanced against the loss of other revenues. The lower wages paid on

government-financed construction have a ripple effect, lowering wages throughout the local

construction industry. Construction workers in states that have a law have a higher average

annual income than construction workers in states that have repealed a law, and those workers,

in turn, earn more, on average, than do construction workers in states that have never had a

prevailing wage law (fig. 2.4). That pattern may be explainable, however, for more than one

reason. States that have different prevailing wage law policies may have higher or lower

construction earnings for reasons unrelated to the wage law. For instance, repeal states might also

be low-wage states in general.

It may thus be more useful to isolate earnings data for repeal states only — before and after

(fig. 2.5). Average annual construction-worker earnings in the nine states that repealed their

prevailing wage laws from 1979 through 1988 show a drop of $1,835 from $24,317, or about 7.5

percent in wages, adjusted for inflation and denominated in 1991 dollars, or $2,016 in 1994

dollars. The nine states are not heavily unionized and a fall of this magnitude cannot be

accounted for simply by a fall of union wages to the non-union level.

In recent years, the average construction unionization rate m the nine states that repealed

their state prevailing wage laws has been around 13 percent of the construction labor force.'

With this level of union coverage, for a fall in the union wage to account for all of the fall in 4e
average wage, at the outset of the repeal, union workers would have had to have been earning

60 percent more than non-union workers.** Union wage differentials typically are around 10 to

20 percent above non-union wages. Because union wages are not sufficiently high and union

coverage not sufficiently wide to account for all the fall in construction wages in these repeal

states, we know that non-union workers have had to absorb some share of this average earnings

decline.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Enects
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If one assumes that the union differential is 20 percent above the non-union wage and, after

the repeal, the union wage falls to the non-union wage, both wage rates will have to fall even

further to attain an overall 7 5 percent cut in earnings. Assuming that the union wage would fall

to the non-union rate and then they would both fall together, the union wage would have to fall

by 21 percent and the non-union rate would have to fall by 5 percent to obtain an overall fall of

7.5 percent. In fact, only rarely does the union rate fall entirely to the non-union wage A
reasonable assumption would be that the union rate prior to a repeal was 20 percent above the

non-union rate and after the repeal fell to 10 percent above the non-union rate. Given a 7.5

percent overall fall in earnings and a 13 percent union membership rate, union wages would have

to fall 14 percent and non-union wages would have to fall 6.3 percent to obtain an overall fall

of 7.5 percent. In other words, while the union rate would have to fall twice as much as the non-

union rate, the non-union sector of construction workers would have to absorb much of the

average percentage wage cut. The effects of state repeals of prevailing wage laws are isolated

neither to union workers nor to government-financed construction.'" They generate across-the-

board cuts in the earnings of all construction workers.

A Loss of State Tax Revenues

The tax revenue losses that result from lower construction wage levels are surprisingly large.

Whatever the source of this earnings decline among construction workers, states with income

taxes have lost tax revenues as a result of this decline in taxable income among constructioD

workers. And, because this lost income means lost purchasing power, states that have repealed

their prevailing wage laws have also lost some sales tax revenues. On average, construction

workers account for 5 to 6 percent of a state's labor force. In Utah in 1991, individuals earning

$20,000 to $30,000 paid a marginal income tax rate of about 7 percent. Taking the 31,528

construction workers employed in Utah in 1991 and an average per capita decline in income of

$1,835, the total loss of annual income from the Utah construction industry in Utah in 1991

because Utah's 1981 repeal could be calculated as $58 million ($1,835 times 31,528). Given a

marginal tax rate of 7 percent, 1991 lost state income tax revenues might amount to $4 million

(in 1991 dollars) (table 2.1). Assuming a marginal propensity to consume on sales-taxable items

from changes in income of 80 percent and a sales tax rate of 6.25 percent, lost state sales tax

revenues from this loss of income amount to $2.9 million in 1 99 1
" Adding these two losses and

bringing them to 1995 values using the consumer price index yields an estimated loss of $8J
million in state taxes in Utah in 1991 evaluated in 1995 dollars.

The figure of $8.2 million in lost tax revenues may be an overestimate for four reasons,

however. First, if wages fall and labor becomes cheaper, contraaors might hire more workers.

So we must consider possible increases in total income of construction workers resulting fi'om

possible increases in total construction employment after a fall in wages. Second, real wages have

been falling in Ae United States generally, including the construction industry. Some of the lower

wages after state repeals may simply reflect a long-term decline in real wages that would have

taken place anyway. Third, annual earnings in construction are sensitive to unemployment.

Earnings rise wiien unemployment falls and fall when unemployment increases Because

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Have Law After Repeal Never Had Lav-

States by Groups

Figure 2.4 A comparison of annual construction earnings, by status of prevailing wage law

Source: US DOL Emplojinent and Earnings, 1975-91.

Figure 2.4 groups states into three categories (from left to right). The first bar,

on the left, shows average annual income in 1991 dollars for construction workers

in all states and years where a state prevailing wage law was enforced. This

includes repeal states prior to repeal. The second bar shows the average annual

earnings of construction workers in repeal states after repeal. The third bar

represents average annual earnings for construction workers throughout 1975 to

1991 in all states that never had a prevailing wage law. These data provide initial

evidence that repealing or never having a prevailing wage law lowers construction

income not only on public works but across the entire state construction industry.
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Figure 2^ A comparison of construction earnings in nine repeal states only, before and after repeals

(in 1991 dollars)

In the nine states that repealed their prevailing wage laws between 1979 and 1988,

average annual income fell after the repeals (calculated in constant 1991 dollars).

This fact does not control for other factors that might have been driving down

wages, but it is prima facie evidence that the repeals forced lower earnings not

just on public works but across the construction labor market.
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Table 2.1 A simple estimate of Utah tax revenues lost in 1991 as a result ofthe 1981 state preniling

wage law repeal

Individual construciion income pnor lo repeal (1991 dollars) S2-J17

Individual construciion income after repeal S22.-S2

(1991 dollars)

Lost income due to repeal (1991 dollars) 51^35

1991 Utah construction employment 31J28

Total lost income in construction (1991 dollars) S57.S53J80

Lost Utah income tax S4.049.772

Lost Utah sales tax 32.771986

Total lost tax revenues S6.S26'^'i!i

Total lost tax revenues in 1995 dollars SS.19M09

The average annual construction eanungs in 1991 dollars for nine repeal states in the

years after 1975 and before each sute's repeal was $24317. In the years after each

repeal up to 1991, the average construction earnings fell to $22,482. Utah construction

employment in 1991 was 31,528 workers and multiplying these by an annual loss of

income of $1,835 yields a total lost income in Utah construction of S57.8 million.

Based on Utah's income tax rate of slightly over 7 percent and a sales tax rate of

slightly over 6 percent and a marginal propensity to consume taxable items of 80

percent, total lost state tax revenues were $6.8 million. In 1995 dollars, this is $82
mUlion.
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unemployment varies by state and year, some of the difference in earnings might be because of

variations m the unemployment rate (see figs 2 4 and 2 5) Last, construction wages vary by

region for reasons that are not directly due to the presence or absence of prevailing wage laws

These regional differences in earnings, unemployment, and long-term trends in wages can be

accounted for by using linear regression analysis.

Regression Analysis of the Decline of Construction Worker Earnings

Using linear regression analysis, this section takes U.S. Department of Labor employment and

earnings data for construction workers in states for 1975-91 to re-estimate the construction

earnings loss resulting from state repeals of prevailing wage laws. The analysis controls for long-

term trends in wages, variations in unemployment, and variation in wages by region of the

country, and then focuses on the effect of (1) never having had a prevailing wage law, (2)

repealing a prevailing wage law, and (3) raising the threshold for implementing a state prevailing

wage law to contracts worth $500,000 or more.

U.S. Department of Labor employment and earnings data provide detailed information on

annual construction earnings broken down by year, state, and type of construction contractor

For 1975-91, there are 27,778 separate observations. The inclusion in these data of information

about prevailing-wage law status by state and year and translation of all money values into 1991

dollars (using the consumer pnce index) allows us to test for (1) the effect that never having had

a prevailing wage law has on per capita construction earnings, (2) the effect on individual

earnings of repealing a state prevailing wage law, and (3) the effect on individual earnings of

raising the threshold for applying a prevailing wage law.

In this test, we control for regional differences in construction earnings, secular trends in

earnings," cyclical variations in earnings as a result of vanations in unemployment, and

differences in earnings by detailed contractor type."

The data used for this test include average earnings across all states, years, and construction

trades — $26,645 per year in 1991 dollars (table 2.2) " States that never had a prevailing wage

law account for 15.6 percent of all the observations. States that repealed their laws account for

10.5 percent of all observations after repeal and 7.8 percent of all observations before they

repealed their laws, for a combined total of 18.3 percent. States that had and retained their

prevailing wage laws between 1975 and 1991 account for the remaining 66 1 percent of all

observations in the data set. Maryland and Oklahoma, the states with prevailing wage laws but

with threshold levels of projects costing $500,000 or more, account for 4 percent of all

observations State-by-state unemployment rates in this penod averaged 6.76 percent annually

The results of this regression model estimating the effects of state repeals on construction

earnings are statistically significant and the overall model has a goodness of fit of 73 percent,

which means that 73 percent of the overall variation in annual earnings m the data set are

explained by the model. The results may be read as follows (see table 2.3).

Begin with a constant amount of annual earnings of $33,005. (This is a starting point

calculated by the regression model and is typically called the "constant.") Then select a state and

a year. In any state for any year we know the status of prevailing wage laws for construction. We

use Utah as an example in column (3) Utah once had a prevailing wage law, but, by 1991, that

law had been repealed. Furthermore, 1991 was 17 years after the beginning of the data set and,

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects 2'
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Table 12 A description of the data used in regression model of construction earnings decline

Observations
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Table 2J A regression model estini;i(e of the effects of sUte repeal on constniction annual earnings,

controlling for regional differences in earnings and for secular and cyclical trends in earnings

Regression Mode
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thus, the time variable is set at 17 and Utah is in the mountain states region. Set ail other

regional variables to zero and multiply the mountain states control coefficient by 1. Multiply the

secular trend control variable by 17 because this is the seventeenth year of the data set. Multiply
the unemployment control by 4.9% because that was the unemployment rate in Utah in 1991. Set

the "never had law" variable to zero because Utah did have a prevailing wage law up to 1981

and set the threshold variable to zero, because in 1991 Utah did not have a prevailing wage law
(and even when it did, the threshold was below $500,000). Now, set the repeal variable to 1 and
multiply it times the repeal coefficient. Thus, the model now predicts Utah's 1991 construction

income to be $26,266. That is $33,005 (the starting point) minus $79 (lower wages in the

mountain states) minus $3,829 (secular down trend in real wages) minus $1,481 (associated with

unemployment) minus $1,350 (because of Utah's prevailing-wage law repeal). The same exercise

yields a predicted income of $30,836 for Maryland in 1991 and $22,345 for Georgia in 1991

Change the year and/or the state and the model predictions change. The R^ statistic of 73 percent

indicates that the model fits the data well and that the predicted values are close to the actual

earnings in the various states for the various years."

Controlling for all these variables, the model estimates that the effect of the repeal of the

nine state prevailing wage laws was a negative $1,350 annual hit on construction earnings Given
average annual earnings of $26,645, this means a decline in earnings of 5 1 percent. This is a low
estimate of a repeal's effect on earnings. The effect of a repeal may accumulate with time. The
stales that never had prevailing wage laws in construction have lower construction wages— after

controlling for regional differences in wages and differences in unemployment rates. The model
estimates that, in the nine repeal states, construction earnings are $2,960 less than in other stales,

controlling for other factors. This is an 11 percent reduction in construction earnings associated

with never having had a prevailing wage law. The simple procedure in the previous section which

compares construction earnings in repeal states before and after repeals estimates the repeal effect

to have a 7.5 percent negative effect on earnings. Thus, the range ofestimated effects variesfrom
5.1 percent to 7.5 percent to an 11 percent decline in construction earnings associated with the

repeal or absence ofprevailing wage laws."

Increased Employment Associated with Lower Wages

As construction labor becomes cheaper, contractors may alter their crew mix to use more workers

who are unskilled. Have the nine state repeals of prevailing wage laws generated higher levels

of employment? Construction employment varies markedly with seasonal and cyclical trends in

the economy. These employment swings can hide Ae effect of more jobs generated by falling

wages. For instance, Utah repealed its prevailing wage law just as the construction economy was
going into recession. On the surface, it looked like the repeal and wage cuts did not generate

more construction employment. Multivariate linear regression analysis can control for these

variations and pick < * the potentially hidden effect of a repeal, controlling for cither factors.

Table 2.4 presen.. the results of a generalized least-squares regression test of the hypothesis

that, as construction earnings fall, all other things being equal, construction employment will rise.

The model controls for variations in unemployment, secular trends in employment construction,

and any nonwage effect on employment associated with the repeal of a state prevailing wage law

24 Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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The focus variable in the model is average annual earnings in construction and the hypothesis is

that the relationship between earnings and employment should be negative. As earnings go down,

employment might well go up. The regression model also includes control (dummy) vanabies for

each state and each detailed industry classification (four-digit SIC; such as, plumbers and pipe

fitters, SIC 1711) Thus, the model predicts construcrion employment in specific states, years, and

each construction subclassification, such as plumbing and pipe fitting. In the data set for 1975-91,

the average employment in a four-digit subclassification is 3,540 construction workers. The

unemployment rate, not surpnsingly, negatively affects construction employment and there is a

small but statistically significant upward trend in employment The effect of prevailing wage rate

repeals on employment is negative, but this variable is not statistically significant which means

the true direct effect of repeals on employment is zero

However, the indirect effect of state repeals on employment working through lower earnings

IS not zero The effect of earnings on employment is as theoretically expected As earnings fall,

employment increases and this estimated effect is statistically significant From this relationship,

we can estimate the indirect effect of state prevailing wage laws on employment through the

repeals' effects on earnings.

Possible employment effects may be calculated for various levels of earnings decline. In

table 2.5 column (1) presents hypothetical earnings declines and, in column (2), the results from

table 2.4 are used to calculate a predicted increase in the construction industry when it is

analyzed at the detail of 4-digit SIC codes (such as plumbers and pipe fitters, SIC 1711). As

average annual construction earnings fall from a loss of $500 to a loss of $3,000, employment

in given SIC industry groups rises from 24 new workers to 1 1 8 new workers. Given an average

employment size of a 4-digit-SIC industry group of 3,540, these hypothetical increases in

employment translated in percentage terms to an increase of from 0.7 percent when earnings fall

by $500 to an employment increase of 4.0 percent when earnings in construction fall by $3,000.

The Net Effect of Repeals on Government Budgets

The overall effect of state repeals of prevailing wage laws on state expenditures in construction

and state tax revenues will depend on the amounts of government cost savings from such a repeal

and lost tax revenues from a repeal. Government construction cost savings will depend on three

questions, how much lower are wage costs after a repeal, how much lower is worker productivity

at lower wages, and how much construction work does the government purchase? Lost tax

revenues will depend on (1) the marginal income tax rate for construction workers earning

$20,000 to $40,000 per year, (2) the sales tax rate, (3) the marginal propensity to consume

taxable commodities for construction workers earning $20,000 to $40,000 per year, (4) lost per-

capita construction income associated with a repeal, and (5) gained construction employment

associated with a repeal. (The $20,000 to $40,000 range encompasses most construction workers.)

Previous estimates of construction cost savings associated with a hypotherical repeal of the

federal Davis-Bacon Act range from 1 to 1 1 percent." The Congressional Budget Office favors

an estimate of a 1.5 percent cost savings associated with the wage effect plus a 0.2 percent cost

savings because of paperwork associated with Davis-Bacon." The savings may be higher or

lower.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Table 2.4 EfTects of wa^cs on employment, controlling for state difTerences in emplo>iDeot,

difTerences in the size ofSIC groupings, the direct effects of repeals, and secular and cyclical trends

(1)
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Table 2J Effects of construction earnings decline on employment for ad average-size detaile<J

construction standard industrial classiHcation (4-digit SIC) of 3,540 workers per state

Various

Hypothetical

Earnings

Declines

Predicted Rjse in

Employment Because of

A Fall in Annual

Construction Earnings

Percentage Rise

In Employment

Because of a Fall

m Earnings

(1) (2) (3)

-S500

-S 1.000

-SI .500

-S2.000

-S2.500

-S3.000

24

47

71

94

118

141

0.7%

U%
2.0%

2.7%

33%

4.0%

As repeals force a fall in construction wages and earnings, construction

employment rises. The model in table 2.4 indicates that a $500 fall in earnings

results in a 0.7 percent rise in employment. An average annual S3,000 drop in

earnings would result in a 4 percent rise in employment. This is an "inelastic"

demand for labor — the percentage that earnings declines is substantially higher

than the resulting percentage rise in employment (for the group). This means that

even though employment rises when wages fall, the rise in employment is relatively

small compared to the fall in wages. Consequently, overall income to construction

workers declines after state repeals.
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The effect in Utah. In this section, we will simply accept all ranges of hypothetical or

estimated savings rates from 1 to 11 percent in order to examine our model of lost tax revenues

as it applies to Utah (see table 2.6).

Rows 1 through 10 of table 2.6 provide half of the information needed to calculate the net

effect on Utah's budget balances associated with the repeal of Utah's prevailmg wage law in

construction. Row 2 shows the level of employment in construction in Utah for 1987 to 1993

Taking from our regression model the value of lost income associated with a repeal of a state

prevailing wage law (-$1,350) and translating that into 1994 dollars, using the consumer price

index (-$1,477), we multiply this lost income times the level of construction employment in Utah

for each year. This lost income associated with a repeal, denominated in 1994 dollars, is showTi

in row 3. Row 4 shows the gained amount of employment associated with a fall in constniction

wages and earnings because of a repeal. Row 5 shows average construction worker income in

each year (in 1994 dollars). Row 6 shows the gained income due to additional workers shov.Ti

in row 4 multiplied by average construction worker income in row 5 Row 7 reports the

difference between GROSS lost income due to lower earnings and gained income due to lower

wages This net lost income is the source of the lost income tax revenues reported in row 8

Utah's income tax rate is flat at 7 percent of income. Utah's sales tax rate is 6.25 percent.

For construction workers, it is conservative to assume an 80 percent marginal propensity to

consume locally on items subject to sales tax. This means that as a construction worker's income

rises by $1,000, that worker will spend $800 on local commodities subject to state sales taxes.

This allows for 20 percent of additional income to go to savings or purchases not subject to sales

taxes (Food purchases are subject to sales taxes in Utah.) Row 9 reports lost sales tax revenues

as a result of net lost income reported in row 7. Row 10 combines lost income and sales tax

revenues.

Rows 12 and 13 report in 1994 dollars the value of building and road construction in Utah

not covered by the federal Davis-Bacon Act. Roughly 20 percent of road work in Utah is not

covered by the federal prevailing wage law. Rows 16 through 21 calculate, again in 1994 dollars,

hypothetical levels of construction cost savings associated with Utah's repeal of its prevailing

wage law. These hypothetical savings range from 1 to 1 1 percent of total construction costs

Rows 23 to 28 subtract lost tax revenues from constniction cost savings for the vanous

hypothetical levels of cost savings.

Rows 23 to 28 show that in Utah, at total construction cost savings of below 3 percent, the

repeal of the state's prevailing wage law tended to increase state finance deficits. The loss in tax

revenues associated with lost construction vwjrker earnings exceeded likely gains in construction

cost savings. At and above 5 percent in total construction cost savings, the repeal helped tip the

balance of state finances into the surplus. Using the Congressional Budget Office's estimate of

a 1.5 percent increase in constniction cost savings plus 0.2 percent in paperwork, the state of

Utah would have lost more in tax revenues than it gained in construction cost savings every year

since it repealed its prevailing wage law in 1981.

The likely effect of a Davis-Bacon repeal on federal budgets. For construction workers

earning $20,000 to $40,000, federal marginal income tax rates range from 1 6 to 28 percent. There

are no widely significant federal sales taxes With these changes m mind, and using federal data

for construction employment, we can use the above model to estimate the tax revenue effects of

a repeal of Davis-Bacon (table 2 7).

28 Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Table 2.6 The relation of hypothetical construction-cost savings to tax revenues

•
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Table 2.7 Projected efTects of ii
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With an employmeot level of 6 millioo coastnjctioo workers and an average annual eamiog

of $27,000, the lost iocome from lower wages exceeds the gained income from increased

employment. This results in differing values of lost iocome tax revenues depending on tb-

assumed marginal tax rate. With a value for federal construction of SI 1.5 billion, the

hypothetical savings on construction from a repeal depends on the assumed cost-savings rate.

At a marginal income tax rate of 16 percent, net budgetary savings from a repeal occur oqIt

with construction cost savings rates above 5 percenL At a 20 percent marginal lax rat;,

net budgetary savings from a repeal occur only with construction cost savings rates above

9 percent. At a 28 percent marginal tax rate, net budgetary savings from a repeal never

occur within the range of cost savings between 1 and 11 percent. In short, a repeal of tbt

Davis-Bacon Act will hurt the federal budget deficit.

There are approximately 6 million consmjction workers in the United States." Table 2.7, tow

2 shows what would have been the loss in income that these construction workers would a=ve

experienced given the 1994 value (-Sl,477) of our regression estimate of the effect of he;;

repeals on construction income. Row 3 presents an estimate of increased national construcion

employment associated with lower wages. Row 4 presents average annual income for construrnon

workers in 1994. Row 5 multiplies gained employment in row 3 times average income in rov,-

4 to obtain the increase in total construction workers' income associated with a hypotfasical

repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act. Row 6 subtracts gained workers' income from new employasit

from lost income as a result of lower wages to yield net lost worker income resulting frvr: a

hypothetical repeal. Rows 8 through 1 present lost mcome tax revenues due to net lost incoce

at three marginal tax rates of 16, 20 and 28 percent. In fiscal year 1990-91, the ftderaJ

government spent S10.491 billion on construction." Row 11 presents this sum in 1994 dolls.-.

Rows 13 through 18 present levels of hypothetical savings in construction costs associated ^rii

a repeal of Davis-Bacon. Recall that the Congressional Budget Office estimates total the sa-.ings

to be 1.7 percent, but others have presented savings estimates between 0.5 percent and 11

percent. Rows 20 through 25 present the net effect on the federal budget of hypotheaa!

construction cost savings at various projected rates minus tax revenue losses at vjirious marf""-'

tax rates. Rows 20 through 25 show that only at very low marginal tax rates and very high

construction cost savings rates does the federal budget benefit from a repeal of Davis-Bacos. .-."

a marginal tax rate of 20 percent and a construction cost savings rate of 3 percent, the fsc^-z!

budget loses $838 million annually in 1994 dollars based on the 1991 level of federal govertHnini

expenditures on construction.

Summary

In Utah, the repeal of the state prevailing wage law led to an overheated bidding process ^iuri:

added uncertainty to the cost of state construction. In the decade before the repeal, cost ovemsj

on state-financed road construction averaged 2 percent of accepted bids. In the decade after ie

repeal, average road construction cost overruns rose to 7 percent of the accepted bid. A cio«:

inspection of the data showed that, after repeal, contractors tended to present bids at a lo-ir

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects 5!
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percentage of the state engineer's estimate of project costs but that, after change orders, the

projects ended up costing the state a higher percentage of the state engineer's project cost

estimate thjin in the decade prior to repeal. After the Utah repeal, contractors shaved their bids

to get state jobs and more than made up for low-ball bids with subsequent change orders. This

caused the increased cost overruns.

An econometric analysis controlling for variations in regional differences in construction

earnings, variations in unemployment rates, and general trends in real earnings showed that the

nine state repeals' effects on earnings was a loss of SI,477 in 1994 dollars. Econometric modeling

also showed that construction employment rose in repeal states after repeal by about 1.7 percent

This employment increase appeared controlling for variations in unemployment and long-term

trends in construction employment growth.

Thus, in assessing the budget effect of repeals of prevailing wage laws, we are able to do

two things. First, balancing the overall loss of construction worker income resulting from lower

average earnings against the overall gain in construction worker income resulting from higher

construction employment, we are able to estimate the change in overall construction worker

income and consequently the change in government tax revenues resulting from these repeals-

Second, taking a very wide range of hypothetical construction cost savings, we are able to

estimate the net gain or loss to government budgets associated with repeals.

In Utah, given its structure of income and sales taxes, the state budget benefits from its

repeal of the prevailing wage law at construction cost savings at and above 3 percent. At the

Congressional Budget Office estimate of a 1.7 percent construction cost savings (including

paperwork costs), the state of Utah's budget has annually lost money as a result of the repeal

every year since the repeal.

At the federal level, construction cost savings must be substantially higher to generate any

budget benefit from a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act because of the federal iticome tax structure.

At the more conservative estimate of 3 percent construction cost savings with a 20 percent

marginal tax rate and the 1991 level of federal construction spending (in 1994 dollars), the federsJ

government would lose S838 million per year by repealing the Davis-Bacon Act.

The justification often given for repealing the Davis-Bacon Act is that a repeal would help

cut the federal deficit. That is incorrect. A repeal of Davis-Bacon would help raise the federal

budget deficit. This is because the purpose and effect of a repeal is to lower the cost of wages

on federally funded construction projects. But lower wages and earnings will not be isolated to

federally financed public works. Earnings would decline across the entire construction labor

market and the government would lose more in income tax revenues than it will gain ia

construction cost savings.

Davis-Bacon Repeal EfTeiLi
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III. The Effect of State Repeals of Prevailing Wage Laws
on Training and Minority Participation in Training

This chapter presents a case study of the effects of the repeal in 1981 of Utah's prevailing wage

law on unionization, construction earnings, and training The Utah repeal accelerated the decline

in the union share of the state's construction labor market, drove down average construction

wages in the state, and decreased union apprenticeship training for construction. No public or

private source has offset the decline in training. In response to the decline in union membership

and training, contractors have reduced turnover in order to retain skilled workers and to minimize

screening and training costs. In response not only to the decline in construction wages but also

to the coincident decline in health and pension benefits, however, experienced construction

workers are leaving their trades for careers in other industries. Thus, while construction firm

turnover is on the decline, turnover in the industry is on the rise.

This chapter examines also whether the Utah experience in training can be generalized to

the eight other states that have repealed their prevailing wage laws in construction. The U.S.

Department of Labor Bureau of Apprenticeship Training keeps state-by-state records on registered

union and non-union apprenticeship programs in construction. These records suggest that what

happened in Utah is typical of what has happened in other states after repeal of their prevailing

wage laws. The ratio of apprentices to journeymen in construction is higher m states that retain

their prevailing wage laws compared with states that never had such a law. The rate of

apprenticeship training in states that repealed their prevailing wage laws was substantially higher

before the repeal compared with after the repeal. This remains true even when one controls for

regional differences in training rates, the effect of unemployment, and long-term trends in

training.

There are not many minority workers in Utah in construction, but nationally there are.

("Minority" here refers to nonwhites, male and female.) Some have argued that prevailing wage

law repeals will open job opportunities for unskilled minority workers and lower the

unemployment rate of minorities, relative to whites. However, there is no evidence to support

this claim. Black-white unemployment ratios rose in repeal states after repeals. Black-white

unemployment ratios tend to be slightly higher in states that have never had prevailing wage laws

compared to states that have retained their laws. While repealing prevailing wage laws probably

has not caused black-white unemployment ratios to go up. There is no evidence to suggest that

a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act would cause black-white unemployment ratios to decline.

The repeal of prevailing wage laws has especially hurt the training of minorities. There are

proportionately more minorities trained as construction apprentices in states that retain their

prevailing wage laws compared with states that have never had such laws. In repeal states, the

proportion of minorities trained in construction apprenticeship programs declines substantially

after the repeals. This remains true after controlling for regional differences in relative training

rates, unemployment, and long-term trends in minority training which are independent of state

repeals of prevailing wage laws

The decline in minority participation in construction apprenticeships after repeal is tied to

a decline in unionization. Union apprenticeship programs tend to be large. Apprenticeship

coordinators move apprentices from contractor to contractor in order to broaden the experiences

of the apprentice. Typically, because non-union apprenticeship programs ne the apprentice to one

contractor, the non-union programs tend to be small, single-firm programs, as opposed to larger,

33 Davis-BacoD Repeal Effects
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joint programs. At the same time, affirmative action regulation of apprenticeship programs applies

only to programs having five or more apprentices. With the repeal of prevailing wage laws, not

only does formal apprenticeship training decline, but also remaining apprentices are found more

often in smaller apprenticeship programs. Thus, one effect of state repeals of prevaihng wage
laws has been to move more apprenticeship training out from under the oversight of affirmative

action regulation. The result has been a substantial decline in minority participarion in the

remaining apprenticeship training. _

The EfTect of Repeal on Construction Unions and Wages

When Utah repealed its prevailing wage law in construction, wages became a focus of

competition between contractors bidding on state jobs. Many union contractors went non-union

or double-breasted (with union and non-union subsidiaries) to ma. n or beat the lower wages of

non-union contractors, and other union contractors lost market share.

Because construction employment was falling, many union members went non-union with

their traditional employers to stay employed. The vice president of a large industrial and

commercial general contracting firm in Utah noted that, after the repeal.

There were a lot of union workers that carried their card in their shoe. They worked open shop

until a union job came available. A lot of folks all of a sudden started to find homes over there

[in the open shop] and never came back (personal interview. May IS, 1993).

Consequently, in the short-run, at least, contractors that remained union did not have a

significant labor productivity adv2tntage over many of the newly non-union contractors. This

effectively forced remaining union contractors out of much of the construction market.

With the decline of union contractors, Utah construction union membership fell (fig. 3.1).^

The decline in membership was accelerated by the 1982 recession. Union membership appeared

to recover from the recession, but many dues-paying members were working open shop. With

the onset of the next downturn in Utah construction in 1986, union membership began to fall

steadily. These data are consistent with the story that union members working in the open shop

eventually found a home there and quit paying their union dues.

With the repeal of the prevailing wage law and the resulting decline in unionization in Utah,

average wages in construction fell relative to the average Utah wage (fig. 3.2). Construction

wages, which had ranged from 120 to 12S percent of the average Utah wage before the

construction boom of the 1970s, exceeded 130 percent during the boom. When construction

employment growth stopped in the late 1970s, construction wages fell back toward the high end

of their normal premium over average Utah wages. But with the repeal of the prevailing wage

law, construction wages fell to a new lower range of 1 1 to 115 percent of the average wage in

Utah. This is an across-the-board decline in construction wages and not isolated to union earnings

nor the earnings of construction labor on public works. This relative decline in construction

earnings in Utah is consistent with the overall decline m construction wages following repeal

(chapter 11).

The data for Utah actually underestimate the effect of Utah's repeal on construction workers'

earnings, in part because the data do not include the change in value of benefits.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects 34
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1500

Eventually, Members "Find

a Home in the Open Shop"

1977
I I I I I I I I I I I I I U I M 1 I I

1979 1981 1983 1985

Quarterly Membership Totals

I I I I M I I i I I I . I I I 1 I I

1987 1989

Figure 3.1 Union membership in construction in Utah, 1977-89

Source: Utah State Building and Construction Trades dues records.

Union membership began to decline with the prevailing wage law repeal and the onset oT

the 1982 recession. Membership recovered somewhat in 1983 but not as fast as overall

construction employment. With the 1985 downturn in Utah construction employment,

union membership began a steady decline to less than half its late-1970s peak.
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Figure 3.2 Wages and employment in construction in Utah relative to wages

Source: Utah Job Security, Division of Labor Market loformation, Annual Report, table 5.

Construction employment in Utah grew rapidly io the 1970$, but growth stopped in the

1980s and cyclical fluctuations became more pronounced. Wages that ranged between 120

and 125% of the Utah median wage prior to the construction boom of the 1970s, rose

above 130% of Utah's median wage during the boom. As the boom ended, wages moved

down to their normal range. With the repeal of Utah's prevailing wage law io 1981, wages

plummeted.
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Typically, unionized construction workers receive better health and pension benefits than do non-

unionized workers. Lower benefits, particularly health and pension benefits, contnbute to the

increase in overall labor turnover in and out of the construction industry in Utah. This increased

occupational turnover, we will see. led to a younger, less trained, and less experienced labor

force.

The Relation between Repeals and Black Unemployment

It has been argued that the Davis-Bacon Act was passed, in paif. to restrict southern blacks from

northern construction job opportunities. It is further claimed that the current high and nsing rano

of black unemployment rates relative to white unemployment Tates is partly due to restrictions

that prevailing wage laws impose on the ability of unskilled black labor to compete with better

skilled white labor. From these beliefs, it is argued that a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act would

lower black unemployment relative to white unemployment by opemng up jobs for less-skiUed

black labor." ., „, , , ,

These arguments are not directly supported by the available evidence. Black unemployment

rates are separately collected for only five of the nine states that have repealed their state

prevailing wage laws. Arizona, Idaho, New Hampshire, and Utah do not have large-enough black

populations to generate meaningful unemployment statistics. However. Alabama. Colorado.

Florida, Kansas, and Louisiana do have sufficient black populations to test the above argument

The ratio of black-to-white unemployment for five repeal states can be shown usmg state

unemployment rates for white and blacks and white males and black males (fig. 3.3). In all cases^

black unemployment rates are more than twice the rate of white unemployment. Before the repeal

of state prevailing wage laws, however, the male black-to-white unemployment ratio and Ae

overall black-to-white unemployment ratio were both less than their corresponding ratios after

these states repealed their prevailing wage laws.

This does not mean that the repeals caused the black-to-white unemployment ratios to nse.

Black-to-white unemployment ratios were nsing across the country m the 1980s m repeal states

and elsewhere. The rise in the black-to-white unemploymem ratios simply reflects this nme

trend
^

By comparing the states that retain their prevailing wage laws with those states that never

had prevailing wage laws, we can eliminate the effect of time trends m black-to-white

unemployment ratios. The black-to-white unemployment ratio and the male black-to-wfaiie

unemployment ratio are both lower for states with prevailing wage laws compared to sm«

without prevailing wage laws— averaging unemployment rates across states and years from 1 974

to 1992 (fig.3.4)." The male unemployment ratios in figure 3 4 are almost the same and

statistically they are not different.

These data do not support the proposition that a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act would

ameliorate in any significant way the relative unemployment of blacks to whites.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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/ Never Had Law

Retained Law

Males

Figure 3.4 Black-to-white unempioyment rstio for sutes that retained and that never had «ate

prevailing wage laws

Source: US DOL Geographical profile of cmpioyment and uaemploymcDt 1974-92.

Comparing the black-to-white unemploymcot ratio in states that retained their state

prevailing wage laws throughout the last 25 years with the ratio in those states that never

had state prevailing wage laws eliminates the effect of a strong time trend that shows up

in before-and-after analysis. The male black-to-white unemployment ratio is slightly

higher in the states that never had prevailing wage laws compared with states that

retained theirs. The difference is not statistically significant. The overall black-to-wbite

unemployment ratio is signiHcantly greater in the states that never having had a

prevailing wage law, but this is because of female unemployment differentials, which are

unlikely to be significantly affected by construction employment patterns.
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A Decline in Training

With the decline in union membership and in relative wages, training for construction in union

apprenticeships and through vocational schools - declined in Utah. Union apprenticeships are ned
to the availability of union jobs. For instance, unionized plumbers and pipe fitters in Utah, die

United Association of Journeymen and Apprentices of the Pluir.ting and Pipe Fitting Industry of

the United States and Canada, historically have attempted to m. itain apprenticeship rates ai 10

to 15 percent of the number of unio.i journeymen plumbers in the state (fig. 3.5). As employment
boomed in the 1970s, however, the union could not meet the demand for journeymen from union

contractors. Consequently, the union increased apprenticeship rates to a peak of 25 percent m
1975 The boom persisted, but tlie backlog had been remedied. So the union lowered its

apprenticeship rate back to normal ranges by 1978. Employment during the construction boom
peaked in 1979 and membership in the plumbers and pipefitters' union peaked in 1981.

With the repeal of the Utah prevailing wage law, the union dropped its apprenticeship rate

to 10 percent, a historical low. Union membership fell slightly in 1982 and began a steeper

decline in 1983. Faced with these sustained declines in membership, the union cut its

apprenticeship rate even lower in 1986 and thereafter. Unions hit harder by declines in

membership have scaled back their apprenticeship programs further. The carpenters' union, Utah

locals 184 and 1498 of the United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners of America, which

graduated seventy in a class in 1977, graduated five in 1992. The Utah International Union of

Bricklayers and Allied Craftsmen suspended its apprenticeship program altogether.

The decline in union apprenticeship training in Utah has not been offset by a rise in other

sources of training Because the repeal of Utah's prevailing wage law was motivated by a desire

to limit state expenditures, state legislators were not eager to raise funding for state-sponsored

vocational training

Although the number of vocational graduates in construction grew in the 1970s, the

construction labor force grew more rapidly. Thus, while the 1970s was the heyday of vocational

training at Salt Lake Community College, vocational graduates as a percentage of the

construction labor force had already begun to decline.**

The steady decline in state-supported vocational training as a percentage of the construction

labor force through good times and bad supports the notion that the state has simply tried to get

out of the business of vocational training in construction. The fall in union membership and

wages has made construction a less attractive career. At the same time, unions are less able to

train construction workers. As unions are weakened and community colleges drift toward

academic offerings, the capacity to respond smoothly to an upsurge in construction jobs is

undercut. And federally sponsored Job Corps vocational training is not in a position to fill in the

gap

Federal revenues pay for Job Corps training in Utah at the Weber Basin and Clearfield

centers. Federal funding in real terms for these centers has not expanded, but the Weber Basin

Job Corps Center, which draws predominantly from die Utah population, has significantly cut its

construction worker training throuL .out the 1980s. This center committed itself to changing from

an all-male student p^oulation in 1980 to 50 percent female by 1990. To accommodate tins

switch, training for traitionally male occupations such as construction, have been scaled back

Davis-Bacon Repeal EfTects
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Membership Peaks in 1981
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Figure 3^ Apprentice plumben; as a percentage ofjourneymen plumbers in Utah, 1961-91

Source: Utah plumbers and pipe Titters local's membersbip records.

Tbe plumbers' uoioo in Utah has historically attempted to train apprentices at a rate of 10

to 15 percent of their journeymen members. As employment boomed io the 1970s, the unioo

could not meet journeyman demand and consequently expanded apprenticeship trainiog

rapidly. As tbe numbers of journeymen grew to meet demand, apprenticeship training was

reduced to normal rates. But with the repeal of the sute prevailing wage law in 19S1,

union membersbip declined and apprenticeship training rates were cut to all-time lows.
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to accommodate new offerings in traditionally female occupations, such as office management
and clerical work Ceme- masonry and heavy-equipment training have been eliminated, and
instruction in carpentry, p. nting, and bnck laying has been cut in half

The Clearfield Center has graduated approximately 100 construction trainees per year since

the early 1970s Fewer Clearfield graduates go into the Utah labor market, compared with Weber
Basin graduates, because most of Clearfield's students are from out of state Perhaps 10 percent

of Clearfield's graduates go into the Utah labor market, but this percentage rises dunng penods
of local labor shortage. It is estimated, however, that at most only 25 percent of Clearfield's

graduates will stay in Utah.

Even without union pressure, it is possible that a shortage of skilled construction workers

in Utah will raise wages and induce a new generation of young people to enter construction

vocational training for the industry. Nonetheless Utah is now in a building boom — when wages

would normally rise — and annual earnings in construction relative to annual earnings for all

Utahns continue to fall. In 1993, the most recent year for which data are available, the

construction earnings premium fell to a historic new low of 103 percent of the average annual

earnings for all non-agricultural workers in Utah."

Utah is now in a building boom, one that has come quickly. High-quality training programs,

which take time to create, are not in place to meet the demand. This adds an additional lag to

the usual time it takes to train a skilled laborer. Utah's current boom has relied partly on using

a less-skilled labor force (which partly accounts for the lower construction earnings premium) and

partly on travelers from California, which is currently in a construction lull Whether ±e Utah

construction industry can rely, in the long run, on training systems for construction workers in

California remains to be seen. A pick-up in California construction would quickly bleed away

the skilled workers Utah is now attracting. This is one difference between state repeals of

prevailing wage laws and a federal repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act If construction cycles are not

synchronized, it is at least possible, if a state is lucky, for one state to freely ride on the training

systems of another state. A repeal of Davis-Bacon would create a nationwide decline in training.

Under such a circumstance free riding on the training of another area would not be an option.

Market Responses: Training, Turnover, and Careers

The market in Utah has not successfully made up for the decline in union and state-sponsored

training. At the national level, the non-union Association of Building Contractors (ABC) has

attempted to replicate the union system of bargaining for hourly contributions to a training fund.

It is difficult, however, to induce ABC's member contractors to include general training costs in

their bids. Each contractor fears that his competitors will not include training costs. Thus, m an

attempt to be the low-cost bidder, ABC contractors often refrain from including training costs

despite the ABC initiative. Consequently, very little ABC training has occurred in Utah.

In Utah, non-union apprenticeship programs operate, however, in the licensed trades of

electricians and plumbers. In 1992, there were 846 non-union licensed apprentice electricians in

Utah and 2,068 non-union journeymen. Thus, there are 4 apprentices for every 10 journeymen

in the non-union sector. In contrast, there were 123 apprentices and 607 journeymen in the union

sector in 1992, or 2 apprentices for every 10 journeymen. In the non-union sector, apprentices

begin at around $6 per hour with no benefits. Over a four-year period, the state mandates that
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the apprentice wage rise to 80 percent of a journeyman's pay. In the union sector, apprentices

begin at $7 per hour with an additional $3 in benefits. Their wages rise to S14 per hour plus $3

in benefits over five years Non-union apprentices are sponsored by a particular contractor that

oversees on-the-job training, and these apprentices take classwork at a participating community

college. Union apprentices work under the direcrion of an apprenticeship coordinator, rotate

among employers for on-the-job training, and take classes at community colleges and union

^prenticeship centers. Roughly 90 to 95 percent of the union apprentices complete their

programs and graduate to journeymen status, while only 15 to 20 percent of the non-union

apprentices graduate. Given these rates, in four years, out of 846 non-union apprentices, we

should expect 125 to 170 journeymen to be graduated. In five years in the union sector, out of

123 apprentices, 110 to 115 apprentices would graduate to journeymen electrician. Thus, while

the non-union sector accounts for more than 85 percent of all electrician apprentices, it accounts

for about 60 percent of journeymen graduates.

Economic theor>- is consistent with this pattern wherein non-union apprentices are paid less

and graduate at a lower rate than union apprentices. Economic theory posits that in the absence

of marketwide institutions or government subsidies, individual workers will have to pay for their

own on-the-job training when the skills learned are general to an industry and not specific and

unique to the activities of a particular firm. The worker-leamer pays for training by accepting a

wage that is lower than the value to the firm of that worker's marginal product. By working for

less than the worker's worth to the employer, the worker pays the employer for on-the-job

training. That beginning non-union electrical apprentices earn $6 per hour while union apprentices

earn $10 per hour (including benefits) is consistent with the theoretical proposition that non-union

apprentices pay for their own training by taking a discounted wage below their marginal value

to the contractor.

Because the employer does not pay much for non-union training, the theory suggests that the

employer has no stake in the worker's training. If the worker leaves, the employer does not lose

any investment in the worker's human capital. So, the employer will tolerate high levels of

turnover. Because the worker is receiving less than what the worker can earn in other jobs with

no on-the-job training, the worker may be tempted to exit jobs with training when current

personal budget needs become pressing. So, on both the employer side and the worker side,

turnover is tolerated in the non-union sector. This view is consistent with the higher turnover

rates among non-union apprentices, but other factors also contnbute to the roughly 20 to 90

percent differential in non-union to union graduation rates.

Because the non-imion employer prices new hands at discounted wages that shield the

employer from investing in the human capital of new workers, the employer does not screen new

workers extensively to forestall subsequent turnover. The employer's failure to preselect new

workers for aptitudes and attitudes consistent with a long-term attachment to construction work

adds to the turnover among non-union construction apprentices In contrast, the joint

apprenticeship boards of unions and union contractors do considerable preselection for aptitude

and attitude before letting a candidate into an apprenticeship program. This is because the union

contractors and unions will invest in the union apprentices' training."

In the non-union sector, workers may also leave apprenticeships if it becomes apparent that

the employer offenng training at a discounted wage is not delivenng on that training promise to

train. Because employers are able to discount wages of apprentices below their current worth to
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the employer, it is tempting to engage in bait-and-switch tactics whereby training is promised but

not delivered. By saving on training costs, the employer can earn an additional profit from

employing green hands at discounted wages. In the union sector, because employers and union

journeymen invest in the training of the apprentices, bait-and-switch tactics are less attractive

Because the apprentices' wage is not discounted as much below what they could earn elsewhere,

the apprentices are not as tempted to leave. Thus, the non-union sector must begin training five

apprentices to graduate one journeyman, while the ratio in the union sector is close to one to one

While non-union contractors tolerate high levels of turnover among apprentices, with the

decline in training and union membership, non-union Utah contractors have sought to reduce the

turnover among trained journeymen. There has been a long-term decline in labor turnover in

construction (fig. 3.6). This long-term decline can be explained with a pooled, cross-sectional,

time-series linear regression model, as can the differences in turnover rates in Utah by contractor

type from 1956 to 1991 (table 3.1). Not surprisingly, this model shows that turnover was higher

in years in which variations in monthly construction employment were great. It also shows that

contractors with larger crews tolerated proportionately more turnover. Contractors employing

more-expensive labor sought to reduce turnover. When union membership was a high percentage

of the construction labor force, turnover was higher simply because contractors losing one good

worker could turn to the hiring hall for a reasonable substitute at little additional cost. When
vocational schools were graduating a large number of construction-trained students relative to the

Utah construction labor market, contractors tolerated more turnover because the market had

proportionately more trained substitutes. The numbers of union membership and vocational

graduates have been on the decline, however. Thus, this regression model shows that, over time,

contractors have responded by reducing the turnover among journeymen .

Although turnover at the firm level has been on the decline, workers may be entering and

leaving construction at higher rates than 20 years ago. In 1970, Utah construction workers, on

average, were 42 years old *' By 1990, before the recent construction boom had begun in Utah,

the age had fallen to 33 years.'" Much of this decline may be due to the construction expansion

in the 1970s, which brought in a new generation of younger workers. But the decline in age mzy

also be a result of both the decline in health and retirement benefits and the decline in relative

wages associated with the decline in unions. Although non-union contractors increasingly are

providing health and retirement benefits, especially to their key people, the health benefits tend

to be more expensive for a given level of care and the retirement 401K plans lack the insurance

component associated with union-defined benefit plans.

National Trends in Registered Apprenticeship Training

The U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Apprenticeship Training, monitors registered

apprenticeship programs — union and non-union — in the construction industry. Data are available

for 1975-78 and 1987-90. Not all states have reported to the Bureau of Apprenticeship Training

for all years during these periods. Nonetheless, 29 states did report registered construction

jqjprcntices for every one of those years The states included 6 states that eventually repealed

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Figure 3.6 Turnover in Utah's construction industry' compared with all employment rutmide

Source: Utah Job Security, Division of Labor Market Information Aooual Report, table 5.

As the Dumber of trained jouroeymen in Union biriog balls declines and the number of

DOD-uoioo journeymen declines, firms respond by reducing turnover.
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Table 3.1 Lioear regression model of turnover rate in constructioD in Utah, 1956-91

Source: Utah Job Security, Annual Report, table 5.

Dependent variable = finii turnover in construction'

Actual Standardized

yanabk' Coefficient Coefficient

Union Members' 1.76 .24

New Vocational

Graduates' 2.45 .20

Real Wage -.076 -.62

Seasonality 2.12 .15

Workers per

Contractor .052 .40

(Constant) -1.88

' The actual variable is ln(tumover/(l -turnover)) to meet the technical

requirement in linear regressions of being an unbounded dependent variable.

'' All independent variables are statistically significant at the 1% level.

' As a percentage of the construction labor force.

Adjusted R^ Square = 0.24

Number of Cases = 351

Contractor Type = 4-digit SIC

Contractors in Utah have tolerated higher labor turnover when union membership has

been a high percentage of the labor force and when new vocational school graduates have

been plentiful. Turnover has been more common in years when monthly employment has

fluctuated a lot. Contractors have been more willing to tolerate turnover among lower-

paid workers and have had to accept higher levels of turnover among larger work crews.

Standardized coefTicients indicate that worker skill and crew size have had the largest

effect on variations in employer turnover rates, while the availability of both union

members and new vocational graduates have had larger effects than seasonal fluctuations

in employment.
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their prevailing wage laws, 4 states that never had prevailing wage laws, and 19 states that

retained a state prevailing wage law throughout the penod. These 29 states can be divided into

the categories "repeal," "never-had," and "retained-law," for comparison (figs. 3 7 and 3.8) No
state had repealed its prevailing wage law by 1978 By the end of the first quarter of 1987, all

nine repeal states had passed their repeals except Louisiana which repealed in 1988 The data for

1987 are for the summer of 1987, after Kansas had repealed in that year."

In the "before" period, states that had prevailing wage laws — those that retained such a law

and those that had not yet repealed theirs — typically trained a higher percentage of registered

apprentices than the states that never had a prevailing wage law. For unknown reasons, the year

1976 IS an exception to this pattern. Dunng this pre-repeal period, the states that would

eventually repeal their laws had as high or higher training rates compared with the states that kept

their laws throughout the period. By 1987, training rates had fallen for all states, but they had

fallen least in states that had retained their prevailing wage laws By 1989, the states that had

repealed their prevailing wage laws had training rates as low as the states that never had

prevailing wage laws. This is clear evidence that repealing state prevailing wage laws lowers

formal apprenticeship training.

A simple analysis can help isolate the effect on training of repealing state prevailing wage

laws from a general downward trend in construction apprenticeship training. Apprenticeship

training rates for states that repeal their prevailing wage laws in the late 1970s and 1980s are

presented as a percentage of the training rates of states that retained their prevailing wage laws

(table 3.2, col. 2). Throughout the 1970s, before repeals, the repeal states had training rates that

were at or above the average training rates for states that had and would keep their prevailing

wage laws. After the repeals in the late 1980s, the repeal states had training rates that fell to as

little as 63 percent of the training rates of states that kept their prevailing wage laws. By 1990,

the repeal states had relative training rates that were as low as the states that never had prevailing

wage laws. Thus, while training in construction has been falling for all states, the fall for repeal

states has been the most precipitous and — setting time trends aside — the repeal states matched

the training rates of the retaining states prior to repeal and fell to the rates of states never having

had prevailing wage laws after the repeal.'^

Unlike the simple analysis just presented, however, a multiple linear regression analysis can

control for other factors, such as differences in state unemployment rates or regional differences

in training (table 3.3). The dependent variable in the analysis is a transformation of the training

rate for each state, where the training rate is calculated as registered apprentices as a percentage

of all construction employees in a state and year. For technical reasons associated with die

assumptions of linear regression analysis, the actual dependent variable is the natural log of die

odds ratio of the training rate where the odds ratio is calculated as (the percent trained) divided

by (one minus the percent trained)."

In the regression model, regional differences in training rates are controlled for with the

regions corresponding to standard Bureau of Labor Statistics regional categorizations.

Unemployment differences are controlled for by state and year. The data are for the years 1975-

78 and 1987-90. The focus variable is REPEAL, a dummy variable equalling 1 once a state

repeals its prevailing wage law. A second focus variable is NEVERHAD which equals zero for

all states except for those nine states that never had a state prevailing wage law in construction.

For those states, NEVERHAD equals 1 . There are 297 observations in die data set Califorma,
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Figure 3.7 Apprenticeship training rates, by state groups, before and after repeals

Source: VS. Departmeot of Labor, Bureaus of Labor Suttstics and Apprcaticesbip 1 raioing

Tbis Hgure shows apprentices as a percentage of all construction workers in 29 states

grouped by state treatment of prevailing wage law. In tbc four years before the repeal or

state prevailing wage laws, states that would eventually repeal their laws had high

apprenticeship training rates. States that would retain their prevailing wage laws also

had high training rates. Except in 1976, states that never had prevailing wage laws io

construction had relatively low training rates. In all state groupings, training rates in the

late 1980s were lower than training rates in the late 1970s. However, after the several

state repeals, those sutes that reuined their prevailing wage laws bad relatively higher

training rates. Those sutes that repealed their prevailing wage laws eventually bad

training rates that matched the sUtes that bad never bad prevailing wage laws.
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Delaware, the District of Columbia, Hawaii, and Rhode Island are omitted from the analysis

because they did not report to the Bureau of Apprenticeship Training of the US. Department of

Labor during the second period of our analysis. The model is a good fit of the data with an

adjusted R" of 45 percent, and all variables are statistically significant.

The focus variable in the regression analysis REPEAL — a marker for states that repealed

their prevailing wage laws — is negative. This means that - controlling for unemployment, time

trends and regional differences in training — when states repeal their prevailing wage laws, the

training rate goes down. At the mean training rate for the entire data set of 3.7 percent, this

model indicates that repeals drove down training rates to around 2.1 percent. The NEVERHAD
variable, marking states that have never had a prevailing wage law, is also negative and

statistically significant but smaller than the REPEAL variable. This is because of a close

correlation (about 40 percent) between never having had a prevailing wage law and bemg a

southern state. This means the analysis could not fully distinguish between the hypothesis that

training rates in the South were low because many of these states never had prevailing wage laws

and the hypothesis that other reasons associated with being a southern state caused training rates

to be low. The REPEAL effect was easier to pick up compared to the NEVERHAD effect, simply

because the repeal states presented information about their training rates before and after each

state repealed its prevailing wage law.

Thus, looking at training rates from a variety of measures and methods of analysis, it is clear

that state repeals of prevailing wage laws have significantly lowered formal, organized, and

quality training of construction workers. The effect is to lower training rates by about 40 percent.

When apprenticeship training falls as a result of repeals of state pfe-ailing wage laws,

minority participation in apprenticeship programs falls even farther (fig. 3.9). Minorities

comprise almost 20 percent of all construction apprentices in the repeal states in the years before

repeal of state prevailing wage laws. In the same states, after repeal of their prevailing wage laws,

minority participation in apprenticeship programs falls to just under 13 percent of all apprentices.

While construction apprenticeship training is falling in these states by around 40 percent, the

share of minorities in this downsized training also falls by about 36 percent One reason for the

decline in minority training is the decline in union training.

In figure 3.9, the share of minorities in apprenticeship training appears the same for states

that retain their prevailing wage laws and states that never had such laws, but this is an illusion.

Many of the states that have never adopted prevailing wage laws are in the South where there

is a high percentage of minorities in the overall state population (fig. 3.10) We account for that

factor with the ratio of the minority percentage in construction apprenticeship programs, divided

by the minority percentage in the state population. This ratio is 100 percent if the two

percentages are equal. We call this the "minority reflection percentage" because it measures

whether minorities in apprenticeships reflect minorities in the state population.

In the repeal states before repeal, the minority reflection percentage was 107 percent, which

means that the construction apprenticeship programs slightly over-represented minorities After

repeal, minority representation in apprenticeships fell to 85 percent of minonty representation in

the state population. In the states that retained their prevailing wage laws throughout the period

under review, minority representation in apprenticeships just about mirrored minority

representation in the state population (a rario of 102 percent). But, in states that never

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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Table 3J. Training; rates in repeal and never-had states as a percentage of training rates in states

that retained their wage laws
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Table 3J Training rates io repeal and never-had states as a percentage of training rates io states
that reUined their wage laws, 1975-78 and 1987-90

Source: US Department of Labor and Bureaus of Labor Statistics and Apprenticeship

Training

Dependent Variable= Log of the Odds Ratio of the Percent Apprjndcss
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Figure 3.9 Minorities ns a percentage of all construction apprentices by state groups, 53

Source: VJS. Uepartmeot of Labor Bureaus of Labor Statistics and Appreoticesbip Traiotog.

Id repeal states, before repeal of their prevailing wage laws in coostruction, miDoriiT

participation io registered apprenticeship programs averaged 19.4 percent of all

apprentices. After tbe repeals, minorit}' participation fell to 12.5 percent of all

apprentices. The n=28 and d=66 refer to the number of state-year observations in eacb

group. States that kept their prevailing wage laws and sutes that never had prevailiog

wage laws had roughly the same rate of minority participation throughout 1975-78 and

1987-90. On average, however, populations of the states that never had prevailing waje

laws had much higher proportions of minorities.
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Figure 3.10 Ratio of the percentage of minorities in construction as a ratio of the percentage of

minorities in the state population, by state groups
Source: VS. Departmeat of Labor, BAT and BLS.

A ratio of 100% would show that the proportion of mioority apprenticeships in each

group of states reflects the mioority as part of the sute population. Minority

participation in construction apprenticeships mirrored the state population in repeal

states prior to repeal and in states that retained their prevailing wage laws throughout

1990. After the repeals, however, minority participation in apprenticeships in repeal states

fell to levels that seriously under-represented minorities and resembled the under-

representation characteristic of states that never had prevailing wage laws. Non-union

apprenticeship programs tend to be small and do not fall within the oversight of

afTirmative actinu guidelines — which may be why the repeals have led to an under-

representation of minorities in apprenticeships.
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had prevailing wage laws, minority representation rates averaged 83 percent throughout the

period. Thus, both repealing states prior to repeal and "retaining" states throughout the period had

minority participation in construction apprenticeships that mirrored the state population. In

contrast, both repealing states after the repeal and states which never had prevailing wage laws

had substantially under-represented minority participation in construction apprenticeships

Summary

Employment in construction is inherently unstable, because the industry fluctuates cyclically and

seasonally — and firms expand and contract their employment as they win and lose job bids.

Unions have acted like a flywheel in the industry, creating career workers when there were only

casual jobs. Unions did this by facilitating the movement of journeymen from employer to

employer and minimizing the employers' transaction and screening costs for the training. Unions

also lowered training turnover by providing a mechanism whereby employers and journeymen

could rationally invest in the human capital of apprentices. This raised the wages of apprentices

so they would stay with training and induced the union and employers to promote the passage

of apprentices to journeymen in order to preserve their investment. Unions also encouraged the

career attachment of trained journeymen by providing relatively high wages and additional wages

in the form of health and retirement insurance, which are increasingly attractive to workers as

tfaey age. By creating career jobs in a casual labor market, unions created the institutions needed

to make human capital investment a rational market activity.

With the decline of unions in Utah, the formation and preservation of human capital skills

have become less-rational. Self-investment by apprentices becomes more precarious as the

differential between the apprentices' wage and alternative wages in other industries widens. It

simply becomes more reasonable for apprentices to leave construction if unforeseen personal

budget problems emerge. The high turnover among non-union apprentices represents in the

aggregate a considerable loss of human capital to the construction industry, even though it is not

a loss the employer or the state pays for directly. With the lowenng of construction wages, it

becomes reasonable for young construction workers to limit the amount of human capital thev-

invest in themselves. With the worker's lower stake in construction skills and with the

disappearance of wages in the form of health and old-age insurance, it becomes more reasonable

for journeymen construction workers to abandon the construction field when they start families.

This represents an additional loss of built-up human capital.

Contractors in Utah have attempted to minimize the effect of this increased skill volatilit>-

within the industry by encouraging firm attachment. Still, despite initiatives, such as profit-

sharing, 40 IK plans, and health insurance, designed to attach key workers to a firm, constructioD

turnover remains well above the average for the Utah labor market. In short, union decline has

meant the decline of the career worker within Utah construction, a diminution in incentives to

invest in construction skills, and an increased loss of accumulated human capital as apprentices

and journeymen leave the trades Although the loss of human capital and career jobs in this

industry does not appear as a private cost on the ledgers of any contractor, the industry and

society at large pay a price for the loss of financially secure occupations in construction. Not oniy

is quality in the industry put at risk w^en human capital stocks are allowed to dwindle, but the
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quality of social life is imperiled when we dismantle the institutions that generate stable jobs out
of unstable working conditions.

This mstabihty is mirrored in the continuing decline of construction wages in Utah. Despite
a return to boom times in Utah construction, construction worker earnings continue to fall relative
to average annual earnings in the state. Utah's construction boom has had to piggy-back on the
training of California construction workers. Whether Utah can continue this free ride is uncertain
What is certain is that there is no free ride from the effects of a federal repeal of Davis-Bacon.
Experience from state repeals indicates that formal apprenticeship training in construction will

fall by about 40 percent if Davis-Bacon is repealed. If state experiences are predictive, this will

hurt minority workers most. In states that repealed their prevailing wage laws, minority
participation in apprenticeship programs fell from reflecting each state's minority population to

significantly under-representing minorities. This pattern is consistent with states that have never
had prevailing wage laws. Although states that retain their prevailing wage laws have minority
participation in apprenticeships that reflects their state populations, states that have never had
prevailing wage laws have minority participation rates that are only about 80 percent of the rates
in which minorities are present in the state population.

From chapter n, we have seen that a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act will lower construction
wages and earnings. That finding is consistent with the case study of Utah presented in this

chapter. We have also seen that a repeal will significantly reduce training in construction. It may
well be that as the stock of human capital falls in construction and as the jobs market becomes
casual and turbulent, more minority workers will obtain jobs. But they will not obtain training
as they do now in the states that retain their prevailing wage laws and they will not be entering
into occupations that offer a middle-class income with benefits.

Davis-Bacon Repeal Effects
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IV. Construction Safety Put at Risk

Construction is dangerous work. In fact, it is the nation's most dangerous industry. According to

the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics:

• More than 900 construction workers are killed each year — 3 to 5 per workday.

• 510,500 work-related injuries and illnesses occur annually — almost 2,000 cases per

day.''

• 204,800 cases involve lost work days, for a total of 4.6 million days lost from work per

year.

A recitation of the hazards associated with construction work, however, caimot ignore the

substantial variability of accidents and their consequences across job sites and institutional

environments. Accidents and injuries are the product of a complex interaction between worker

and environment, and injuries will be either fostered or limited, depending on how well this

interaction promotes safety. This chapter focuses on the effect of the repeal of state prevailing

wage laws on injuries in construction. The focus on safety rather than overall health, at this

juncture, is strictly a concession to the paucity of reliable data on illnesses related to construction.

Why might the repeal of a state prevailing wage law affect the safety record in construction?

How does Ae presence or absence of such a law alter the important interaction of worker and

environment? Certain parameters are key to the incidence of injury. For instance, construction

work is more dangerous when workers are untrained and inexperienced. Stresses associated with

a lack of job security, the pace of work, and the possible avenues for grievance all feed into the

critical interaction of work and environment on any job site.

In Utah, following the 1 98 1 repeal of the state's prevailing wage law, training declined as

the construction labor market was going into recession (see ch^ter HI). The lack of training and

widespread use of inexperienced workers began to surface as the construction economy

rebounded. One experienced pipe fitter recalls of that era:

Contiacton were using inexperienced people with no training. They had no training program

to begin with, they were hiring people off the street with no experience in the trade. What they

would do is everyone that got hired on one project that did not have a history or work

experience on a construction job, they had to wear a red sticker on their hard hat. They had to

wear that for 30 days. Well everywhere you would looked there were red stickers everywhere.

I estimate that about 40 or 30% of the people had one on their hat. They called them

"hamburger kids."

— Pipe fitter. Salt Lake City, 1994

Lack of training and inexperience are not the only sources of work injuries. In Utah there

was a greater sense of job insecurity after the repeal of the state's prevailing wage law and the

related decline in union work. Without union security, ex-union workers with training and

experience found themselves taking chances they would not have taken pnor to the repeal. One

union worker vA^o was forced to take work in the open shop recalls:
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I got hurt in 1986. There was a great deal of pushing to get the job done. I was working with
an older man that came out of retirement. He was about 70 years old We were waiting for a

cherry-picker to move some pipe. We were waiting for a couple of hours, because they laid off
some operators. After two hours of waiting, two hours of superintendents eyebaJling us, I went
and walked under the piece of pipe, which weighed 253 lbs I carried it over to the structure,

but 1 didn't see because the snow was covering a hole in the ground. I stepped in it, it was
about 14 inches deep and 2 feet across. 1 pulled muscles in my back, pulled some discs in my
back. What I was thinking of at the time was, I can't afford to lose this job. All these guys
walking by me looking at me, I thought we better get this pipe in there some way. I was
nervous, I should not have done it but I did.

— Union pipe fitter. Salt Lake City, 1994

Why Prevailing Wage Repeals Lead to Increased Injury Rates

We can postulate, based on studies of safety and health in the construction industry, w^iy repeal

of the state prevailing wage laws is associated with increases in injury rates. Take as the first

premise these telling facts;

• The rate of injuries "decreases substantially as length of service increases.""

• Large, experienced employers in construction have injury rates that are 80% below small-

to-medium-size contractors.

Repeals of state prevailing wage laws have altered construction labor markets in those states

in several ways that affect job site safety:

1. The bidding process has become cutthroat.

2. Workers are less likely to make a career of construction work.

3. Even as experienced workers are leaving the industry in increasing numbers,

apprenticeship training has declined.

Cutthroat competitiveness in contracting. In Utah, the repeal of the state's prevailing wage
law led to a burgeoning of start-up contractors with limited track records (chapter 11). These new
entrants joined existing contractors in a heated bidding process for state contracts that resultsd

in lower bids, but ultimately higher costs, as a percentage of the state engineer's estimate of the

job cost. Cutthroat competitiveness, in other words, resulted in increased cost overnms.

Inexperience at the firm level, small size, and cost pressures all contribute to compromised safety

on the job.

Because of their relative inexperience, new firms tend to face greater on-site coordinarion

problems than firms with longer track records. Such problems can add to costs, but also direcriy

endanger safety. Problems in coordination, perhaps related to delivery of materials and equipment,

or in scheduling work with subcontractors, lead to greater uncertainty with respect to the

construction schedule. Uncertainty is a breeder of safety risk, as workers can less easily anticipate

and plan for the daily contingencies of work.

New entrants in the industry also are generally smaller in size than established firms. Smaller

firms have worse safety records than larger firms, in part because of greater laxity of enforcement

of safety rules and the relative absence of formal safety programs.

Of greatest importance, however, is the firm's reaction to increased pressure to cut cosn in
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the face of intensified competition and cost overruns. There is a tendency to speed up work and

cut back on safeguards in the face of such pressures.

Workforce turnover. When state prevaihng wage laws were repealed, worker turnover

increased significantly, as the industry found it harder to retain workers for long-term careers (see

chapter III). Repeals resulted in a decline in the union share of the construction labor market,

driving down average construction wages in the state and decreasing union apprenticeship training

for construction. In response to the decline in union membership and training, contractors

attempted to reduce turnover — to retain skilled workers and to minimize screening and training

costs. Still, the decline in wages and in health and pension benefits drove experienced

construction workers from their trades for careers in other industries. Thus, while construction

firm turnover is on the decline, turnover in the whole industry is on the rise.

Those who now work on federally funded Davis-Bacon projects are more likely to be union

trained because of the demanding nature of these large, civil engineering jobs. They are likely

to know more about new processes and changes in technology, and they are more likely to have

graduated from certified apprenticeship programs.

In states that retain their prevailing wage law — compared with those that never had such

a law or repealed such a law — the proportion of construction workers receiving training is

higher and injury rates are lower. A decline in wages and benefits leads to a flood of

inexperienced workers into the industry as well as a decline in skilled, experienced workers

needed to supervise the recruits and to assure that they work safely.

Decline in the skill base of the construction labor market Experience is a major

determinant of safe work performance — and productivity. Training of skilled construction

workers is normally conducted through apprenticeship training programs, most of which are

operated by unions and employers through joint trust fimds. An integral part of this training is

learning on the job while properly supervised. In that way, workers leam from experience while

on a variety of projects. Among other things, apprentices are trained to identify and correct

ergonomic problems, to detect physical hazards, and to detect the presence or release of

hazardous chemicals. Knowledge about safety and health hazards, appropriate protective

measures, and hazard communication methods are all important elements that apprenticeship

programs provide.

When little Davis-Bacon acts are repealed, training and apprenticeship programs decline and

the skill base of workers erodes (chapter HI). Without employer incentives to continue

apprenticeship programs, knowledge of proper safety and health procedures declines as well.

Summary. The combination of these factors — cutthroat competition, a decline in training,

and an erosion of career attachments to the industry — affects the safety-related skill and

experience base of the construction labor force. Workers become more injury-prone and know

less about the kinds of risks they are taking. Furthermore, as the workforce becomes less skilled

and its wages in construction decline, workers are forced to take more safety risks to simply

make a living. Furthermore, contractors caught in the competitive speed-up often press their

workers to speed up and take more chances. Workers are put at increased risk in an already

hazardous industry.
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A Comparison of Injury Rates

The U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics" annual Occupational Injuries and Illness Survey reports

accidents by state and year. Construction injuries vary by the type of work being done. We will

analyze these BLS data for plumbers and pipe fitters employed by specialty contractors in the
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) 171. This specialty trade has injury rates m the mid-range
of rates for construction and this trade is often employed on public works.

For pipe fitters in 1978-91, states that had state prevailing wage laws averaged 13.83 injuries

for every 100 workers employed (fig. 4.1). In addition, in the states that repealed prevailing wage
laws, injury rates for plumbers and pipe fitters before repeal was slightly less (13.54 per 100
workers) than the injury rates in other states with state prevailing wage laws. By contrast, states

that never had state prevailing wage laws had higher injury rates (14.74 per 100 workers) and the

repeal states, after they repealed the prevailing wage laws had the highest injury rates of 15.41

per 100 workers. These increases in injuries resulted in a similar increase in workdays lost per
worker.'*

It is possible that injury rates might differ between states for reasons other than changes in

legal status. The union pipe fitter who got hurt in Utah in 1986 slipped partly because of snowy
condirions. Perhaps factors associated with safety unrelated to repeal coincidentally worsened
after repeal. We controlled for factors such as regional differences in weather, time trends m
injury rates, and the effects of unemployment in a multiple regression analysis of construction

injuries among plumbers. This approach permitted us to isolate the effect on safety of changes
stnctly associated with the repeal of state prevailing wage laws.

We modeled injury cases per worker as a function of geographic regions, the unemployment
rate, a time trend, and the legal status of state prevailing wage laws (table 4.1). Three measures
of injury rates are reported: injury cases per worker (col. 2); serious injury cases per worker,
defined as injury cases that required time off from work (col. 3); and the number of lost work
days per worker (col. 4). In all three models, our focus variable, the act of repealing a stats

prevailing wage, has a positive coefficient. This means that as the states repealed their prevailmg
wage laws, injury rates went up according to all three measures.

In our model, the dependent variables are logged. This allows for a straightforward

interpretation of the repeal variable as a percent increase in injury rates. So, as these states

repealed their laws, the injury case rate went up by 14 percent, the serious injury case rate went
up by 15 percent and the work days lost per worker per year went up by 12 percent. All of these

findings are statistically significant.

All other things being equal, states that have never had prevailing wage laws also have
higher injury rates for plumbers and pipe fitters in the construction industry. In terms of injuries

per worker and serious injuries per worker, our results indicate that states that never had
prevailing wage laws affecting construction had a statistically significant 5 to 9 percent higher
rate compared with states that have prevailing wage laws."

The Cost of Injuries

The costs of injuries in the construction industry are staggering. Of the nation's $62 billion spent

on workers' compensation, approximately 30% goes for construction-related injunes and illnesses,
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Table 4.1 Regression model of the effect of state repeals on iiyury rates for plumbers and pipe

fitters

Source: US DOL, BLS.

Dependent vaiiable: log of injury rate for plumbers and pipe fitters

(by year and state)
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Before Repeal Have Law Never Had Law After Repeal

Figure 4.1 Injury rates io coostructiou by status of prevailing wage law
Source: VS. Departmeot of Labor, BLS.

Injury rates io construction were relatively low in the nine repeal states prior to repeal

(13J4 percent). After the various repeals, injury rates, on average, rose to 15.41 percent
In the 32 states that have retained prevailing wage laws, injury rates have been and
remain relatively low. In nine states that have never had state prevailing wage laws,

injury rates were and remain relatively high. The noution "n" refers to the numbers of

sutc-year observations io each group. For insunce, there were 230 state-year
combinations for states that had prevailing wage laws in 1978-91.
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or roughly $20 billion. This, for a construction labor force which represents but 5 to 6 percent

of the whole U.S. labor force. In addition to the direct costs of workers' compensation, tliere are

numerous industry-related indirect costs connected to work-related injuries or deaths. These

include job shutdowns and retraining of workers.

According to the Construction Industry Institute, "even when the estimates of claims are

deleted from cost data, indirect costs still exceed the direct costs.""

Based on the our regression model of the experience of the nine states that repealed their

prevailing wage laws, we project that national injury rates" will increase by around 15% if the

Davis-Bacon Act is repealed. What this will mean in terms of safety is:

There vnW be 30,000 new cases of lost-time injuries each year, accounting for 675,000 days

lost from work.

Workers' compensation costs will increase by about $3 billion per year.

Because Davis-Bacon construction accounts for approximately 10 percent of all construction,

it is estimated that repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act would increase federal construction costs

by $300 million per year in direct, workers'-compensation-related costs alone, and indirect

costs would double this figure.

The numbers might prove larger, because a Davis-Bacon repeal in the wake of state repeals may

have a larger impact on the construction industry.

Summary

The institutional context of work is critical to worker health and safety. State prevailing wage

laws, on the surface, have little to do with worker health and safety. But such repeal has

fundamentally altered an institutional context that was more conducive to workplace safety.

Repeals of state prevailing wage laws, therefore, have had hidden effects. Because the

bidding process becomes overheated; because contractors, as a group, take less responsibility for

training and safety; because workers feel less secure on the job, and because the workforce

becomes less attached to and experienced with construction work, construction becomes more

dangerous. Safety in an already relatively dangerous industry is put at risk by the repeal of

prevailing wage laws.
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V. Conclusion

The Effects of the Repeal of Prevailing Wage Laws

The federal system of government in the United States is sometimes called "democracy's
workshop." The diverse experiences of the 50 states afford a valuable window for assessmg the
successes and failures of public policies. Between 1979 and 1988, nine states repealed their

prevailing wage laws regulating the construction of public works. These legislative changes
enable us to examine the before-and-after pictures of the effects of such repeals. Nine other states

never had prevailing wage laws governing public construction, while the remaining thirty-two
states retained prevailing wage laws. These "never-had" states and "retaining" states give us
additional perspectives on what it means to keep or repeal prevailing wage laws.

Legislators are often forced to act on theory; this is one instance where they can act on facts

and experience. The experience of the last 20 years in the application and removal of state

prevailing wage laws on public construction offers insight into the prospective effects of further

state repeals or the proposed repeal of the federal Davis-Bacon Act.

The Goals of State Prevailing Wage Laws

Prevailing wage laws were first enacted at the state level. Kansas passed the first prevailing wage
law on public works in 1891 as pan of legislation mandating the eight-hour work day. Prevailing
wage laws were central to a larger effort to improve working conditions for American citizens.

The notion was that child labor laws should enable children to be in school and the eight-hour
work day should help allow workers time to spend with their families.

The proponents of prevailing wage legislation wanted to prevent the government from using
its purchasing power to undermine the wages of its citizens. It was believed that the government
should set an example, by paying the wages prevailing in a locality for each occupation hired by
government contractors to build public projects.

Before the Great Depression, Arizona, Idaho, Kansas, Massachusetts, Nebraska, New Jersey,

New York, and Oklahoma passed prevailing wage laws regulating state building and road
construction. In 1931, Congress passed the Davis-Bacon Act. Soon thereafter, 18 additional states

adopted prevailing wage laws. After World War 11 and until 1982, 15 more states passed
prevailing wage laws. All of these laws raised the question: what was meant by a prevailing

wage?

The Definition of a Prevailing Wage

Wages in local labor markets often have a peculiar distribution. Particularly where there are

unions, but also in other circumstances, the highest wage in a local labor market is often the most
commonly found wage rate. Even when the highest wage occurs most often, however, it will not

be the average wage simply because the lower wages — however few or many — for that

occupation will bring the average wage down.

Prevailing wage laws are intended to get the government out of the business of pulling down
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wages The dilemma is that if the state pays the average wage, it will automatically undercut the

most commonly found wage Alternatively, if government pays the highest wage found, it will

always be pulling the average wage up. When is the highest wage sufficiently common that it

should be called the prevailing wage rate, even though it will never be the average wage?

In the federal law, this dilemma was resolved by a threshold rule This rule stated that if the

most commonly found wage rate, to the penny, accounted for more than 30 percent of all wages

for an occupation in a local labor market, that was the prevailing wage even though it was not

the average wage. On the other hand, if the most commonly found wage rate accounted for less

than 30 percent of all wages for an occupation in a local area, the average wage rate prevailed.

In 1985, the Reagan administration revised the rule and raised the threshold to 50 percent

Today, Davis-Bacon wage rates are the average rate for an occupation in a local labor market

except, in roughly one-third of the cases, where 50 percent of the wages in that area are precisely

the same. If more than half of all workers in an occupation in an area make the same wage, that

wage rate — even if it is above the average — is said to prevail. But two-Airds of the time the

average wage prevails.

Modem opposition to prevailing wage laws is usually founded on one of two objections.

Some people oppose the idea of the government agreeing in advance to pay the average wage

rate for workers in specific occupations in a local area This criticism is completely at odds wrth

the original purpose of prevailing wage legislation, which was to prevent the government from

hiring labor at below-standard rates. Other critics object to paying a prevailing wage thai is

greater than the average wage in the locality. The premise of tiiis second objection has lost a

great deal of its force in recent decades. As a result of the adoption of the 50 percent threshold,

and the additional fact that unionization in tiie construction labor market has fallen from 70

percent to about 25 percent in the last three decades, there are far fewer cases in which the wages

rates determined as prevailing are greater than the average rate.

The Financial Costs of State Repeals

Latver wagesfor all construction workers. Supporters of Utah's 1981 repeal of its prevailing

wage law recognized that repeal would lower construction wages. They maintained, however, that

Ae money saved on public works construction justified the government's indirectly lowering the

wages and earnings of some of its citizens. And, indeed, construction earnings did fall. In Utah,

construction workers, who through the 1950s, 1960s, and 1970s earned 120 to 130 percent of the

average non-agricultural wage in the state, saw their wages fall steadily after repeal. By 1993,

Utah construction workers were earning only 103 percent of the average annual earnings in Uah,

even though Utah was then experiencing a massive construction boom, in which construcrion

wages normally go up. This earnings decline affected all Utah construction workers — whether

union or non-union, whether employed on publicly or privately financed projects.

Taking the nine repeal states as a whole, the average annual earnings of construction woricers

in these states fell from $24,3 17 (in 1991 dollars) per year before the repeals to $22,148 after the

repeals. This is simple but compelling evidence that repeals of state prevailing wage laws have

lowered construction wages.

A more complex analysis confirms this general observation. Using multiple linear regression

analysis, we isolated the earnings effects of the state repeals while controlling for the business
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cycle, regional differences in wages and unemployment, and long-term trends in earnings and

employment that are not associated with repeals of prevailing wage laws We found that the nine

repeals cost construction workers m those states S 1,477 (in 1994 dollars) per worker every year

since state repeal. This was about a 5 percent drop in construction eammgs attributable to each

state's repeal of its prevailing wage law on public works.

A slight increase in construction employment Proponents of state repeals maintained thai

the lowering of wages would be offset by an increase in construction employment. While high-

paid, high-skilled workers would be hurt by a repeal, it was believed, low-paid, low-skilled

workers would have more job opportunities in construction.

Repeal proponents were right that cheaper construction labor would lead to an increase in

construction employment. Again using regression analysis, we found that the repeal states

experienced a 1.7 percent increase in construction employment that would not have occurred

without these repeals. This was an unfavorable trade-off from the standpoint of workers, however,

as their wages fell by 5 percent overall while their employment rose by less than 2 percent. It

turned out to be a tough trade-off for government budget-watchers as well.

Lost tax revenues. As a group, construction workers lost income, because their wages

dropped by 5 percent and their total employment rose by less than 2 percent. This caused the

government to lose substantial tax revenues. In recent years, the state of Utah has lost $3 million

to S5 million annually in sales tax and income tax revenues because it repealed its prevailing

wage law in construction.

Increased construction cost overruns. Cost overruns are a hidden cost of repealing

prevailing wage laws. In Utah, the overruns in Utah resulted from an over-heated bidding process

in which contractors, uncertain about each other's labor costs and confronted with the entry of

many start-up construction companies, shaved their bids in a desperate effort to obtain

government contracts. After the repeal, winning bids on state jobs came in lower than ever

before, but the final job costs were a higher percentage of original estimates than ever before

(chapter 2, fig. 2.3). Having underbid jobs, contractors and subcontractors would arrange change

orders to get the jobs done or simply walk away from badly underbid jobs and leave the state to

pick up the pieces. In Utah, cost overruns on the construction of state roads tnpled in the 1

years after repeal, compared with the 10 years before.'"

The bottom linefor Utah's budget The Congressional Budget Office estimates that, should

the federal Davis-Bacon Act be repealed, the federal government might save a total of 1.7 percent

on its construction costs. This savings might even be less." Using an even more conservative

figure of 3 percent to estimate what Utah saved in construction costs by repealing its prevailing

wage law, we calculate that the Utah state budget almost — but not quite — broke even.

Balancing construction cost savings against lost tax revenues, in two of the years since 1987 the

Utah budget saved more money in construction costs than it lost in tax revenues. In five of the

years since 1987, the state lost more in tax revenues than it saved in construction costs (fig. 5.1).

In either case, the net savings or losses were small compared with the lost earnings of Utah's

citizens (table 2.6, row 3). But construction workers — and the industry — were to lose more

than money when these repeals were enacted.
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Figure 5.1 Average aonual income-tax revenoe loss and construction cost savings and net effect

of repeal for Uuh, 1987 to 1993, in 1994 doUars

Source: Table 2.6.

On average, the repeal of Utah's prevailing wage law has cost the state budget

$400,000 per year from 1987 to 1993. This figure has been rising and reached $1

million in 1993. Should the federal prevailing wage law be repealed, the gap

between lost federal tax dollars and construction cost savings will be greater. This

is partly because a Davis-Bacon repeal would affect more construction and more

workers, but also because the federal government income tax rate is higher than

Utah's. The higher the Income tax rateare taxed, the greater the taxes if incomes

fall.
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Other Costs of State Repeals

A less-skilled labor force. Unions and union contractors do the lion's share of worker
training in the construction industry. Some very large non-union contractors do their own training,

but most non-union contractors hire out-of-work union-trained construction workers and workers
who have learned a trade on a catch-as-catch-can basis. Most non-union contractors are not big
enough to afford to train and retain their own labor force. Contractors, understandably, are afraid
that in the first slack period, the workers they trained will leave them and work for their

competitors. Unions historically have compensated for this market failure by inducing union
contractors to share the burden of training and to share each other's apprentices.

In Utah, the repeal of the prevailing wage law led to a dramatic decline in union
apprenticeship programs because the repeal led to a dramatic decline in local construction unions.
Having repealed the prevailing wage law, the state was not inclined to pour money mto local

community colleges and vocational training centers to make up the difference. At first after the
repeal in 1981, the Utah construction economy limped along in the trough of a business cycle

so the absence of quality training systems was not strongly missed. Non-union contractors hired
out-of-work union members and the older generation of construction workers provided a relatively

skilled labor force in the open shop of non-union construction.

In the last three years, however, Utah has experienced a massive construction boom. Few
training systems were in place to meet this boom. Utah has filled the gap by relymg on traveling
construction workers from California, which is in a construction slump. Utah has also relied on
a less-skilled labor force. Whether Utah will be able to continue to rely on California workers
remains to be seen; if California's economy picks up, many of the skilled California travelers will

likely return home to the increased wages there.

Utah's experience with declining availability of construction training was not unique.
Comparing the decade before repeals to the decade after repeals, union and non-union
apprenticeship rates in construction fell by more than half in the nine states that repealed their

prevailing wage laws. States that retained their prevailing wage laws did not lose ground in

apprenticeship training and states that never had prevailing wage laws had relatively low training

rates in construction throughout the period.

The repeal of prevailing wage laws thus had the indirect effect of reducing training and
hindering the formation of a skilled labor force. When unions declined in the wake of repeal,

only state government could have picked up the pieces. The cost of expanded state-financed

vocational training is a hidden cost of repealing prevailing wage laws. So far, it is a hidden cost

that few repeal states have been willing to pay.

Slowed economic gains by minority workers. A faltering stock of human skills m
construction is not the only nonmonetary cost that resulted from state repeals of prevailing wage
laws. Construction used to be one of the few blue-collar occupations left where a worker lacking

a college education could earn a middle-class income. Nationwide, the average construction

income in 1994 was $27,500. Becoming a skilled construction worker was a road out of poverty
for minority workers. Before the nine state repeals, participation by minonty group members —
male and female nonw^ites — in construction apprenticeships mirrored the minonty populations

in each state.

In the repeal states before the repeal of their prevailing wage laws, minorities accounted for
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almost 20 percent of all construction apprentices. After repeal, minority participation fell to 12.5

percent of all construction apprentices. Thus, after these repeals, minorities became significantly

under-represented in construction apprenticeships.

One reason for this decline is that union apprenticeship programs usually enrolled dozens

of apprentices. Non-union apprenticeship programs tied to single employers tended to be smaller,

often involving no more than one, two, or three apprentices. Affirmative action regulations do

not cover apprenticeship programs of fewer than five apprentices. So the union programs had to

fill out affirmative action plans and follow affirmative action guidelines, while the smaller

programs did not.

When the repeals drove the union programs into decline, minority workers lost the most. For

instance, the percentage of minority apprentices in construction, which reflected the minority

proportion in each state's state population before repeal, declined in the repeal states (fig. 5.2).

Minority construction workers may still enter the industry but they are less likely to receive full

formal training in the absence of prevailing wage legislation. Although it has been suggested that

repeal of Davis-Bacon would lower black unemployment relative to white unemployment by

opening up jobs for less-skilled black labor," the data do not support such a claim (see chapter

3, figs. 3.3 and 3.4).

Thus, repeal means that minority workers will begin construction work in unskilled jobs and

get their training, if at all, on a catch-as-catch-can basis. Furthermore, minorities will enter an

industry that is less able to provide a secure blue-collar, middle-class income. Repealing

prevailing wage laws has therefore cut off an important road for minorities into the middle class.

Without skills training, workers are less productive; without safety training, they are at greater

risk of injury in an already dangerous profession.

Increased work-related injury rates. All construction workers in the nine repeal states have

been put at increased physical risk by the repeal of the several state prevailing wage laws. Injury

rates in construction in the nine repeal states have nsen by 15 percent after repeal, e\'en

controlling for other factors such as unemployment, trends in construction safety, and differences

in work safety experiences by region. This finding is consistent with other research. The

Department of Labor found that the rate of injuries "decreases substantially as length of service

increases.""

If the experience in these states can be extended to the nation, a repeal of Davis-Bacon

would result in 76,000 additional construction workplace injuries annually. About 30,000 of these

injuries would be serious, requiring time off to recover. More than 675,000 work days would be

lost. These new injuries would occur because workers would be less well-trained and because

they would have fewer on-the-job protections against contractors who are in a hurry.

Workers, of course, suffer directly from these occupational injuries— in their physical well-

being and in their wallets. Increased injury rates also lead to increased costs for contractors, v-iio

must pay higher worker's compensation premiums. And, as consumers of construction services,

local, state, and federal governments pay a share of those higher worker's compensanon

premiums.
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Figure 5.2 The percentage of minority apprentices in construction, divided by the percentage of

minority population in the state — the minority renection percentage— for nine repeal states
Source: Table 3.8. - —

In the nine repeal states where separate data were available on minoritj
populations, in the decade before repeal, minority apprentices were slightly over-
represented relative to their proportion of the state population. The minoritj
reflection percentage was 107 percent. In the decade after the repeals, the
minority reflection percentage fell to 85 percent, indicating significantly under-
represented minorities.
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Figure S3 Estimated efTect of a repeal of the Davis-Bacon Act od income-tax revennes,

construction costs and total budget

Source: Table 2.7.

The Congressional Budget Office estimates that the federal government would save

a total of 1.7 percent in construction costs from a repeal of Davis-Bacon. This

chart uses the more conservative cost savings estimate of 3 percent. At a 3 percent

construction cost savings, with a marginal income tax rate of 20 percent and

federal construction expenditures at their 1991 level (in 1994 dollars), a repeal of

Davis-Bacon would cost the federal government $1.2 billion in income tax

revenues. The federal government would save $346 million in construction costs

and the federal budget would lose, on net, $838 million.
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Estimated Effect of A Davis-Bacon Repeal

Democracy's workshop has given us an opportunity. The nine states that repealed their "little"

Davis-Bacon Acts offer a chance to estimate the likely consequences of the repeal of the federal
Davis-Bacon Act. Based on this study, we project the following

First, construction earnings would drop if the federal law was repealed. Collectively, for all

constnjction workers, this would mean a loss of almost $5 billion per year in real term's every
year. As a result of lower wages in construction, federal income tax collections would fall by
roughly $1 billion per year. Projected cost savings on federally purchased construction almost
certainly would be less. (fig. 5.3).

Second, we estimate that formal training in construction could fall by 40 percent. The
industry would move from one of skilled blue-collar workers earning a middle-class income to
a much-Iess-skilled labor force earning substantially lower wages. Minonty access to good
training likely would fall even farther than overall training rates. Contractors would be usmg
more construction workers and paying less for them, but the less-skilled workers would be
building less and adding less value to building projects. Purchasers of construction services would
not necessarily profit from lower-wage labor if that labor is also less skilled. This is a potential
lose-lose situation.

Utah was able to patch together a large-enough construction labor force after its repeal of
prevailing wage law. Contractors in Utah rode fi-eely on the training systems in place in

California But the country as a whole cannot go on a similar free ride. If Davis-Bacon is

repealed and construction training nationally declines sharply, the United States will not be a
small state like Utah turning to California for its rescue. Nationally, there will be no place to

turn. Is the federal government prepared to spend the money to establish its own apprenticeship
programs in construction? Alternately, will the government induce or require contractors to join
into cooperative training programs? If prevailing wage legislation is repealed, it is likely thai

some additional measures will be needed to ensure occupational training for the constructioD
industry.

Last, but not least, we estimate that the construction job site would produce 30,000
additional serious injuries yearly These injuries would add a large but still-undetermined
financial cost to the ultimate price of repeal.

It goes without saying that the public benefits from a bidding process that lowers
construction costs. But the bidding process must be kept within certain bounds, to prevent
consequences that could lead to increased — rafter than decreased — public and societal cosb.
Competitive pressures tempt contractors to cut comers on quality. States and communities employ
building inspectors to assure that quality is maintained. Historically, unions have assumed the role

of "building inspector" for safety and training in Ae construction industry.

TTte role of unions. Employment in construction is inherently unstable because the industry

fluctuates cyclically and seasonally. Firms expand and contract employment as they win and lose

job bids. A worker rarely has a long-term attachment to one employer in the industry, and the

construction union may be the only stable, work-related institution the worker knov,-s

Construction unions act like a flywheel in the industry, creating career opportunities out of a

casual labor market. Unions do this by facilitating the movement of journeymen from employer
to employer and minimizing the employers' transaction and screening costs.
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Unions lower training turnover by providing a way for employers and journeymen to

rationally invest in the human capital of apprentices Collectively bargained agreements create

wage incentives for apprentices to stay with training programs, and also cause their employers

to promote the workers' passage to journeyman status. Unions also encourage the career

attachment of trained journeymen by providing relatively high wages and health and retirement

insurance, which is increasingly attracrive to workers as they age. By creating career jobs in a

casual labor market, unions create the institutions needed to make human capital investment a

rational market activity.

With the lowenng of construction wages, young construction workers will limit the amount

of human capital they invest in themselves. With a lower stake in construction skills and the

disappearance of wages in the form of health and old-age insurance, it becomes more reasonable

for many journeyman construction workers to abandon construction work entirely when they start

families. This is an additional loss of built-up human capital.

The loss of a career. Contractors have attempted to minimize the effect of this increased

skill volatility in the industry by encouraging attachment of workers to their firms. Still, despite

initiatives such as profit-sharing, 40 IK plans, and health insurance to bind key workers to the

firm, construction firm turnover remains high. It appears that the decline of unions has been

associated with the decline of the career worker in construction, a diminution in incentives to

invest in construction skills, and an increasing loss of accumulated human capital as apprentices

and journeymen leave the trades.

The loss of human capital and career jobs in this industry does not appear as a private cost

on the ledgers of any single contractor. Nonetheless, the industry and society at large pay a price

for the loss of middle-class occupations in construction. Not only is quality in tiie industry at risk

when human capital stocks are allowed to dwindle, but the quality of our society is imperiled

when we dismantle the institutions that generate stable employment out of unstable working

conditions.

The construction industry is turbulent. Caught in a perennial boom-bust cycle, characterized

by fleeting relationships between small contractors and subcontractors, and driven by short-term

strategies of free-riding on the training of others, the construction industry is a market failure

waiting to happen. The turmoil in the construction labor market has traditionally been tempered

by prevailing wage legislation and labor unions. Absent these institutions, it is unclear how —
or whether — the market will regularly and carefully train workers, or assure safety and health

on the job site, or provide training opportunities for minority workers, or offer the incomes

needed to make construction an attractive career. Government purchases account for 20 percent

of all construction in the United States. For the last six decades and more, the government has

contributed to the stability in construction labor markets by requiring contractors to pay the wage

rates that already prevail in a local areas. Today, voices are urging the government to use its

purchasing powers to reduce construction costs at the expense of worker incomes. Such a strategy

has a very real cost for workers, the industry, and the government. When nine states chose this

path, the results were significantly lower construction wages, slightly higher construction

employment, a tripling of cost overruns on public works, an across-the-board 1 5-percent increase
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in construction injuries, a 40 percent decrease in apprenticeship training, and an even further

decline in minority apprenticeship training. All this was sacrificed to save an estimated 1.7

percent in state construction costs. Even that savings was squandered by the loss in state tax

revenues from an impoverished construction labor force — a poor bargain indeed.
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